BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD

MONDAY 19TH JULY 2010, AT 6.00 P.M.

COMMITTEE ROOM, THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE

MEMBERS: Councillors C. B. Taylor (Chairman), Mrs. M. Bunker (Vice-
Chairman), S. R. Colella, Mrs. A. E. Doyle, Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths
and Ms. H. J. Jones

AGENDA
1. To receive apologies for absence
2. Declarations of Interest
3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Performance

Management Board held on 17th May 2010 (Pages 1 - 4)

4. Recycling and Garden Waste Service - Lessons Learned Report
(Pages 5 - 12)

5. Dolphin Centre Service Level Agreement (Pages 13 - 52)
6. Performance Report (May 2010) (Pages 53 - 74)

7. Improvement Plan - new template (Pages 75 - 116)

8. Shared Services Report (Pages 117 - 154)

9. Work Programme (Pages 155 - 162)



10.  To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until
the next meeting

K. DICKS
Chief Executive

The Council House
Burcot Lane
BROMSGROVE
Worcestershire
B60 1AA

9th July 2010



Agenda ltem 3

BROMSGROVEDISTRICTCOUNCIL

MEETING OF THE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD

MONDAY, 17TH MAY 2010 AT 6.00 P.M.

PRESENT:  Councillors Mrs. M. Bunker, S. R. Colella, Mrs. A. E. Doyle,
Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths, Ms. H. J. Jones (during Minute No’s 1/10 to 8/10)
and C. B. Taylor
Observers: Councillor L. J. Turner

Officers: Mr. H. Bennett and Ms. A. Scarce

110  ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN

RESOLVED that Councillor C. B. Taylor be elected Chairman of the Board for
the ensuing municipal year.

2/10  ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN

RESOLVED that Councillor Mrs. M. Bunker be elected Vice-Chairman of the
Board for the ensuing municipal year.

3/10 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence. It was noted that a nomination to the
Board had not yet been received from the Labour Group.

4/10  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were received.
5/10 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Performance Management Board held on
19th April 2010 were submitted.

Members were advised by the Director of Policy, Performance and
Partnerships (PPP) that officers would be made aware of the Lean Systems
process (as noted in Minute No. 95/09) at the Management Forum, which
would be held shortly.

RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a correct record.

Page 1



6/10

Performance Management Board
17th May 2010

PERFORMANCE REPORT (MARCH 2010)

The Board considered the Performance Report for March 2010. Members
noted that there was a 9% decrease in the percentage of performance
indicators that had met their target at the year end. After discussion it was
agreed that the Director of PPP would investigate this and include his findings
in the Performance Report for the Board meeting on 14th June 2010.

The Board gave particular consideration to the Dolphin Centre usage which
had been highlighted as an area of potential concern in the report. The
Director of PPP confirmed that the management of the Dolphin Centre had
been transferred to the Leisure Trust with effect from 1st April 2010 and
Members agreed that it would be useful to receive further information on
performance indicators, pre and post handover. After further discussion it was
agreed that the Head of Leisure and Cultural Services, together with the
Portfolio Holder for Community Services be invited to a future meeting of the
Board, to provide a report and feedback on this item.

Members shared their concern over the total value of Housing Benefit
overpayments outstanding at the start of the quarter. After discussion it was
agreed that the Director of PPP would provide a more detailed explanation of
this item together with a comparative figure for the previous year, in the
Performance Report for the Board meeting on 14th June 2010.

The Board discussed item SC4, Sports Development Usage and were advised
that a review of Sports Development had been included in the Scrutiny Board
Work Programme and the Scrutiny Board would receive an initial report from
the Head of Leisure and Cultural Services in the autumn.

The Director of PPP confirmed that the Head of Environmental Services and
the Portfolio Holder for Community Services would be asked to provide a
Lessons Learnt Report in respect of the implementation of the new recycling
arrangements for presentation to the Board meeting to be held on 14th June
2010.

RESOLVED:
(@) that it be noted that 49% of performance indicators are stable or
improving;

(b)  that it be noted that 69% of performance indicators that have a target
have met their target at the year end (compared to 78% in 2008/09);

(c) that the performance figures for March 2010 as set out in Appendix 2
are noted,;

(d)  that the particular areas of improvement as summarised in section 4.2
are noted; and

(e) that the performance indicators of particular concern as set out in
section 4.3 are noted.

Page 2



7/10

8/10

Performance Management Board
17th May 2010

IMPROVEMENT PLAN EXCEPTION REPORT (MARCH 2010)

The Board considered the Improvement Plan Exception Report for March
2010 and discussed the following items in more detail:

» Progress made in the Council’'s move from a “fair” to an “excellent”
Council.

The Budget Jury which would be reinstated this year.

Bromsgrove Way training — which had been suspended due to a
revised approach being put forward.

Employee health and wellbeing programme

Planning and in particular Ref. 13.2.3 Receive and respond to RSS2
Proposed Changes and the delay that had taken place in publishing the
changes.

VV VY

The Board also discussed Ref. 1.5 the Railway Station and were informed that
representatives from both Worcestershire County Council (WCC) and Network
Rail had been invited to attend a recent Overview Board meeting, but had
declined. The Overview Board was making further investigations into this
issue and Members of the Performance Management Board agreed that if the
relevant representatives were to attend a future Overview Board meeting, they
would welcome an invitation to attend that meeting.

RESOLVED:

(@) that the revisions to the Improvement Plan Exception Report together
with the corrective action being taken are noted; and

(b)  that it be noted that for the 85 actions highlighted for March within the
plan 67.1% of the Improvement Plan was on target (green), 4.7% was
one month behind (amber) and 3.5% was over one month behind (red).
24.7% of actions have been reprogrammed or suspended with
approval.

SHARED SERVICES HIGHLIGHT REPORT

The Board considered the Shared Services Highlight Report and was advised
by the Director of PPP that the Burcot Room would be used to host Regulatory
Services for efficiency purposes rather than from an income earning
perspective.

With regard to the Financial Implications section of the report and the delivery
of savings, the Director of PPP confirmed that the Selby approach to reporting
income and savings targets had been adopted and the Board would receive
the appropriate report for Quarter 1 at a future meeting.

The Board also discussed the transfer of staff into the direct employment of
both Redditch and Bromsgrove Councils and the change of contract
implications which arose from these transfers.

RESOLVED that the Shared Services Highlight Report be noted.

Page 3



9/10

Performance Management Board
17th May 2010

WORK PROGRAMME

Members considered the Work Programme and agreed that the following
items should be included within the Work Programme:

» An evaluation of the pilot Mosaic scheme
» Budget management - Quarter 1 Outturn Report
» Staff Survey results

RESOLVED that the Work Programme be noted, subject to the inclusion of
the items mentioned above.

The meeting closed at 7.20 p.m.

Chairman

Page 4



Agenda ltem 4

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD

19th JULY 2010

Lessons Learned — Recycling & Garden Waste Services

Responsible Portfolio Holder Mike Webb

Responsible Head of Service Guy Revans, Head of Environmental
Services

Non-Key Decision

1. SUMMARY

1.1 To update the Board on lessons learned from the recent implementation of
changes to recycling and garden waste collection services 2010.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 Itis recommended that the Board:

i. Considers the lessons learned report to recognise achievements and
issues identified and makes any recommendations to Cabinet where
appropriate.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 The recycling collection service changed from a twin box kerbside sort
collection to a comingled wheeled bin collection in April 2010, whilst the
garden waste service moved from using green bin to brown bins in March
2010.

3.2 The above changes were undertaken to bring Bromsgrove District Council
into line with other Herefordshire & Worcestershire Districts and to assist in
achieving targets agreed to in the Joint Municipal Waste Management
Strategy (H&W JMWMS).

3.3 The project group commenced working on these changes around 18
months prior to implementation working with a number of different internal
services and external agencies to ensure service changes were
implemented with as little interruption to customers and day to day
operations as possible.

3.4 The lessons learned report attached explores the elements of the project
that went according to the project plan highlighting which elements were
most beneficial to the success of the project and conversely which
elements of the project could have been undertaken more effectively.

Page 5



4.1

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

1.

11.1

12.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None

COUNCIL OBJECTIVES

Has helped achieve a better Environment

RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY
CONSIDERATIONS

None

CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS

In order to deliver improved customer service to our residents it is
imperative to learn from past performance and instil successful elements of
projects into future plans; equally, there is a need to avoid repeating
actions that are detrimental or that have negative effects on desired
outcomes.

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

None.

VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

None

CLIMATE CHANGE AND CARBON IMPLICATIONS

Recycling helps to reduce green house gases

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Please include the following table and spell out any particular implications in
the relevant box. If there are no implications under a particular heading,
please state 'None’:-

| Procurement Issues: None |

Page 6



Personnel: None

Governance/Performance Management: None

Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act
1998: None
Policy: None.

Biodiversity: None.

13. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT

Portfolio Holder Yes

Chief Executive Yes.

Executive Director — Regeneration, Planning No.
and Housing

Executive Director — Finance and Resources No.

Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive | No.
Director of Policy, Performance and No.
Partnerships

Head of Service No.
Head of Financial Services No.
Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic No.
Services

Head of Organisational Development & HR No.
Corporate Procurement Team No.

14. WARDS AFFECTED

All.
15. APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Lessons Learned Report for Implementation of the changes to
recycling and garden waste collection services 2010

Page 7



16. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Not applicable.

CONTACT OFFICER

Name: Guy Revans
E Mail: g.revans@bromsgrove.gov.uk
Tel: (01527) 881703

Page 8



Appendix 1

Lessons Learned Report

Project : Implementation of the changes to recycling and
garden waste collection services 2010

Date: June 2010

Prepared bV: Guy Revans, Head of Environmental Services

What went well?

Officers identified that there were major crossovers between changes to the
recycling collection service and the garden waste project group. This
highlighted areas of similarity between the 2 projects and enabled a more
joined up approach.

Development of the back office systems to enable payments to be more easily
pulled through into the Uniform system.

Early launch of service changes to Members and Parish Council’s and
Customer Service Centre staff enabled a dialogue to start about the service
changes early on in the project therefore contributing to understanding.

Starting communications with residents early (1 year in advance) and drip
feeding messages through to them.

£264, 426 of Wrap funding was awarded to the overall cross-county project
for communications relating to the new EnviroSort facility after a joint bid with
other Hereford & Worcestershire Authorities.

A member of the project group was selected for the joint steering group that
managed the funding and subsequent communications; this had a direct
influence on where the funding was directed.

The temporary staff member employed to assist Business Support in taking
payments and processing bin requests was key in enabling the day to day
business support functions to continue whilst handling the additional requests
for information, bins and queries etc.

What would you want to make sure you would do again next time?

Ensure Members and Parish Councils are communicated to early.

Drip feed information when getting across service messages (to internal &
external)

Page 9




Appendix 1

Use postal delivery to send out main communications to residents.

Explore external funding sources however avoid reliance on external finance
bids to fund communications and make joint applications — ensure a
contingency budget is in place should funding not materialise.

Where possible work with neighbouring authorities for economies of scale.

What went less well and why?

Delivery of bins to residents:

Residents in some cases had to wait months for a bin to be delivered due to
the backlog of customers waiting; In part this was due to the supplier and in
part our system of delivery:

The snow and ice experienced in January and February 2010 prevented the
bin delivery vehicles from working on 4 separate days. This therefore added
additional pressure to the workload.

After delivering bins, a significant number of residents reported they were still
waiting for a bin; this was exacerbated due to there being no mechanism of
recording a bin to a particular property.

The quantity of additional green bins required was underestimated and
funding for these bins was not catered for in service budgets. (There was
previously an assumption that most households were in possession of a
green bin)

The funding sanctioned for purchasing new brown bins was insufficient to
cater for 2010 applications; therefore an additional order for brown bins was
submitted at a later date, subsequently the manufacturer could not deliver the
bins for the time required.

There was a delay in allowing development of the ATP payment method to go
ahead despite engagement with finance fom the conception stages; had there
been more time to plan this element, the workload and possible costs could
have been reduced. Also, the use of direct debit payments may have been
employed for the 2010 period had finance had a more strategic understanding
from the start of what Environmental Services were trying to achieve.

As no cut off point was implemented for the application process for 2010
collections, additional pressure (including financial) was been loaded on the
operational side of bin delivery the administration processes and the
Customer Service Centre. Employing cut off dates and late payment process
may assist to some degree in controlling the timing of applications and
prevent this bottle neck of work for future years.

What would you do differently next time?

Page 10




Appendix 1

Introduce a method of bin management to reduce the number of missing bins
and control the number of bins collected from each property (ideally from the
start of the project as retrospectively this is more challenging).

Revise the method of bin delivery.
Clarify with finance how funding additional bins will be undertaken

Ensure there is a contingency plan in place for snow / ice weather conditions
to prevent a back log of bin deliveries.

Use a control method to narrow down the window of opportunity for
applications (cut off date / incentives)

Ask for feedback from customer base prior to service developments

Was there a clear definition of success? (Refer back to the PID and
Business Case)

The recycling collections from green bins and the garden waste collections
from brown bins commenced in line with agreed plans

Was it achieved?

The commencement date for collecting recycling from green bins and garden
waste from brown bins was already defined and these deadlines were
achieved, however, it is not clear how many households were not in receipt of
their bins to take part in the collection service at the start date.

How well were risks and issues managed?
There was no contingency in place for bin delivery during the periods of poor
weather or for the late delivery of bins from the supplier.

Did the programme team have the right skills in place?

The project group involved in delivering the service changes were enthusiastic
about meeting the deadlines involved and in general did have the right skills
to deliver the project.

Where involvement is required from IT to assist with Uniform development, it
is understood that external assistance is required, this can delay timescales
and increase costs considerably.

Page 11




Appendix 1

Involvement from senior finance and IT staff would have been beneficial to be
involved at the conception stages to allocate work as necessary and provide a
full picture of what can realistically be provided.

Some external input/ support regarding scheduling bin delivery / bin recording
/ would have been useful at the planning stages to prevent mis-delivery of
bins and registration of bins to properties.

Input from senior management on long term planning would have been useful

to provide direction in areas such as handling applications at the CSC —
direction was unclear and to some degree was conjecture.

Overall project management

The project was managed in the main by the previous Head of Service. With
the changeover of personnel however early in 2010, leadership of the project
became uncertain but the project group carried on with the planned changes
in the absence of a project manager.

Opening and closing events

Na

Funding approach

Na

Communications — internal and external

Early involvement of Members, CSC and relevant departments enabled good
communication internally. Externally, some positive feedback was received
about the information received.

Some residents reported they found the key on the calendar misleading as to
when the brown bin collections started.

Additional Findings

Page 12




Agenda ltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 19™ JULY 2010

Dolphin Centre- Performance Management Framework

Relevant Portfolio Holder Clir Mike Webb
Relevant Head of Service Leisure & Cultural Services
Non-Key Decision

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

1.1 This report gives an overview of the performance management
arrangements and targets contained with in the “Funding agreement in
respect of the provision of recreation, sport and other leisure facilities and
activities for the benefit of the community” or the grant funding arrangement
for the provision of service from the Dolphin Centres.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 There are no recommendations contained with in this information report.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 As members will be aware the provision of services at the Dolphin Centre
were externalised to a not for profit leisure trust organisation on the 1% April
2010.

3.2 Following a recent meeting of the Performance Management Board (PMB),
officers were requested to provide an update report that demonstrated the
performance management arrangements that were in place to over see
these arrangements.

3.3 Attached to this report as Appendix 1, is a copy of the funding agreement or
grant document that sets out the Key Aims, Service Standards, Objectives &
Performance Targets, Funding arrangements and associated management
requirements/clauses. Members are requested to note the contents of the
report and the key issues outlined below and comment where appropriate.

3.4 At present officers are creating a formalised reporting frame work for the
service area that will be available as from the end of the second quarter to
provide an over view of service delivery based on the grant document. This
information will be in line with the BDC Corporate and departmental
reporting framework.

4. KEY ISSUES

Page 13



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 19™ JULY 2010

41

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

The key performance issues and targets contained with in the attached
document are as follows:

e Continuous improvement and increased Quest (UK quality scheme for
sports and leisure facilities) scores in 2011/12 & 2013/14.

¢ Increased user satisfaction rating for the service with in two years.

e To reduce (month on month) the number of customer complaints and
increase positive feedback from the site.

e Development of enhanced user feedback process including User
forums/panel and local survey’s (BDC) to ascertain resident satisfaction
ratings.

e Health & Safety management tools including number of
accident/incidents, RIDDOR related occurrences and facility
management implications.

e Development of effective staff training process to ensure the delivery of
high quality services.

e User/Target group, usage information and increased participation rates.

e The establishment of a Partnership Board to oversee the delivery of the
service, to commence in Nov 10 following 2 quarters of operation.

e Climate change, utility management and sustainability planning process.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications contained with in this report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal implications contained with in this report.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications contained with in this report.

COUNCIL OBJECTIVES

The changes made to the service delivery model of the Dolphin Centres
support the council’s vision and value’s and directly contribute to the
Corporate Objectives of Improvement (CO2) and One Community (CO3).

RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY

CONSIDERATIONS

None contained with in this report.

Page 14



PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

10.

10.1

11.

11.1

12.

12.1

13.

13.1

14.

14.1

15.

15.1

16.

16.1

17.

171

18.

18.1

19.

CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS

None contained with in this report.

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

There are no Equality and Diversity implications contained with in this report

VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET
MANAGEMENT

None contained directly with in this report, however the changes in the
service model on site are directly related to the VFM agenda and the

effective use of resources targets set by the Council.

CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY

None contained with in this report.

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS

None contained with in this report.

GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

None contained with in this report.

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF
CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998

None contained with in this report.

HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

The on site improvements will contribute to addressing health inequality
issues by increasing the uptake of the service and by promoting a more
diverse and customer focused programme.

LESSONS LEARNT

N/A

COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Page 15

19™ JuLY 2010



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 19™ JULY 2010

19.1 Please see appendix one which sets out the headline requirements in this
area.

20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT

Portfolio Holder Yes
Chief Executive No
Executive Director (S151 Officer) No
Executive Director — Leisure, Cultural, No

Environmental and Community Services

Executive Director — Planning & Regeneration, | No
Regulatory and Housing Services

Director of Policy, Performance and Yes
Partnerships

Head of Service Yes
Head of Resources No
Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic No
Services

Corporate Procurement Team N/A

21. WARDS AFFECTED

All Wards

22. APPENDICES

1. Funding agreement in respect of the provision of recreation, sport and
other leisure facilities and activities for the benefit of the community”.
2. First Quarter Dolphin Centre Usage information.

23. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Page 16



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 19™ JULY 2010

None
24. KEY

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name: John Godwin
E Mail: j-godwin@bromsgrove.gov.uk
Tel: 01527 881742

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

FUNDING AGREEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE PROVISION OF
RECREATION, SPORT AND OTHER LEISURE FACILITIES
AND ACTIVITIES FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE COMMUNITY

CONDITIONS OF GRANT FUNDING

Please read these Conditions carefully as they set out the basis on which the Council will
award grant funding to Wychavon Leisure Community Association Limited. Please then
ensure that the document is signed as required and then return it to the Head of Financial
Services at the Council Offices in Bromsgrove. On the basis of your agreement to the
Conditions, grant funding as detailed in Condition 9 will be confirmed, and a copy of this
document, countersigned by a Council officer, will be returned to you for your records.

Page 19




CONDITIONS
1. Business Plan
1.1 Bromsgrove District Council (“the Council”) agrees to make grant funding available to

Wychavon Leisure Community Association Limited (“The Trust”), having considered
the Business Plan (a copy of which is annexed in Schedule 1) submitted by the Trust
for the operation and management of the Dolphin Leisure Centre, School Drive,
Bromsgrove B60 1AY (“the Dolphin Centre”)

1.2 In return for this grant funding the Trust hereby agrees from 1! April 2010 (“ the
Commencement Date”) to:-

1.2.1  operate the Dolphin Centre at/between all of the times contained in Schedule
2

1.2.2  operate the Dolphin Centre in accordance with the terms and conditions
contained herein and in accordance with the provisions contained in a Lease
of even date made between the Council and the Trust

1.2.3 offer a balanced programme of leisure activities which includes all of the
activities listed in Schedule 3.

For the avoidance of doubt, the details set out in Schedules 2 and 3 shall be subject
to any variation agreed between the parties from time to time, such agreement not to
be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

1.3 For the purposes of this agreement “Year” shall mean:

1.3.1 for the first year, the period from the Commencement Date through to 31st
March 2011; and

1.3.2 thereafter a period of twelve (12) consecutive calendar months from 1%t April
through to the following 315! March.

2. Vision for Bromsgrove

The Council and the Trust will work in partnership to promote through leisure and sport the
Council's Vision of “working together to build a district where people are proud to live and
work, through community leadership and excellent services”, the Values of Leadership,
Partnerships, Customer First and Equality, “One Community” and the Council’s Objectives of
Improvement and Sense of Community & Well Being.

In particular the Trust agrees to develop its Business Plan over the period of this agreement,
wherever possible, in working towards the aims, objectives and key deliverables set out in this
agreement and the actions set out in the Council's Leisure & Cultural Services Business Plan
and the Council's Sports Strategy from time to time (so long as they meet the charitable
objectives of the Trust). The Trust also agrees that it will work with the Council to deliver the

Page 20




A EEN R N BN R N BN BN B N BN BN BN BN BN BB =

Council's health, community and social priorities insofar as they can be delivered through the
Dolphin Centre and that it will also support the Council's efficiency agenda.

In addition to the Council’s local objectives the Trust also agrees to work with the Council in
responding to and delivering an extensive range of national, regional and sub regional
initiatives, priorities and requirements e.g. the delivery of the Sport England’s Regional Plan

for Sport in the West Midlands & the Hereford & Worcestershire Sports Partnership
Improvement Plan.

The Trust agrees to become a member of the Bromsgrove Community Sports Network
(BECAN) as soon as reasonably practicable after the Commencement Date and will assist
Council officers in the preparation of external funding submissions designed to provide an
enhanced and diverse programme of activities across the district.

3. Shared Aim

3.1 The Council and the Trust have a shared aim with regard to the provision of leisure
services and in contributing to the improved health and social well being of the
community within the District. This shared aim is:-

3.1.1 providing high quality efficient leisure services with clear and consistent
standards.
3.1.2 providing open access and increased participation to leisure services

regardless of age, sex, sexuality, race, ability or economic status.

3.1.3 continually reviewing and improving services to ensure that the greatest
possible benefit is gained from the Dolphin Centre.

3.14 Identifying key groups within the local population (target market groups) and
developing support and access packages as and where required to increase
participation/updating of services.

3.1.6 to work jointly (including the preparation of funding bids) to support the
Council's wider community, health and physical activity objectives and the
objectives contained in the Local Strategic Partnership and Sustainable
Community Strategy.

3.2 The Trust and the Council shall at all imes act in good faith.
4. Standards of Service
4.1 The Trust will:-

4.1.1 Ensure the provision of a quality service at all times and ensure that any
customer queries or complaints are dealt with efficiently, courteously and
promptly. This shall mean that customer emails will be responded to within 2
working days, letters within 10 working days and telephone calls will be dealt

Page 21




4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

with immediately. Working days shall exclude Saturdays, Sundays and Bank
Holidays.

4.1.2 Provide effective management and high standards of operating procedures
and practices.

4.1.3 Ensure that the Dolphin Centre is well maintained to the highest standards
of cleanliness and safety at all times.

4.1.4 Employ good quality, knowledgeable and appropriately trained staff at the
Dolphin Centre and ensure at all times that any member of staff required to
drive a motor vehicle as part of their duties for the Trust shall hold a valid
driving licence for the vehicle they are using and have appropriate insurance
cover.

415 Ensure that all relevant members of staff have an appropriate Criminal
Records Bureau check and / or an ISA registration.

Provide a varied and balanced service delivery programme that gives opportunities for
all regardless of age, sex, sexuality, race, ability or economic status.

Offer a mixed programme of activities as stated in Schedule 3 (as amended from time
to time) using organised courses, club hire and pay and play opportunities where
appropriate.

Develop a programme of activities aimed at increasing participation in sport, which
provides a basis for progression into higher levels of performance for those with the
talent and desire to progress.

In partnership with the Council, consult with and seek the views on a regular basis from
the community on the Dolphin Centre to include satisfaction levels with the services
provided and future aspirations for the services.

Develop a continuous improvement model for service delivery that incjudes staff
development, a facility improvement schedule and enhanced customer satisfaction
ratings.

Consult with the Council prior to implementing any significant service change which
may impact negatively on any users or user groups.

The Trust agrees and covenants with the Council that in carrying out its obligations
under this agreement the Trust shall (and the Trust shall require in contract
documentation that the Trust's major suppliers and sub-contractors) comply in all
material respects with all relevant legislation including but not limited to legislation
relating to health safety and welfare at work and, in this regard:

Page 22



|

4.9

5.1

4.8.1 the Trust shall use all reasonable endeavours to enforce the obligations in
such contract documentation; and

4.8.2 shall provide evidence to the Council, within a reasonable period following
request:.-

(a) of a policy covering equal opportunities so as to avoid unfair
discrimination on the grounds of age, colour, race, creed, nationality or any
other unjustifiable basis directly or indirectly in relation to the provision of the
services at the Dolphin Centre and

(b) as to how the above policy has been implemented.

The Trust shall work with the Council to support its Equalities and Diversity policies and
agenda.

Objectives and Performance Targets

All information supplied to the Council as set out below shall be in the form agreed with
the Head of Leisure and Cultural Services.

Providing a high quality efficient leisure service with clear and consistent
standards

The Trust agrees to work with the Council and other relevant organisations in
improving and developing services and facilities at the Dolphin Centre. The Council
wishes to see on going service quality improvements and will need to see these
substantiated by an independent external audit process at intervals to be agreed by the
parties.

The Council strongly supports the use of QUEST which provides a scored Quality
Assurance Mark as an assessment tool.

The Council is furthermore committed to achieving a level 3 score for its Use of
Resources Assessment by the end of Year 3 and will require the Trust to utilize a
national recognized benchmarking service for example APSE as part of it's Value for
Money agenda/improvement plan. A recognised benchmarking service will be used to
review the Council’s performance against other local authorities and be used to guide
future service delivery, development and investment. The external cost of the
benchmarking service will be met by the Council.

Annual customer and resident surveys will also be used to assess service quality and
the Trust will be required to co-operate with the delivery of these assessments
periodically.

Page 23




N BN N B N =N N =N =B EH =N

' - =S

A customer and complaints system should also be operated by the Trust and the
results should be presented to the Council on a six (6) monthly basis.

Desired Outcome

Measures

Target

Current
Score

Delivering a high
quality customer
focused service.

Quest score

Customer satisfaction
survey

To achieve a 4% increase to
the Dolphin Centre QUEST
score at each of the first two
reaccreditation reviews.

A local customer satisfaction
score of over 95% within 2
Years of the
Commencement Date.

1%

85%

Effective & efficient
delivery of the
service.

Customer complaints
and verbal feedback
system

User Forum

To reduce customer
complaints month on month.
To increase the number of
positive comments received
month on month.

Meetings undertaken at
least twice per year and
feedback is taken into
account in the annual
service improvement plan.

Page 24



Desired Outcome

Measures

Target

Current
Score

A well maintained,
safe and healthy
environment in which
to work or spend
leisure time.

Number of accidents
recorded staff & public

Number of RIDDOR
reportable accidents
recorded

Formulation and
provision of a planned
maintenance programme

Health & Safety
Management

To reduce the number of
accidents by 5% year on year.

Recording and reporting
promptly any RIDDOR
reportable accidents

To reduce the number of hours
of service delivery lost due to
maintenance down time, split
into planned and reactionary.

Full compliance with all
maintenance based legislation
for example PAT testing.

Health & Safety Management
score for QUEST to increase at
each reassessment
undertaken.

100% of Risk Assessment (RA)
completed in line with the
annual RA schedule.

74
(2009/10)

100%

6/10

Customers receive a
professional and
appropriate service
from all Trust staff.

All new staff receive an
induction within 1 week
of their start date.

Formulate and review a
training plan for all staff.

Weekly, monthly and
annual training
requirements identified
and programmed in to
staff training
sessions/schedule.

100% of new staff receiving
inductions within 1 week of
start date.

All staff to have individual
PDR'’s and effective training
programmes in place within
three (3) months of
commencing work.

90% of staff attending sessions
to meet the operational
requirements of the Dolphin
Centre (trained to do the job).

In the absence of baseline figures, comparisons will be made on a year on year basis (Ist year
figures will act as the base line figures)

Page 25




Increased participation and accessibility.

The Council particularly wishes resources to be targeted at under represented groups
to widen access to sport and to increase uptake and usage at the Dolphin Centre.

These groups shall be defined as:-

5.2.1 Over50’s.

5.2.2 Ethnic Minorities.

5.2.3 Those in receipt of benefits.
5.2.4 Disabled.

5.2.5 Children & Young People
5.2.6 Females

The Council also wishes to use sport as a tool to tackle social inclusion, health
inequalities, community cohesion including anti-social behaviour and improving health
and well being generally. As such, the Council and the Trust will work together to
develop greater opportunities for residents in these areas.

As part of this objective the Trust shall also establish and operate, at least twice yearly
a user panel/forum which will be used to review the operation of the service and future
improvements that may be possible at the Dolphin Centre. The Trust will require that
the forum has equal representation from all of the above-named groups in order to
reflect the needs of the whole community. For the avoidance of doubt, the groups to
be reflected on the forum shall be subject to variation by the Council at any time after
having consulted with the Trust.

Page 26



e Ee R R R OB B M BN EN B HN BN =BHEB =BEBE B B B B B

5.3

Desired Outcome

Measures

Target

A service that is accessible
and used by all.

For each of the priority
groups provide a
quarterly report
detailing the following
participation
information :-

% breakdown of the
Dolphin Centre’s
usage

% break down of the
programme provided.

% uptake of the
programme.

Provide a demographic
profile of users of the
Dolphin Centre

Ensure that a user
forum is set up.

That the % of the users
reflect the % breakdown of
the community.

Quarterly

Meets twice per year and
includes representatives
from the priority groups.

Equitable use of sports
facilities.

Number of visits by
target groups.

% breakdown of visits
by targets groups
against overall visits.

5% overall annual increase
in participation by the end of
Year 2.

2% year on year increase in
usage by the end of Year 2.

:

Increased participation.

Attendance information
overall, wet, dry and
key activities for
example swimming
courses.

5% overall annual increase
in participation by the end of
Year 2.

2% year on year increase in
usage thereafter.

Continuous improvement and service reviews

The Council will carry out an annual review of the Trust both from a performance
management perspective and to ensure that the Trust is working within the agreed
boundaries of the grant Conditions contained herein.

Page 27



The Council in addition to carrying out their own surveys will have the right to review
the survey and qualitative information collected by the Trust from service users and
local residents.

In areas where there is consistent or wide scale user dissatisfaction the Council will

have the ability to request the Trust to address such issues within the Operational and
Business Plans.

 Desired Outcomes Measures ]

The provision of a customer Carry out regular performance
orientated service which responds to reviews.
market forces where appropriate

Qualitative assessment of customer
satisfaction surveys

Improvements in residents
satisfaction as shown by the Place
Survey results.

Sustainability of use

The Council requires the Trust to operate in a sustainable manner consistent with the
Council’'s environmental objectives which have been disclosed to the Trust.

The Council requires the Trust to prépare an energy conservation plan and to secure
annual reductions in energy, water and consumables. The Trust will be expected to
reduce its energy consumption as measured against its first 12 monthly usage figures.
If the Trust fails to reduce its energy consumption the Council reserves the right to
reduce the grant by the cost of the energy used in excess of the previous 12 months
consumption, unless there are mitigating reasons for the increased use.

The Council will also encourage the Trust to follow an ethical & sustainable
procurement process to integrate environmental and social considerations into ‘the
purchasing process with the goal of reducing adverse impacts upon health, social
conditions and the environment, thereby saving valuable costs for public sector
organisations and the community at large. Sustainable procurement forms a key part of
the aim to support sustainable development by the public bodies.

The Trust agree to assist the Council in meeting its obligations in respect of Carbon

Reduction Reporting and any similar obligations that may arise during the term of this
grant arrangement insofar as they relate to the Dolphin Centre.

Page 28



71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

When purchasing assets, supplies or services the Trust will be expected to take into
account a number of factors including:

a) The entire life cycle of products.

b) Environmental aspects: - the effects on the environment that the assets,
supplies and/or services have over the whole lifecycle (Green Procurement).

Cc) Social aspects: - the effects on issues such as poverty eradication, inequality in
the distribution of resources, labour conditions, human rights and fair-trade.

d) Sustainable or recycled materials/products.

e) Recycling policies for disposables.

Concession Cards and Other Specialised Use

The Trust is required to operate the Council’s approved concession card scheme i.e. a
50% concession reduction shall be given to those on income support, job seekers
allowance, those over 60, students and disabled users and their carers. The Trust are
at liberty to operate any other enhanced discount scheme from time to time it sees fit
but agrees to publicise it widely and fairly to all eligible persons.

The Trust shall, having due regard to its obligations under Condition 17, ensure that
financial information and records are kept relating to the operation of the leisure card
scheme and provide within 2 weeks of the end of each quarter a summary of such
information and records in a format to be agreed by the Council.

The Trust shall provide free use of the leisure facilities for a maximum of 25 named
county and national standard sports people approved by the Council and notified by
the Council to the Trust from time to time in line with the FANS scheme.

The Council requires and the Trust shall protect a number of hours available to the
Bromsgrove Swimming Club at the Dolphin Centre. The Bromsgrove Swimming Club
currently has use of the swimming pool for 4.5 hrs per week and this must not be
reduced without the prior written consent of the Council.

The Trust will continue to operate the County wide exercise referral service in

partnership with the Hereford & Worcestershire County Sports Partnership and NHS
Worcestershire, as long as this service is externally supported and economically viable.

Page 29



7.6

7.7

7.8

8.1

To provide the existing concession scheme for looked after children within
Worcestershire.

The Council agrees to reimburse the Trust the cost of any parking concession offered
to users of the Dolphin Centre subject to the Trust complying with the terms of the
reimbursement scheme as set out in the Schedule 5.

The Trust agrees to work with the Council's Sports Development team to encourage
and develop sporting activities within the Dolphin Centre. The Trust agree to make
space available at nil or low cost for sports development activities when there is little or
no loss of income to the Trust.

Insurance/Indemnities
The Trust shall take out policies of insurance in respect of:

8.1.1 all computers, equipment, including the Council's gym equipment , furniture
etc for their full replacement value except where, acting reasonably, it can
be shown to be uneconomic to do so:

8.1.2 public and employers' liability (£ N Ml ninimum for each and every
loss), loss or theft of cash, and to maintain a fidelity guarantee policy.

The Trust shall provide evidence upon request that all such insurance policies are
in-force and shall not do or permit anything to be done which may render any
such policy of insurance to be void or voidable.

The Trust are aware that the Council does not insure against flood damage, glazing or
in respect of malicious losses.

The Trust shall:

8.4.1 be liable for and shall indemnify the Council in full against any expense,
liability, loss, claim or proceeding arising under statute or at common law in
respect of personal injury to or death of any person whomsoever or loss of
or damage to property whether belonging to the Council or otherwise or any
claim by any third party arising out of or in the course of or caused or
contributed to by the Trust and/or the performance or non-performance or
delay in performance by the Trust of its obligations under this agreement
except to the extent that the same is due to any negligent act or default of
the Council;

8.4.2 be liable for and shall indemnify the Council against any expense, liability,

changes, loss, claim, costs or proceeding arising as a result of or in
connection with any breach of the terms of this agreement by or otherwise

Page 30




through the default or negligence of the Trust except to the extent that the
same is due to the default or negligence of the Council.

Funding

During the term of the Lease the grant sum payable, subject to any adjustments
needed for utilities, pension and the surplus share will be as follows:

For the period 01/04/2010 to 31/03/2011 — I N

For_the period 01/04/2011 to 31/03/2012 — |EEEG—I R
I

For the period 01/04/2012 to 31/03/2013 - I e
N A

Should the Council not exercise the break option within the Lease the grant sums,
subject to the necessary adjustments for utilities, pension and profit share will be as
detailed below:

For the period 01/04/2013 to 31/03/2014 - G

For the period 01/04/2014 to 31/03/2015 - I

The Council shall, during the term of the Lease indemnify the Trust in respect of any
liability for the payment of National Non Domestic Rates (“‘Rates”) for the Dolphin
Centre. If Rates are payable by the Trust the Council will increase the grant by the
same amount in each year that the Trust shall be liable to pay Rates.

Use of Grant Funding

The first payment of the grant in the sum oﬁI shall be paid by the Council
on the 1% April 2010. This will cover the period of the first 6 months of the agreement.
As from that time the grant will be paid quarterly in advance. _

In respect of the grant period , the parties acknowledge the volatility of the utility market
(gas, water and electricity only) and notwithstanding the fact that amounts will be
attributed for the purchase of such items in the grant funding for each of those Years

13

Page 31



10.3

10.4

the Council agrees, subject to the Trust complying at all times with its obligations under
Condition 10 and Condition 6, to make an adjustment to the grant funding already
awarded for any Year insofar as amounts expended by the Trust for such items,
exceed the amount attributed for that Year. Insofar as any adjustment is made
hereunder at the end of any Year, a balancing payment will be made to the Trust by
the Council within one (1) month of the end of the relevant Year. The Trust and the
Council agree that the payment under this clause exclude any increase in utility costs
which are at or below the Consumer Price Index rate prevailing for the relevant period.
Should the cost of utilities be less that the sum shown in the Business Plan in any year
the Council shall be entitled to receive a refund of that sum within one (1) month of the
end of that year.

The Trust must use the grant wholly and exclusively for the purposes identified within
the Business Plan and as set out in this agreement. This clause shall not apply to any
sum accruing to the Trust under the Surplus Share arrangement set out in Schedule 4.

The Trust shall account for expenditure of the grant and performance of the Business
Plan by:

10.4.1 attending such meetings as may be reasonably required;
10.4.2 providing any information which the Council reasonably requires.

10.4.3 giving the Council full assistance in its discharge of its statutory obligations
and social objectives in relation to the provision of leisure facilities generally

10.4.4 affording the Council reasonable access to the Dolphin Centre, and after
notice to the Managing Director, to the Trust's staff and other records,
subject to the requirements of Condition 17, to enable the Council to monitor
effectively the Trust's compliance with these Conditions relating to the
provision of services..

The Council agrees to meet any additional costs incurred in respect of any contract for
goods or services which is required to be novated into the name of the Trust but which,
through no fault of the Council or the Trust, cannot be novated immediately, in the
amount of funding to be provided hereunder to the Trust.

The Trust must make arrangements to secure continuous improvements in the way in
which the services are delivered at the Dolphin Centre, having regard to a combination
of economy, efficiency, effectiveness and the aims and objectives of the Council set
out in this agreement.

The Trust represents and warrants as a separate warranty and representation to the
Council that:

10.7.1 it is validly existing and has full power to enter into and perform this
agreement;

Page 32



10.7.2 the obligations expressed as being assumed by the Trust under this
agreement constitute valid legal and binding obligations of the Trust
enforceable against the Trust in accordance with their terms;

10.7.3 neither the execution of this agreement by the Trust nor the performance or
observation of any of its obligations under it will conflict with or result in any
breach of any law or enactment or any deed, agreement or other instrument,
obligation or duty to which the Trust is bound:

10.7.4 the Trust is not in default under any law or enactment or under any deed
agreement or other instrument or obligation by which it is bound so as to
affect adversely its ability to perform its obligations under this agreement;

10.7,5 all consents, required in connection with the execution, delivery, issue,
validity or enforceability of this agreement have been obtained and have not
been withdrawn;

10.7.6 no litigation or administrative or arbitration proceeding before any court,
tribunal, Government authority or arbitrator is presently taking place,
pending or (to the knowledge, information and belief of the Trust) threatened
against, or against any of the assets of, the Trust which might have a
material adverse effect on its ability to perform its obligations under this
agreement;

10.7.7 all information documents and accounts of the Trust submitted to the
Council for its appraisal for the purposes of this agreement are true and
accurate and no change has occurred since the date on which such
information was supplied which renders the same untrue or misleading in
any respect and that there has been no material adverse change in the
business, assets, operations or prospects of the Trust since such
information documents and accounts were provided;

10.7.8 the Trust has disclosed to the Council all information which would or might
reasonably be thought to influence the Council in awarding the grant funding
to the Trust or the amount thereof; \

10.7.9 the Trust accepts that nothing in this agreement shall operate to fetter the
exercise of the statutory powers of the Council or constrain or prevent
compliance with its statutory duties or cause any limitation on any of the
powers whatsoever of the Council to be exceeded.

Management Accounts

The Trust shall maintain proper usual and up to date financial accounting records and
shall provide to the Council such financial and other information about the provision of
the services at the Dolphin Centre as the Council may from time to time reasonably
require.

Page 33




12.

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

13.

The Trust will provide a set of management accounts to the Council on a quarterly
basis within 30 days of the quarter end. The accounts will detail actual compared with
budget and is to include known commitments for expenditure and income items. The
format of such accounts shall be agreed from time to time by the parties.

The Trust shall review quarterly together with the Council the management accounts to
identify any respects in which the financial performance varies from the projections in
the Business Plan, and shall take such remedial actions as shall prove necessary. The
Council may reduce or with hold any or all of the next grant payment until the Trust
have carried out any remedial action considered necessary by the Council.

Annual Accounts and Statements

The Trust shall comply at all times with its obligations regarding filings and regulation
with any regulatory authority or body..

The Trust shall provide the Council with the estimated value of any profit share
agreement within 1 calendar month from the end of the relevant Year to which it
relates.

The Trust shall ensure that financial statements relating to the provision of the services
are submitted to the Council within 6 months of the end of the relevant Year to which
they relate.

All financial source documents must be kept by the Trust for at least 6 years from the
end of the relevant Year.

At its discretion the Council may require the submission of audited accounts where this
is not a statutory requirement.

The Trust shall acknowledge grants in its annual report and audited accounts,
indicating the purposes for which the grants were used and the outcome of the
activities.

Equal Opportunities

The Trust shall use all reasonable endeavours to ensure that they:

13.1

13.2

do not discriminate on the grounds of gender, age, race, disability, religion or belief or
sexual orientation in terms of employment and service delivery. The only exception to
this will be where it is lawful (i.e. genuine occupational qualifications as allowed under
Section 5 of the Race Relations Act 1976 and Section 7 of the Sex Discrimination Act
1975);

comply with all employment and human rights legislation and have regard to any codes
of practice published by the Equal Opportunities Commission, the Commission for

Page 34




1
1
1
n
ue
7
1
"
1
n
|
|
_
i

13.3

13.4

14.

14.1

14.2

14.3

15.

Racial Equality, the Department for Employment and Learning, the Disability Rights
Commission or other similar agencies in relation to equal opportunities in employment
and service delivery;

demonstrate a commitment to the elimination of unlawful discrimination on the grounds
of gender, age, race, colour, nationality, class, disability, religion or belief or sexual
orientation as service providers, by providing and ensuring equality of access to
services. The Trust may offer services to a specific group where this is part of the
Trust’s objectives.

In regard to the above Conditions, the Council requires the Trust to have written
policies and practices for implementing and developing equal opportunities e.g.
recruitment practices, promotion and training etc. To this end, the Trust will be required
to complete an annual equal opportunities audit detailing the type of services provided,
the profile of clientele, and the profile of the existing workforce. Council officers may
from time to time conduct an independent equalities audit of the Trust, and may
request from you additional information in relation to the operation of the Trust’s equal
opportunities procedures

Trade Union Membership

In respect of Trade Union Membership and Regulations, the Trust will ensure that,
each individual member of its staff should be given an opportunity to be a member of a
trade union and for the time being for the purpose of collective bargaining UNISON
should be recognised for consultation.

In respect of recruitment for the time being the Trust will include the following form of
words in all letters of appointment of employees:

"Wychavon Leisure Community Association Limited supports the principle of union
membership and believes in solving industrial relation problems by discussion and
agreement. You have the right to join any union of your choice.

In implementing the preceding Condition, the Council reminds the Trust, as an
employer, that it is unlawful to refuse employment to a person because s/he is not a
member of a trade union, or refuses to accept any other union membership
requirement The relevant legislation sets out the circumstances in which an employer
is regarded as having refused employment to an individual.

Council Representation

The Trust must participate fully in setting up a Partnership Board which will meet on at
least a quarterly basis to consider matters relevant to the grant funding Conditions and
obligations. The Board will consist of the Council's Portfolio Holder, the Head of
Leisure and Cultural Services, one Councillor (to be advised), a user representative
and the Managing Director of the Trust. For the avoidance of doubt this Board shall
not have any powers to direct the Trust as to how it uses any grant funding supplied

Page 35



- E B B B B SRR EEEERmEEEEEE R R S

16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

17.

18.

hereunder but it shall be able to make suggestions for expenditure or operational
changes.

Rights of Access and Information

The Trust shall allow access by Council officers and auditors to the Dolphin Centre to
inspect financial and other records relating to the provision of the services at the
Dolphin Centre except those subject to legal professional privilege, at any reasonable
time, and provide additional information as requested, including, without limitation, your
personal procedures for recruitment of persons who have unsupervised contact with
children and young persons under the age of eighteen or with vulnerable adults.

The Trust shall also make available to the Council’s officers or Auditors any information
it its possession relating to the Dolphin Centre upon request.

The Trust will allow Council auditors (internal or external) to take copies (whether in
print or electronic form) of such of its financial and other records which it is required to
make available under Condition 16.1 above.

The Trust shall notify Council auditors (whether internal or external) of any
circumstances which could give rise to allegations of fraud or misconduct by any
person in the application of this grant.

Data Protection

The Trust and the Council will comply with their respective obligations under the Data
Protection Act 1998 (‘the 1998 Act”) and the Computer Misuse Act 1990 insofar as
performance of this agreement gives rise to obligations under those Acts.

The parties shall ensure that they do nothing knowingly or negligently which places the
other in breach of their obligations under the 1998 Act

Compliance with Statutory Requirements

The Trust shall note the Council’s current and future statutory obligations including but
not limited to the Freedom of Information Act 2000, Human Rights Act 1998, Disability
Discrimination Act 1995, Race Relations Act 1976, the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act
1974, the Police Act 1997, the Protection of Children Act 1999 and the Criminal Justice
and Courts Services Act 2000 ( as amended from time to time) and any codes of
practice issued by the Government and appropriate enforcement agencies.

The Trust shall assist the Council in its compliance with its obligations under these
provisions and comply with any reasonable request from the Council for that purpose.

Page 36



|

19. Relationship with the Council

The Trust shall acknowledge Council funding provided pursuant to this agreement in all its
publicity material by:

19.1 ensuring that all published material, stationery and vehicles displaying the Trust's
name and/ or logo states that the Trust is working in partnership with the Council and
that the approved Council logo is displayed:

19.2 if required by the Council displaying on any site managed or used by the Trust a sign
or signs stating that the Trust is supported by funding from the Council and showing
the approved Council logo;

19.3 ensuring that no material is displayed on any premises which may in the reasonable
opinion of the Council materially offend any resident(s) within the district or cause
embarrassment to the Council and shall remove any such offensive material forthwith
at the request of the Council;

19.4 ensuring that all requests for interviews, statements and comments regarding Council
policy shall be referred to the Contact Officer;

19.5 ensuring that the Trust do not allow the carrying on of car boot sales or entertainment
of an adult nature and by limiting its trading activities to those which are ancillary to its
charitable objects .

20. Compliance with Grant Conditions

If the Trust do not comply fully with these Conditions of grant, or do not use the grant for the
purpose for which it is given, future grant aid may be withdrawn and the Trust may be
required to repay part or all of the grant it has received to date.

Grant payments may be suspended while the Council investigates the affairs of the Trust.
Such investigation must be carried out promptly and expeditiously so as to keep the time
period that grant is suspended to a minimum. The grant is to be spent as agreed and on time.

The Council agrees that in complying with the terms and conditions contained within this
agreement the Trust shall not be required to provide or deploy any resources beyond those
identified in the Business Plan save where otherwise expressly agreed to do so.

21. Disputes

In the case of any dispute between the parties relating to this agreement the Chief Executive
of the Council and the Managing Director of the Trust, or their nominated representatives
shall meet together as soon as reasonably practicable after the relevant dispute has arisen,

Page 37




S &S = = T W = N N N OB OB O B O B O e . e o

but in any event within forty eight (48) hours thereof in good faith with the intention of
resolving the dispute.

Should the dispute remain unresolved after 14 days of the referal it is agreed that both parties
shall agree the appointment of an adjudicator within 28 days whose decision shall be binding
on both parties. Should the Council and Trust fail to agree on the appointment of the
Adjudicator then either party may take action through the courts as they deem necessary.

22. Insolvency, dissolution and transfer of engagements

The Council may require the Trust to repay all or part of the grant if it is of the opinion acting
reasonably that:

22.1 the Trust have stopped payment to creditors where there are no genuine commercial
reasons for doing so or if it is unable to repay any of its debts;

22.2 the Trust’'s members are likely to dissolve the Trust:

22.3 the Trust have a receiver, administrative receiver, liquidator or potential liquidator
appointed over all or any part of the Trust’s assets:

22.4 the Trust have or are about to enter into an arrangement with its creditors;
22.5 some action is or is about to be taken to terminate the Trust's business;

22.6 anevent has or is about to take place which would entitle the appointment of a receiver
over the Trust's assets or which would cause any floating charge on your assets to
crystallise;

22.7 a petition has been presented and not discharged within seven days or an order made
or a resolution passed for the Trust's winding up or a meeting has been commenced
for the purpose of winding up;

:

22.8 an administration order in respect of the Trust has been made or a petition for such an
order presented and not discharged within seven days;

22.9 the Trust have ceased or threatened to cease for any reason to carry on business; and

22.10 the Trust are about to effect a transfer of your engagements to any other person,
without the prior approval of the Council, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

23.  Trust Objectives

It is recognised that the Trust's principal objectives are as set out in its Memorandum
and Articles of Association documents. In the event of conflict between the Council’s
strategic aims and the Trust's charitable objects it is acknowledged by both parties that

20

Page 38




24,

25,

26.
26.1

26.2

26.3

nothing in this agreement shall require the Trust to act contrary to its charitable objects.
In such circumstances the parties will meet as soon as reasonably practicable to
determine an altemative acceptable course of action.

Dealing with this Agreement

The Trust agrees and covenants with the Council that this agreement is personal to the
Trust who shall not, without the prior written consent of the Council (in its absolute
discretion), assign, transfer, charge or deal in any other manner with this agreement or
its rights under it or part of it, or purport to do any of the same, or sub-contract any or
all of its obligations under this agreement. Any such consent if given, may be made
subject to any conditions which the Council considers necessary.

Reputation of the Council

The Trust shall not, and shall use all its reasonable endeavours to procure that its
suppliers and contractors shall not, knowingly do or omit to do, anything in relation to
this agreement, or in the course of their other activities, that may bring the standing of
the Council into disrepute or attract adverse publicity for the Council.

Confidentiality

Unless the parties otherwise agree, this agreement and all documents and information
provided under or in connection with the performance of this agreement or during its
negotiation shall be treated as confidential (“Confidential Information”). The
Confidential Information shall not be used by either party except for the purposes for
which they were made available and Confidential Information shall not be disclosed by
either party to any other person without the prior written consent of the party who
disclosed or provided the information. The parties shall use all reasonable endeavours
to ensure that their employees, agents and sub-contractors are under a similar
obligation of confidentiality in respect of Confidential Information. The above restriction
shall not apply to Confidential Information which:

26.1.1 the party wishing to disclose can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the party
who disclosed the information that it is already in the public domain other
than as a result of a breach of this Condition 26; or

26.1.2 is disclosed to the party wishing to disclose without any obligation of
confidence by a third party who has not derived it directly or indirectly from
the party who disclosed the information; or

26.1.3 is trivial or cannot reasonably be considered to be confidential.

The obligations of confidentiality contained in this Condition 26 shall continue after the
expiry or termination of this agreement howsoever occasioned.

Nothing in this agreement shall prevent the parties from disclosing any information
which either party in its absolute discretion considers it is required to disclose in order

21

Page 39



- N E N O B O - O - = - o

26.4

26.5

27.

28.

to comply with the Freedom of Information Act and any other statutory requirements
whether or not existing at the date of this agreement, provided always, that the parties
shall, where reasonably practicable, seek to collaborate in relation to any Requests for
Information with a view to treating such requests in a consistent manner as between
the parties.

If a party (the “Recipient”) shall at any time notify the other party (the “Assistor”) that it
has received a Request for Information in respect of which the Recipient requires the
Assistor’s assistance then:

26.4.1 the Assistor shall at its own cost provide and procure that its sub-contractors
(which expression shall for the purposes of this Condition 26 include the
Trust where the Assistor is the Trust) use reasonable endeavours to provide
all necessary assistance required by the Recipient in order to allow the
Recipient to comply with the Request for Information within the period or
periods when it is obliged to respond to the Request for Information;

26.4.2 without limitation to the foregoing the Assistor shall at its own cost within five
working days of request supply and procure that its sub-contractors supply
to the Recipient such information and documents requested by the Recipient
in such form as reasonably prescribed by the Recipient; and

26.4.3 the Assistor shall ensure that all Information produced in the course of the
provision of any of the services at the Dolphin Centre and/or this agreement
is retained for disclosure and shall permit the Recipient to inspect such
records as required from time to time.

In the event that either party shall at any time receive any Request for Information
relating to the services at any of the Dolphin Centre or this agreement or any activities
or business of such party then such party shall supply the Request for Information to
the other party as soon as reasonably practicable after receipt.

Status of Trust

)

27.1 In carrying out its obligations under this agreement the Trust agrees that it will
be acting on its own account as principal and not as the agent or partner of the
Council.

27.2 The Trust shall not say or do anything which may pledge the credit of or

otherwise bind the Council or that may lead any other person to believe that the Trust
is acting as the agent of the Council.

Notices

22

Page 40




—_— —-_— —— —— s - — — i ] (onm— ) - — _— _— k1 — = ey B

28.1

29,

29.1

29.2

29.3

30.
30.1

30.2

30.3

30.4

Any written notice required to be served under this agreement shall in the absence of
evidence to the contrary be deemed to be served if sent by pre-paid recorded delivery
post:

28.1.1 to the Council at The Council House, Burcott Lane, Bromsgrove, B60 1AA
marked for the attention of The Chief Executive ;

28.1.2 to the Trust at Pershore Leisure Centre, King Georges Way, Pershore,
marked for the attention of the Managing Director.

Value Added Tax

The parties believe that this agreement does not constitute a supply or an agreement
to supply services by the Trust and that the payment of any grant funding by the
Council under this agreement is outside the scope of Value Added Tax.

The Trust will ensure that no supply of services is made by the Trust which may lead to
the payment of any grant funding by the Council under this agreement falling within the
scope of Value Added Tax.

All sums or other consideration payable to or provided by the Trust to the Council at
any time shall be deemed to be exclusive of all Value Added Tax payable and where
any such sums become payable or due or other consideration is provided the Trust
shall at the same time or as the case may be on demand by the Council in addition to
such sums or other consideration pay to the Council all the Value Added Tax so
payable upon the receipt of a valid Value Added Tax invoice.

Miscellaneous

Nothing in this agreement shall constitute a partnership or joint venture between the
parties hereto or constitute the Trust as the agent of the Council for any purpose
whatsoever. The use of partnership shall be limited to that of cooperative or
collaborative working. ;

A certificate by the Council as to any sum payable hereunder by the Trust shall be
conclusive save in the case of manifest error.

This agreement may only be varied, save as otherwise provided, by agreement in
writing by the parties.

If at any time any of the provisions of this agreement become illegal, invalid or
unenforceable in any respect under any law or regulation of any jurisdiction, neither the

legality, validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions of this agreement shall be
in any way affected or impaired as a result.

23

Page 41




30.5

30.6

30.7

30.8

30.9

30.10

No failure or delay on the part of the Council in exercising any right or power and no
course of dealing between the parties hereto shall operate as a waiver nor shall any
single or partial exercise of any right or power of the Council prevent any other or
further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right or power of the Council. The
rights and remedies of the Council are cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or
remedies which the Council would otherwise have.

Nothing contained in or done under this agreement and no consents given by the
Council shall prejudice the Council’s rights, powers or duties and/or obligations in the
exercise of its functions or under any statutes, bye-laws, instruments orders or
regulations.

Nothing in this agreement shall confer any rights or obligations on any person who has
not executed this agreement nor shall the consent of any person who has not so
executed this agreement be needed to make any modification, amendment, variation
or release of the terms hereof. The parties to this agreement expressly agree for the
purposes of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 that they do not intend any
person other than a party to this agreement to be able to enforce any term of this
agreement.

This agreement and the documents referred to in it, constitute the entire agreement
between the parties and supersede and replace any previous agreement,
understanding, representation or arrangement of any nature between the parties
relating to the subject matter of this agreement.

This agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and each counterpart
shall, when executed be an original of this agreement and all counterparts together
shall constitute one instrument.

This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the Law of
England.

24

Page 42



ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT CONDITIONS

We accept the grant detailed in this agreement on the terms and conditions set out in this

document, which we confirm the Trust will observe.

On behalf of Wychavon Leisure Community Association Limited

To be signed by two Management Board Members

Signature

Name (please print)

sgs . . . 1] :ﬁ i r,.mwzh e T
Position in Organisation ot SlE e i |
Address MAWCTE F7e coT o
24 HAn ST,
(D loneU bt
NPT VTS
Date ... KN RN PASTE

We approve payment of the grant on the above Conditions

On behalf of Bromsgrove District Council

Signature

Position in Organisation HEeAO

f 20010
Date Lok s 200

25

Page 43

STUART MEGARRY

G ErSHAM Hrce

SERSHORE

Ve kO ¢ UL tlau AMinel

A Dot AT Se i uel -

Ri- 3. e



Ja—

Legal power for grant - Section 19(3) Local Government (Miscellaneous Provision) Act 1976

Grant Reference WLCAL / Grant
(to be quoted in all correspondence)

Contact Officer for this grant John Godwin

Contact Officer Tel no. 01527 881730

26

Page 44




SCHEDULE 1
The Business Plan

estimates (1.12.09) 2010/11

2011/12 201213

2013/14

2014/15

EXPENDITURE Corporate
£

Employees
salary costs
crb checks
recruitment
training
uniforms

travel & subsistence
Total Employees

Premises

planned maintenance
repair & maintenance
nndr

gas

electricity

water

grounds maintence

Total Premises

Supplies & Services

equipment hire
new equipment
depreciation
licence fees

refuse collection
resaleable goods
chemicals/cleaning
phone,fax,modem
office supplies
computer costs
equipment maitenance

marketing
Total Supplies &

Page 45




Services

support services
insurance
legal/professional
central support

Total Support

Services

TOTAL
EXPENDITURE

INCOME

Treasury Interest
memberships/fitness
swimming pool
sports hall
resaleables

café rent

misc sales,sc85

TOTAL INCOME ._

Operational
Surplus/Deficit

excludes central support
and depriciation line

Overall
Surplus/Deficit

Page 46



SCHEDULE 2
OPENING TIMES

The Dolphin Leisure Centre Bromsgrove

The minimum opening hours shall be :

Monday to Thursday 7.15am to 10.30 pm
Friday 7.15 am to 9.00 pm
Saturday 8.30 am to 8.30 pm
Sunday 8.30 am to 9.00 pm

The above centre will be closed New Years Day, Christmas Day and Boxing Day. All other
Bank Holidays will be subject to reduced opening hours (to be agreed with the Council’s Head
of Leisure and Cultural Services), apart from Good Friday which is subject to normal opening
hours.

29

Page 47



e RSN R R B EHEBEE BB B BEEEEEE S

SCHEDULE 3

CURRENT RANGE OF ACTIVITIES

Dolphin Leisure Centre

Facility provider for sport, gym and swimming

Venue hire

Club use (competitive and non competitive)

Casual bookings

Play and play use

School and college use

Pre school activities

Training/meeting venue

Extensive term and holiday courses and activities for children and adults
Varied programme of activities

Children’s parties

Vending operations

Fitness classes

GP referral scheme (in partnership with Primary Care Trust)
Health improvement activity sessions and courses

Seminar venue

Vocational / training courses

30

Page 48




SCHEDULE 4

DEALING WITH OPERATING SURPLUSES

For the purposes of this agreement the following terms have the meanings set out below:

“‘Surplus” shall mean an operating surplus from the operation of the Dolphin Centre
after taking into account all expenses and liabilities incurred in providing
any services at the Dolphin Centres and the grant funding provided
hereunder. Reference shall be made to the Business Plan for the
relevant Year

“‘Agreed Share” shall mean in the ratio 50:50 after the first INEEEER of Surplus. The first
I of Surplus is acknowledged as belonging to the Trust.

Insofar as there is a Surplus in any Year as evidenced in either a Business Plan, a grant
application, or in the annual statement of account to be produced by the Trust to the Council
hereunder (in particular such statement as is required pursuant to Condition 12.2) then the
value of such Surplus shall be reflected in the grant funding to be granted to the Trust for the
Year following the Year in which the Surplus was generated so as to reduce the amount of
such grant funding and shall be reduced by an amount equal to the Agreed Share of the
relevant Surplus.

For the avoidance of doubt, insofar as in any Year the level of grant funding has already been
agreed between the parties without a clear understanding of the relevant level of Surplus for
the previous Year then an adjustment shall be made to the grant funding payable over the
relevant Year to take account of the Agreed Share of the relevant Surplus.

In respect of the final Year (being either Year 3 or 5) the Trust shall pay to the Council by the
30" June any Surplus payment due the Council. In the case of any dispute or disagreement

as to the sum due the Dispute Resolution clause contained within the Transfer Agreement of
even date shall apply.

31

Page 49



SCHEDULE 5
Reimbursement of Parking Charges

The Council will reimburse the Trust the cost of any parking refunds the Trust makes to
users of the Dolphin Centre which are made in accordance with the Parking Refund Policy
which the Council shall authorise from time to time.

cAcLUv oMM
The Trust will make the refund to the users from its own funds and shall inveice ﬁ:r Council
for the said sum on a monthly basis. The Trust shall keep proper records of all refunds to
support its claim to the Council. The Trust will provide to the Council evidence that the
parking refund has been validly made by collecting the parking voucher from the customer
and by producing evidence that an activity has taken place at the Dolphin Centre.

Upon receipt of a valid claim and the supporting documentation referred to above the Council
shall pay to the Trust the sum due within 10 working days.

The Council may vary the amount of the parking refund or may remove the concession
entirely after giving no less than one months notice to the Trust. The Council accepts and
agrees that the Trust will be entitled to seek additional grant payments if it can demonstrate
that the changes to the parking refund policy have had a detrimental impact on its Business
Plan.

The Council acknowledges that the Business Plan provided by the Trust was based on the
advice of the Council that a parking refund of up to £1.40 per customer visit would be funded
by the Council. The refund scheme in operation from the 1/04/2010 has a maximum refund of
£0.70 per customer. It is therefore agreed by the Council that the Trust are entitled to seek
additional grant support from the Council if the reduction in the parking refund has a material
effect on the Business Plan.

32

Page 50




L1€79 [10EYE [enjoy a)uan Sl
reeve |602'2€ |9s0've 106.B 1 W uiydiog|  suyo
aunp Aep Judy
LL/0102 - @Besn uiydjog
L0vS51y | esiee | zr09e | gos'sz | es8'6e | sosse | sovve | se6L0e | teeve | eseee | o9gese  eisee RN 21U
ov2'v | seLzv | seszv | secsy | osssy | scesy  eelor  elise €16 €16 €166 /166 | 18biel W uiydiog €0S
yosepy Alenuge4  Asenuep Jaquiada( JOQqWBAON  18goloQ Jequisldes 1snbne Anp aunp Aely Judy 01/600¢2 - abesn uiydjoqg

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



Agenda ltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 19 JULY 2010

MAY (PERIOD 2) PERFORMANCE REPORTING

Relevant Portfolio Holder Clir Roger Hollingworth

Relevant Head of Service Hugh Bennett, Director of Policy,

Performance and Partnerships

Non-Key Decision

1.

1.1

21

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

3.1

3.2

SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

To report to The Board on the Council’s performance at 31 May 2010

(period 2).

RECOMMENDATIONS

That The Board notes that 61% of Pls are stable or improving.

That The Board notes that that 45% of PI’s that have a target are meeting

their target as at the month end and 85% are projected to meet their target

at the year end.

That The Board notes the performance figures for May 2010 as set out in

Appendix 2.

That The Board notes the particular areas of improvement as summarised

in section 4.2.

That The Board notes the PI's of particular concern as set out in section 4.3.

BACKGROUND

The full list of performance indicators due to be reported monthly is set out

in Appendix 2 where:-
On Target | Performance is Improving
Less than 10% from target S | Performance is Stable
More than 10% from target W | Performance is Worsening
No target set N/a | No target set

Comparisons of overall performance improvements this month to last month

are shown on Appendix 1.

Page 53




BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 19 JULY 2010
4. KEY ISSUES
4.1 The proportion of PI's that have met their monthly target is lower than usual

4.2

4.3

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

9.2

at 45%.
There is no performance worthy of particular mention this month.

There are no particular individual indicators of specific concern. However
the overall picture with the majority of indicators not meeting their target in
May is concerning, particularly when coupled with the fact that only 61% of
indicators are stable or improving and 39% are declining. The overall
position has worsened slightly since April. On the other hand, this is only
the second month of the year and therefore there is time for performance to
be improved and brought up to target.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

None

COUNCIL OBJECTIVES

Performance reporting & management links to the Improvement objective

RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY
CONSIDERATIONS

The main risks associated with the details included in this report are:

¢ Data quality problems
¢ Poor performance

These risks are being managed as follows:

¢ Implementation of the Data Quality Strategy
¢ Robust follow up on performance issues, including performance clinics

Page 54



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 19 JULY 2010

9.3 There are no Health & Safety considerations

10.

10.1

1.

11.1

12.

12.1

13.

13.1

14.

141

15.

15.1

16.

16.1

17.

17.1

18.

18.1

CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS

Performance Improvement is a Council Objective

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

None.

VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET
MANAGEMENT

None

CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY

None

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS

None

GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

Sound performance management and data quality are key to achieving
improved scores in the Use of resources judgement. This performance
report supports that aim.

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF
CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998

None

HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

None

LESSONS LEARNT

Not applicable

Page 55



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD

19 JULY 2010

19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

19.1 None

20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT

Portfolio Holder No
Chief Executive No
Executive Director (S151 Officer) No
Executive Director — Leisure, Cultural, No
Environmental and Community Services

Executive Director — Planning & Regeneration, | No
Regulatory and Housing Services

Director of Policy, Performance and Yes
Partnerships

Head of Service No
Head of Resources No
Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic No
Services

Corporate Procurement Team No

21. WARDS AFFECTED

All

22. APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Performance Summary for the period.
Appendix 2 Detail Performance report for the period.
Appendix 3 Detailed figures to support the performance report.

23. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Page 56



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 19 JULY 2010

24,

None

KEY

Pl - Performance Indicator

NI - National Indicator ( a Pl defined by government and used by all

Councils)

LPI - Local Performance Indicator — (a PI defined by Bromsgrove, District
Council to measure performance on local priorities)

CAA - Corporate Area Assessment — the methodology used by the Audit
Commission to judge the performance of Councils and partners

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name: John Outhwaite, Senior Policy & Performance Officer
email: j.outhwaite@bromsgrove.gov.uk

Tel:

(01527) 881602

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



‘poliad siy} paiodal s101edIpUl JO Jaquinu [e10} 8y}

Jou ‘pouiad siyl 9|ge|IeAR S| BlEp JUBAS|SJ YDIYM O} SI0IBDIpUl JO Jaquinu ay} jo abeiuasiad syl s umoys ainbiy ebeusosad ay| - €
"9peW aq Jouued suosuedwod alaym Junod Blep ou, dYl Ul papnjoul 8q |[IM SIo1edipul 8say | “(awnjoA |eo Ajlyluow "B-8) sainseaw AjAioe ase

SJay10 ‘Jeah sy} siojedipul mau ale Aayl asnedaq siablie] aABY 10U Op SWOS 82UBISUI 0} ‘Sjuswa|e aouewIoad 8yl ||e 8ABY JOU Op SJ0JEDIpUI Y} JO BWOS - 2
‘(a1qereae awooaq Aayl usym uo Buipuadap - spouiad juaiayip ul Inq) Ajjenuue awos ‘Ajieenb swos

‘Alyjuow payodal ale SI0JedIpUl SWOS Sk AJeA |Im siyl ‘porad siy} Joy g Xipuaddy ul pajodal sioyedlpul Jo Jaquinu [ejo} ayi smoys ainbiy siyl - |

SOI0N
oy F_oo_h.wn_ SIY} _ov Fuo_hma_ sy} payiodal —ov Fuo_hma_ sy} payiodal
pauodal sio1eaipuj Jo Jaquinp [e1ol $10]e21pUu| JO JaqWINN [e10L $10]e2IpUu| JO JaqWINN [eloL
/ ,E¥ep ON i -€1ep ON
%0 0 %01 uey) aiow Aq 106aey) buissifo-0c  for %01 uey} aiow Aq jab.ey Buissin /. ejep oN
%S| g %01 uey} sso| Aq 1ebue) Buissinlovz |8 %01 uey} ssa| Aq 1ob.e} Buissin|o6¢ _MF Buuipag
%58 8¢ 196.e} uO|%SY G| 1964e) uo|% 19 4 *a|qe)s 1o Buinoidwy
-o6e% | ON -o6e% | ON -obe% | ‘oN
uin)nQ pajewis3y aoueuwnopad (Aepy) Ajyiuop
L1/01L002 (Ae) g poliad - AHVININNS
(0% F_oo_h.wn_ sIy} 04 Fuo_hma_ sy} payiodal —o Fuo_hma_ sy} umto%:_
pauodal sio01eaipuj Jo Jaquinp [e1ol $10]e2IpUu| JO J3quInN [el0L $10]e2IpUu| JO JaqWINN [el0L
g -21ep ON 0 -€1ep ON
%0 0 %01 uey} aiow Aq jabie} BuissiNgu%.9z 6 %01 ueyy aiow Aq jab.ey Buissin /u ejep oN
%l 14 %01 ueyy sso| Aq 1a6ae) Buissiniossl o %01 uey) ssa| Aq 1ob.ey Buissiy /U Buiuippag
%68 L€ 1964e} uO|%9s 6| 1eb.e} uo /U *a|qe)s 4o Buinoidwy
-o6e% | ON -o6e% | ‘ON -o6e% | ‘ON
uin)nQ pajewis3y aoueuwnopad (judy) Ajyuop
L1L/0L002 (111dy) | pouad - AHVINWNS

I XION3ddV

Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



‘Buninooo

90Ud}J0 8} Juanaid 0} sainseaw

10J1U09 Janaq uswsa|dwi 0} suonels josad
Aq yoeoudde ajes0diod e saiinbai saouayo
Bunyig ~yoeJ] uo yoeq sourwIouad

siyl 1no djay 01 Jeah ay} Jo Japurewal

a1 Jano Janljap o} uejd uonoe ue

9yea.0 0} sanss| yjoq Je 300 o} Buesw aq| AN G2Y'S 992's 186 088 g8y eey /816 | o W awo [eloy
M 4S9 ayl pue sanuoud 4S9 aJe sanssl
OM] 111} 8y “Bunjig Se umouy| osje - BaJe
eyl M 8yl ul suonels |os1ad 1e JuswAed
INOYLIM }JO ¥BW pUB SWLID SJOIYSA ‘DWLID
us|oIA 0} anp Ajjueuiwopaid si Siy] arep
01 Jeak 10b.e] Jano awld 0} Ajuannd
S| Jojeodipul 8ouewIopad awu) [elo |
S$99IA19S AHUnwwo)
104 a|qeIeAR 10U S2INBIY s/8'9z1< | sugtozi< || eu | e B/ 626'52 1 | G/8'92) wmﬁr S | W | o ne) stosry ey oo s s )
'SuU01199]|02 BulpAoal a1am g6 pue W
9]SeMm pjoyasnoy alam | ‘8lsem COU._NO 00G‘L 00G‘} — 182 0G2 /91 (ST AR J0LL o) N 5UO}}03||00 BlSEM PBSSILI 40 JSqUINN| - (S
8J8M 9g YJIYM JO Su01108]|00 PessIN 0¢ o
"ael 109881 9,0 | wnuwixew e 0} }i Buionpai
10 WIe 8y} Yum passalppe aq 0} anp h
SI siy} - Jue|d LOSIAUT U} Ylm SONss| 0} 00°0¥ 00°0¥ | 800V | 98¥ l9'ge | 082y vie | o W o %Mwommmwﬂﬁ,w_“mwhw“ 261 IN
anp ajel 1098[a1 9%,0g e 0} 108lgns Ajjualind
aJe BuloAoas pa|buiwod 1o} sebeuuo |
186181 UIyUIM 8g pjnom
yoiym ‘Bxyge punose aq [im ainbiy Aepy ayy
payewise st} 4o psjau pue pepiaoid aie . . . . . . . () pioyssnoy
asey) UsyM “A1unod Aq papiroid usaq 00'8.S 00'8.S | 9'/[6 | 6£°G6 68'2S WA €L18s| o [ 1od 815eM PIOSSNOH [ENPISaY 16LIN
194 10U aney sainbly se s|el0] 8say) ul
papnjoul |1s SI aisem apel| Aep\ pue |udy
juswpedaqg Juswuoliaug
puail®
sjuswwo) 1ebue) winino ‘1s3 1ebue) ﬂmﬂw lenjoy Aepy | 10bue) Aewy H_MH.N lenjoy judy | 18bae) Judy winyno ¢deus | Buniodas
uininQ 1s3 01/600Z Jown) J0 "baig

11/0L002

uonduosaqg

o

(o102 Aen)

20 poLiad Ssi0}edipu| aduew.opad




"sg|luaAn(

BuiAjOAUl SB1I8QQ0J 19811S [9AS] MO

aJe Sa0UB0 Ma} asoy] "Aluenb moj e jo
8 0] 8NUUOI INQ d)ep 0} Jedk pue yuow
sy} 1064e} Jon0 Ajybils ale sauaqgoy

LS

12

"awlD) JUd|0IA 8joe} 01 ueld uonoe Aousbe
-ljInw e dojaAap 03 1snbny ul Bunesw

aJe dsD oyl ‘pajowold Buiaq subredweo
snoueA osfe s alay] ‘sesiwald e

01 1n0 paled Bulag ase syoayo Buisual|
[euoiippe pue dnd PUOAA 8y} Inoybnoiy}
a|doad jusjoIA UMOUS Ylim spjoyasnoy

0} Pa1oNpUod aq ||IM SHSIA SWOH

‘|osred uo s19211J0 %06 Buialb Buike|d

aJe pue|bug sAep uo pa||oouUed Usaq aAey
sAep }sal s,4991)}0 891j0d ||y 'SuolBIge[9D
dn) plop 8y} Buunp awiLo JUS|OIA JequIod
01 suoljesado pue subredwed ‘sjoaloid
Buuaniop Ajuaiind ale diysisunued

Kees Anunwwo) anolbswoig

"a]ep 0} Jeak 1o} pue yjuow ay} Jo}

106Je) JOA0 8Q 0} SONUIRUOD BWIID) JUS|OIA

€90°1

8€0°}

‘ybiy urewsas [jIm Arejbing onsawop 1equiod
0} SHOyo 2lojalay) - 10UISIQ dY} JO SUINSINO
Juan|e 8y} Ul pudyo OYM SI9pUS}O Japlog
-SS0J0 USY0 aJe 819y ‘eale anoibswoig
8y} ulyum Buial] Jou Jo Apoisno ul Jayye
aJe sie|bing oiy1j0id ino o Auew ‘jabiel

uo aq 0} sanuiuod Arebing oisawoq

e

0.€

cl

¥0¢

6L}

44

19

144

$8148qq0J JO Jaquinu 8y ||

L0}

88

9v0l

SBWIIO JUBJOIA JO Jaquinu 8y ||

Page 64

14

0€

Ice

saue|BINg OISBWOP JO Jaquinu dy | |

sjuswwo)

puail®
19bie)
wnuno ‘1s3

wnuno 1s3

10bue]

puail®
19bie)

lenoy Aepy

10bue] Aepy

puail®
10bue]

|enjoy judy

19bue] judy

11/0L002

uinyno
01/6002

¢deug
Jowny

Bunsodas
10 "baiy

uonduosaqg

o




g 10611 8n0Qe SI g Jo uieb 1ou

8.

8.

L

ureb jJou - siaquinu
JBWOISND duljeyIT pasiadsip ajeAld

‘paJinbai Jabuoj ou S| 82IAI8S
a1 papIoap aAey g pue sawoy Buisinu
ojul Juam g ‘Aeme passed siasn 99IAI8S ©

LE}

LE}

"sAepijoy 1821440 pue sAepljoH Muegq
0} anp sem siy] ‘Aepy ul suone|elsul g Aq
posSIW SBM SIoWO0}SNO Mau 1oy 1abie) ay |

Gle

Sle

"slawo}sno Aq pan|ea si
80I1AI8S pue Job.e) BA0QE S| 90UBWIONSd

0891

089}

‘AB|N\ Ul Jayieam Jood 0] anp
Alqissod ‘yjuow snoiaaid uo umop Ajpybis

091}

091}

"aUBAIBIUI O} JNOIIP
1 9yew Jl yoiym susaned Japuayo s
YlM wsiiepueA ssajpuiw Ajjueuiwopaid
aJe abewep [eulwD JO SBOUBY0

JByi0 -parebnsaaul bulaq Ajjuaning

9Je puE palsalle usag dAeY SI9PUBYO
S9S9Y] "S8WO [BNPIAIPUI SB PapI0dal

[[e @19m S22UBY0 8say} Buluars awes ay}
UO SI9PUBY0 swes ay} A pajiwwod a1om
S90UBY0 9S8yl ybnoylly ‘eale ylesH
9Y01S 8y} Ul 1jelb 1S10.) JO S80UBY0
pauodai || 01 anp 1864e) jjo Ajurew

sem Aey -aiep 0] Jeak 1961e) uo sulewal
ng Aepy ui 1806.1e) Jan0 si abeweq [euiwLD

988

068

cl

cl

SIoABeT - Siequinu
JBWO}SND BuIdYT pesiadsip ajeAlld

9l

81

0c

81

SIBWOISND MaU - S1aquinu
JBWO}SND Buley pasiadsip sleAld

Slv

08¢

H-E - -

€l

091}

VA4S

(38

8¢€¢

ovl

’/U

sabesn podsuel; Ajunwwo)

34"

091

(ene)
144

abesn anuan Aljigowdoys Ajyiuop

79

IZA

806

sjuaplou|
abeweq [eulw) Jo Jaquinu ay] |

Page 65

"WIIBIUl 8y} Ul SNURUOD
[lIM SHOY ybBnoyle sawid a|01yaA ayoe}

01 uejd uonoe Aousbe-ijnw e dojaasp o}
Jaquwiaydag ul Bunesw a1e 4S9 "SajoIysA
Jisyy ul moys uo sdoyde| pue sauoyd
aiqow Buines| ase oym ajdoad Jo sa|2IYdA
Jojow woJj Sy} 8Wos 8q 0} SeNURUOD
a1ay] -aoeld ojul Ind aq |im uonesado

ue pue pajebisaaul Buiaq Apuaind

SI SIY} - slepuajaq Janoy pue bunabiel
S}Jayl 9|21YdA Jo 1nods e usaq sey

219y "alep 01 Jeak 10b.e] uo surewsas |us
g yluow siy} 106Je1 JOAO0 S| BWILYD B|DIYdA

299

¥99

601

LEL

Ly

qS

cl9

SBWIID BIOIYSA JO Jaguinu ay ||

sjuswwo)

puail®
19bie)
wnuno ‘1s3

wnuno 1s3

10bue]

puail®
19bie)

lenoy Aepy

10bue] Aepy

puail®
10bue]

|enjoy judy

19bue] judy

11/0L002

uinyno
01/6002

¢deug
Jowny

Bunsodas
10 "baiy

uonduosaqg

o




"0} SUOISS8S ANUNWIWo ‘“ANIqoiA

‘dSd Buipnjoul sewwelBoud Jenbai jo 009'0€ 009°'0¢ | 916’y | 08Y'Y 090 | 996't ||se00e| o W sobesn awdojarap shods
AJaAl|ap panunuod o0} anp papaadxs 1able]
'9sIn02 D1d4N 01 anp saiued
|jood ss9| 0] 8np 0S|y "J181se] pue sAepioy . . ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ . 6 d
siuBq 0} 9618| Ul 8Np JoW j0u 19bIe | 000 €Y 000°€Y >> LIE/L9 | SOL L L0EVE | 960 V€ LOY'SIY| O N abesn anue) uydioq
"SUOIJIPUOD Jayjeam
poob uo jueljas skeme ase sjuans yied
'sIequinu Ul uin} UMOP B 0} pa| SIBYI0 g
10} SUOIlIpuo? Jayljeam Jood pue pa||edued 202've 202've G8g 699 001L 16 gecl'se 0 ] SJUBAS SlIB Je SSOUBPUSNE JO JaquinN
a8 | — Ae|\ Ul Yled SIBPUES Ul SJUBAS
/ @lam aiay] ‘18w Jou sem Aey Joj 106ie)
8y} |udy Jano pasealoul sisquinu ybnoyiy
‘syluow
Buiwoo sy} ul saniAloe AleuoiSIaAlp _ p
Joyuny dojanap o} Bully “suoisses 02L 02L 2L szl 9 95 29 | o | w BLpUOTS S16n 10 Siaou
Areuoisianip Jo A1anlep asealoul 0} .
Anoeded yoeoo Jood 0} anp passiw 1abie |
"syjuow &
Buiwoo sy} ul saniAloe AleuoiSIaAlp p o
Joyuny dojanap o} Bully “suoisses S8l g8l M €e se o€ 9t et [ o | w posonon Aol o seaum| O
Areuoisianip Jo Aianlep asealoul 0} . ©
Anoeded yoeoo Jood 0} anp passiw 1abie | o
SIS [eIN)ND B aINSIa]
(/04
‘auljeseg ul auleseq) e/u i 24 e/u e/u ce e/u o] W $9INZI8S [ENUBPIAG A1 DD JO JoquinN
e/u
. A LE/OL Buriojuow aanoeoid
suljesed ul aujjeseq) e/u L e/ e/ 09 B/u o) W B1E YOIYM SJUSPIOUI ALDD 1O %
B/u
‘suljeseg u1 suljaseq) B/U ve B/U B/U ee B/U ) W KungoE) SIEPIOUI ALOD %thu
‘Aoyiny Asnpu) a1esgja ]
a1 Aq 188 piepuels s|qeideooe pasiubooal 0586 0586 | | %8666 %0586 %¥6'66 | %0586 s W | UL poIOMSUE S[20 SULo 10 7
Alleuonieu e si %686 J0 JobJe} ay 1L
-ainsesy Auanoy| el e/ /U €9/ /U /U l2v'e /U s W o901 S0 a1 o
"9A0QE UONBWIOJUI U} UO Paseq s! SiyL 6.9 6.9 | 029 €19 219 209 s W sty ot
puail® ] puail® puail®
sjuswwo) jebie) winino ‘1s3 1ebue) 10621 lenjoy Aepy | 10bue) Aewy 1oBaE ) lenjoy judy | 18bae) judy winyno ¢deug | Buniodas
uininQ 1s3 01/600Z Jown) 10 "baiy uonduosag Jou

11/0L002




‘gouewlopad Ajyjuow snoinaid

(ebejusoiad) saoinles

UHM Juslsisuod si pue Jabie} aroqe 0056 0066 | 86 0068 .6 00°G8 00G6 | s W | e e1w00 Jo 10104 15114 12 voRposey
surewsaJ aouewlopuad uonnjosal ||eJanQ o .
'so|ij04d |82
snoinaid smoj|o) pue yead ,sjudy Buimojjo} )
pajoadxe S| awn|oA [[ed Ul uoionpal| e/ B/ B/U B/U VAR B/U 66.Y B/U S W Am”_”w_mmw m_cw_dﬂw ﬂwow__“_ﬂ__%
ay] ywuow ise| o} pasedwod % | Aq uaje} .
aABY PJEOQUOLMS [IDUNOY 8Y} O} S|[BD
‘swajqo.d
Aanijep uiq umoug pue Buljjiq xe |
founod >Q posnes wov__n_w oL Moo} 112} (ainseaw Ayanoe) snus) 10BjUO
SIY} yluow }se| 0} pasedwod paonpal sey| e/u Be/u e/u e/u 2669 e/u 16'6 e/u S W JeUI01SND SN __mw zecom
BWN|OA || ||BJaA0 paloadxa sy "yiluow
1se| 01 pasedwod %%,0¢ Aq ug|e} aney
2J1ua 10BIU0Y JawoIsny ayj 01 s|leD
sooINIag Jawolsny N
©
‘Ae|\ ul @ouasqe _ %a;m
$SBUIS 0] 8NP 1S0| SAEP JO Jaguunu 1£'6 S.8 S | so+ | e 80 120 ZEE6 | O | W | srep buson jo saquny sberons sur| 87w
8yl Ul usas sem uoljonpal ybis Alen ' o
Jebue} uO 0086 0086 M | zve6 | 0086 1966 | 0086 || 0086 | 0 | W | oo uuumprdseoonu soneny| 004
"sa[eosawl} palinbai ayy
ulyum auop Buiaq jou sway jo Bundiaoal
spoob yum swajqoid usaq aAey aiayl OS|y
. . . . . . . . 1di9oa1 Jo sAep
seinp suopose pue pouad Aepijoy yueq 0068 0006 M | 2res | o006 6998 | 0006 00e8 | o W 01 Ui pred SE0I0AU J0 SBEIBDIOY
oy} Jano ul Buiaq 10u Jels 01 anp Ajurew
sem siy} Aey 10} 186181 mojaq sem shep
01 uiyum pred sadioaul jo abejuaalad ay |
"oouewIouad
uo joedwi anebau e aney ||Im
yoiym dn paxaid aq |jeys swall Jop|o syl . 5
JO BWOS ‘SIY} JO JINsal & Se pue dn yojed 0021 2t | lo'gl | o0gh 1961 | 002t 2L6 | 0 | W | e e v ey | 1EHN
01 JopJo Ul dWIUBAO0 Bunjiom Ajjuaiind
aJe Jjelg ‘Bopjoeq |[ews e ue yum sn Ya
sey siy} ‘judy ui sabeuoys yeis Buimoljjo4
wswpuedag saoinosay B adueulq
puail® ] puail® puail®
sjuswwo) jebie) winino ‘1s3 1ebue) 10621 lenjoy Aepy | 10bue) Aewy 1oBaE ) lenjoy judy | 18bae) judy winyno ¢deug | Buniodas
uininQ 1s3 01/600Z Jown) 10 "baiy uonduosag Jou

11/0L002




"SWwiejo syjeusg
1noge g pue aaiwwod Buluued 1e
ainpaoold 1noge | ‘suoneoldde Buiuue|d
1Noge suoioslgo € ‘UoNoa||00 S1SEM
uapJeh 1o} swi} ul paaalep Buiaqg jou
SUIq UMOIQ INOQE 6] ‘SUOIID8||0D PaSSIW
noge g ‘Ajadoud yoeq paoe|d Buiaq jou
suIq Jnoge g‘ea1nias BuljoAoal oy sabueyd
81 0JUl JO Mor| |‘Pa109||092 10U Buiddn

Al} Inoge | ‘ebueyd BuiAlb jou saulyoew
Bunyied 1noge ¢ : - a1om paAlgdal
sjuie|dwon *Suo}09||09 s1sem usaib

8U] 0 Lels 8y} Jo} awi} Ul Way} aA1908)
10U pIp SJOWOISND SBM 1084}0 UO o0Uy
8y} se paAladal sjuie|dwod jo Jaquinu

8U] Ul 8SBAIOUI UB pasned sey suiq
umolig ay} jo Bunjoeinuew sy} ul Aejep v

Buisealosp

Buisealoap

‘passed mou aAey yoiym swajqo.d
AlaAljep uig umolq pue Buljig urew xe}
[1oun09 AQ uaaup puewsap ybiy Agq pajeald
swa|qo.d Aianijop 921A19s Y1 Buimol|oy
‘“Jeak [eloueuly ul juiod siyl 1e sieak
snoinaid sayorew pajoadxe puall AIISOd
"sIseq yiuow Ag Yluow e uo padsusiadxa
suoljelleA ay} ajeuiwi|e 0} pauodal

S| W} JOMSUEB SAIIBINWND 8] INg SPU0das
22 S! yuow siy} eouewlopad [enjoe ay|
aouewlopad job1e] spiemo] JuswaAow
aAllIsod sajelisuowap pue yjuow

1SB| JOAO SPU028S G J0 Juswanoiduw Uy

00°0¢

00°0c

"slojesipul
auoydaja} snoinaid ul pajesisuowap
spuaJ} aasod sy} Buiioddns yiuow

1sk| 01 pasedwo9 9%¢ J0 Juswaroiduwl ue
pue yuow siy} 10b1e] 8A0ge 8ouUBWIoNSd

00'G8

00°G8

6G

’/U

0882

00°0c

00'68

00'G8

€

00¢

(epim [10UN0D)
panieoal siure|dwod Jo JaquinN

00'v€

00°0¢

0c

(spuooas) Jamsuy jo paads abelany

Page|68

0098

00°G8

00'G8

pasamsuy s|[eD JO %

sjuswwo)

puail®
19bie)
wnuno ‘1s3

wnuno 1s3

10bue]

puail®
19bie)

lenoy Aepy

10bue] Aepy

puail®
10bue]

|enjoy judy

19bue] judy

11/0L002

uinyno
01/6002

¢deug
Jowny

Bunsodas
10 "baiy

uonduosaqg

o




s991M19g Aloje|nbay

Ajapenb papiodas Ajuo are Juswipedap siy} 1o} s,|d pauodal Ajerelodio

juawpedaqg buisnoy

"1l 8pein e 1e uswdojaaap 0} pale|al
Aoyl se \NMOD HNSU0D 0} pasu dy} 0} anp
awi Jo 1no wam suonedidde om] (29)
yosely Jo ainbiy ybiy Ajaairejas syl wouy
pue (2g) |udy woly (g4) suoneoydde sayio
JO Jaquinu ul uoidNpal Jayuny e mes Ay

00°06

00°06

00°96

00°06

0€v6

00°06

0016

SHOOM 8 UIYNM pauiwIalep suoijesijdde
Buiuueld Jayjo Jo abejusdiad ay ]

LSLIN

"99JJILILWLIOYD WOJ) pallajep
SBM U2Iym 921dSOH 8S0JWlld SEM Jay}0
8y} ‘sBuIp|iNgino JO anss| 8y} JapISUOD
0} podU B SeM aJay} alaym Buljjomp
swaoe|dal e 0] paje|al auo sjesodoid
awi Jo Ino om} 8y} 4O “Ae|y pIp se

siyi s1o8pal [udy pue /| — G| 40 Jequinu
Ayyeay aiow e 0} pauinjal suoieoldde
Joulw 0 }/600g 10 J8Lend 1se| syl U

00°G8

0068

“JUBWISA|OAUI
o11gnd jo epnjubew ay} pue sanssi ay} Jo
8|BOS 8y} 0} 8NP JOAO JUBM UDIUM ‘Dlayds
Buisnoy a|qepioye JoLd 9X0iS 8yl - awil
10 10 uam uopeoldde suQ *suoisioap
mes Aejy Jueoyiubis si yoiym suoneoldde
Jolepy uo suoisioap 9 mes |udy

00°G8

0068

‘wes | a1us) 80IAISS Jawolsny
8y} Aq pepinoid 801AI8S JUB||9OXS BY)} INOge
€ pue @oin18s Bulohosy 1noge | ‘wes |
yl[esH [eluswiuoliaug 8y} Jo ssaujnydisy
8y} INOCE | — 81oM PaAI8dal sjuswidwo)

Buisealou|

Buisea.ou|

sjuswwo)

puail®
19bie)
wnuno ‘1s3

wnuno 1s3

10bue]

puail®
19bie)

0c'88

00°G8

0002

00°G8

0€'88

00°G68

0828

SHOOM 8 UIYNM pauiwIalep suoijesijdde
Buiuueld Joujw jo abejusolad ay |

LSLIN

0999

00°G68

00°€8

ENEE
€1 Ulylim pauiwialep suoieoljdde
Bujuueld Jofew jo abejuadiad ay ]

Pagg 69

LSLIN

uonesauabay @ Buiuue|d

uswpedap siy} 1o} s,|d pauodal Ajgreiodio) ou ase a1ay]

S99IAI9S dljeIo0Wa pue sapienbs ‘jeba

9l

’/U

09

paAIgoa) sjuawi|dwod Jo Jaquiny

lenoy Aepy

10bue] Aepy

puail®
10bue]

|enjoy judy

19bue] judy

11/0L002

uinyno
01/6002

Bunsodas
10 "baiy

¢deug

1o wny uonduosag

o




uswpedap siy} 1o} s,|d pauodal Ajgreiodio) ou ase a1ay]

uopew.ojsuel] ssauisng

Auauenb papodas Ajuo aie Juswpedap siy} 1o} s,|d parodal Ajgresodio)

sdiysiauped
pue asuew.opadd ‘Aaijod

juswuedsp S|y} 1o} s,|d pauodal Ajgielodiod ou ase aiay |

Page 70

sjuswwo)

puail®
19bie)
wnuno ‘1s3

wnuno 1s3

10bue]

puail®
19bie)

lenoy Aepy

10bue] Aepy

puail®
10bue]

|enjoy judy

19bue] judy

11/0L002

uinyno ¢deug | Buniodas
01600z | lowny | jo-baiy uonduosag

o




(A}

TUED| | TAUTY N

091 091 091 091 091 091 091 091 091 091 091 091 1B
€8 9 —
5 W sjuapIoul
06 0L €9 65 9L 17 18 17 €6 6S L1 1A 1B abewep [euilld Jo Jaquinu ay |
29 VA4 lenioy|
SOWIID B[OIYSA JO Jaquinu @
95 IS 95 95 55 95 55 95 95 55 95 55 oo N O BIOIBN O 15qUINL BUL
1
9 9 [enjoy|
o) N $91190q0J JO Jaquinu 8y |
S 4 S S 14 S 14 S S 14 S 14 e
16 201 [enjoy
SOWIIO JUSIOIA JO Jaquinu @
/8 172 08 8/ 8. /8 06 /6 96 26 16 88 10618 ° n WHO IO 40 18quINt 8UL
yAS G [enjoy
o) W | seue|bing onsawop jo Jaquinu @
X 82 I 13 [T 0€ 0€ e e 0 £ 0g 10618 >ina P 10489 il
S0S S8y -
Iy ov Iy Ivv €y Iy €y Ivy Iy €ey Iy €y - o SeuiLo [E10L
S39IAI8S Ajunwwo)
62662} [enjoy|
: 7 : ; : g g : : - - - S N abesn yed JeD anuad umo]
G/8'92)  |S§/8°92h  |S/8'92)  |GL8'9CH G/892) G/892) G/892) G/892) G/892) G/892} G/892) G/892) 1ebre)
oct 291
[EnoY SUO1}09]|00
Sch Sl Sch Sl Sch Sch Sch Sch Sch Sch ek Sch 1ebue] ° W 9)SeM passIW JO JoquinN
6v'8.6°C CHAREER JOJRUIWOUSP
ySeevet €v0'G62° |
Jopeisuinu pajsodwod pue pajoAdal ‘pasn 261 IN
v,y 198 [enjoy -8l 81sem pjoyasnoy jo abejuadiad
I'9€ €0'62 €°2e €092 19'8¢ 1172y €e'ah 0Lvy €6'GY 95°9Y 8E°9Y 9e°2Y 1ebue] ° n
626'8€ 626'8€ JOJRUIWIOUSP
¥2'SEL ¥6'850°C
Joyesawnu (6%) proyssnoy -~
VAR 44 68°2S [enjoy Jad 8)Sem p|oyasnoH [enpisay
128y A4 86°9Y ¥0'€S 158y 60°LY 89°LY vy 8€'8Y 09y 8Ly SS'LY Jebue] ° n
juswpedaq JuswuoliAug
BET ‘ge4 ‘uep 09Q *ANON 100 ‘deg bny Inp unp ‘Aepy “1dy de
uS bai4 uonduasag JE|
10 wny

sainbiy aduew.03idd AJYIUOW LL/0LOZ

Page 71



(A}

OUEO| | TauTy Ulyujuy

€0v'0Y 125°8€ 000°9¢ $90'92 0€9'GE 226'se €18'v¢ SOL'LE €9G'v€ l2eve 60L°'L€ 950'v€ 10618
114 00} [enjoy SlueAe
00°G6 LLE €9 62} Ge0'e 658 VA%] 080°GL ez’ 099°¢ 89S 16 10618 W SHe Je SedUBpUSYE JO JSquINN
8 9 [enioy ‘SOIlIAIIOR AIBUOISIOAIP
1514 ey 02 0g ce 69 cs el 96 28 69 9G 1obie] W Bulpuaye siasn Jo siequinN
€ 0g [enioy| " SUOISSaS AIBUOISIOAIP
9} ch S S 14 8} 9} G2 X4 8l 6} 9} 10618 patanijap A|edo) jo JequinN
S9JIAISS |BANYND B AINSIa]
144 €e jenioy
W sainz|as
Jebue [eljuapiae A1DD J0 JI8quinN
L 09
Ienioy) W Bunoluow aanoeold
1obue aJe YoIym sjuapioul A1DD Jo abe,
9€€ SLE jenioy
N Sjuspioul ALDD 40 JequinN
1obue] |
%8666 %t76'66 jenioy
W anuIw | uiyum
%0586 %0586 Jebue paIemsue s|[ed auljayi Jo abev,
02’y SLE jenioy
N panlaoal s|jeo aul
1obie] |
029 cl9 jenioy
W s|eslads|p ajeAud [}0} - slequinu
€19 209 161 J2WOISNd aul|ay] pasiadsip ayeAld
8 o
enioy W uteb jau - siaquinu
9 9 1obue Jawo}snd auljay] pasiadsip ajeAld
8 6 [enjoy|
W SJaAe?d| - slaquinu
ch ch 161 J2WOISNd aul|ay] pasiadsip ayeAld
9} 02 jenioy
W SJOWO)ISNd MaU - slaquinu
8l 8l 161 J2WOISND aul|ay] pasiadsip ayeAld
YAYS 8¢€e jenioy
W safesn podsuel; Ajunwiwo)
vt 143 0} 4" (143 ovt ovt vt vt vt vt ovt ovt 1obie ]
eelt 841 jenioy

aRven annian finAanimidnne

Page 72



(A}

0068 00S8 wber] 7|
14 9 Jojeujwouap
€ 14 Jojesswnu SHoam
- - €1 UlyIm pauiwisiep suoneol|dde /SHN
0o'sL 0999 [ENY 5 W Buuue|d solew jo abejuadiad ay|
00°G8 00°G8 10611
uonesauabay @ buluueld
S 6 fenjoy (epm f1ouno9)
e/u e/ e/u e/ e/u e/u e/u e/u e/u e/u e/u e/u Jobue]] ° W paAIgdal sjuawidwod Jo Jaquiny
G2 Ve [enjoy (apim |1oUun0))
B e/u B e/ B B B e/u e/u e/u B e/u 1ebre] ° W paAIaoal sjure|dwod Jo JequinN
ee ve [EMmoy (spuodas)
0¢ 02 1ebue o W Jamsuy Jo paadg abeiany
0068 0098 —
S W palamsuy s|[eD Jo %
00°G8 0098 1061 |
0426 0026 [ENioy (ebejusoiad) seoines (B
0058 0058 woer| S | M [wewoo jo1uod 1814 e vonnjosey
L2y 66L% [BnoY s N (aunseaw AJIAIOR) PIROQUONIMS
1061 | |19UN0D BWN|OA |[BD Ayluopy
ce6'9 166 [enoy S " (ainseaw AJANOR) 81jus”) 10BIUOD
Jobie Jawolsny sawn(oA [[eD Alyuopy
S9DIAISS J8W0ISN)
00°2L 8.0 [ENdY| "SSQUNIS 0} aNp 10| sAep
8.0 6.0 640 120 [WA] [WA] [WA] [WAV] [WA] [WA] (YA} [WA] 1obie ] ° n Buiyiom jo Jaquinu abeiane ay |
9'86 19'66 [enjoy 1dieoa1 jo skep og
00'86 0086 10bue] | o N uiyim pred sao10Aul Jo abejuadiad
SS'6L 6998 [enjoy 1di9a1 Jo shep o1
00°06 00°06 10618 ° n ulyym pred sao10Aul jo abejuadiad
6012 180°} J0JeUIWOUSP
081G 20212 J01RI8WNU SlusAS
- _ abueyd JO SWIE Mau Jjauaq 181 IN
899} o6l [ENoY| o " 10/gH sseo0ud 0} use} awi|
ooctH 0och 1061e] |
juswpedag sa2inosay R ddueUly
968°2 0902 [enoy/|
- - - - - - - - - - - o} N sabesn uswdojansp spodg
18L°€ G2 €86} VA NS ovs'e 90°€ Ly6°1L [Reion 989°¢C 682 145k 996°L 1obue] |
910°€e L0EvE [enoy/|
~ A1 afRven annian nmnidinA

Page 73



Ajiapenb papiodas Ajuo are Juswipedap siy} 1o} s,|d pauodal Ajerelodio

sdiysiauped
pue adsuew.o}iad ‘Aa1jod

Aueuenb paodai Ajuo are juswiedsp siyl 1o s,|d pauodal Ajerelsodio)

yawpuedaq Buisnoy

ig es Jojeujwiousp

o & ‘oreewnu 8 UILHIM paUILLISIEP mco_amov__mww SLIN
08°'G6 0€'v6 [enjoy Buiuued Jayio Jo abejusdiad ay |

00°06 0006 10618 o W

yAS L Jojeujwousp

St Stk J01RJoWNU S3osM

5058 =58 8 uIym paulwielep suoneoldde /GHN

enjov| . _

n

Bujuue|d Joujw jo abejussiad ay

Page 74



Agenda ltem 7

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Performance Management Board 19t JULY 2010

NEW IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2010-2011

Relevant Portfolio Holder CliIr. Roger Hollingworth, Leader of the
Council
Relevant Head of Service Hugh Bennett,

Director of Policy, Performance &
Partnerships

Non-Key Decision

1.

1.1

21

3.1

4.1

5.1

SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

To provide PMB with a draft version of the new Improvement Plan 2010-
2011 for consideration (Attached as Appendix 1).

RECOMMENDATIONS

That PMB considers the amended actions and timescales Directors and
Heads of Service submitted for inclusion in the draft Improvement Plan and
recommend any alterations, additions or amendments that should be made
to the Improvement Plan.

BACKGROUND

The new Improvement Plan is based on the key deliverables and outcome
measures detailed in the Council Plan 2010-13. As was the case in 2009-
10, Heads of Service have been asked to populate the Improvement Plan
with the major actions that will be undertaken by their service. PMB should
therefore ensure that all major areas of work are covered by the
Improvement Plan in sufficient detail, and that appropriate and realistic
timescales are allocated.

KEY ISSUES

The Improvement Plan is monitored each month on an exception basis, with
reports only presenting the actions for which the status is red or amber. The
Plan focuses on Council delivery across the Council’s priorities and across
financial, process and human resources perspectives.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications. The Council’s priorities were set in
September 2009 and budget bids (included as actions on the Improvement
Plan where appropriate) were decided as part of the 2009-10 budget round.
The Improvement Plan details the resource available for each action.

Page 75




BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Performance Management Board 19t JULY 2010

6.

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

1.

11.1

12.

121

13.

13.1

14.

141

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal implications associated with the development of the new
Improvement Plan.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications associated with the development of the new
Improvement Plan.

COUNCIL OBJECTIVES

The Improvement Plan outlines delivery activities for the coming year in all
of the Council’s objectives and priority areas.

RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY
CONSIDERATIONS

The Improvement Plan will be supported by the Council’s strategic risk
register.

CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS

Performance Improvement is a Council Objective.

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

There are no equalities and diversity implications associated with the
development of the new Improvement Plan.

VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET
MANAGEMENT

Value for money is one of the priorities in the new Improvement Plan and
actions related to procurement and asset management feature in sections 8
& 9 of the plan.

CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY

Climate Change is one of the priorities in the new Improvement Plan.

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS

Human Resources actions are covered in sections 9, 16, 17 & 19 of the new
Improvement Plan.

Page 76



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Performance Management Board 19t JULY 2010

15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

15.1 The Improvement Plan provides a link between the Council Plan and
service business plans in our Performance Management framework.
Performance and Governance actions are covered in sections 10 & 12 of
the new Improvement Plan.

16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF
CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998

16.1 Actions related to Community Safety feature under the ‘One Community’
priority.

17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

17.1 There are no health inequalities implications associated with the
development of the new Improvement Plan.

18 LESSONS LEARNT

18.1 Not applicable

19 COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

19.1 Community and stakeholder engagement informed the development of the
Council Plan, from which these actions have developed.

20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT

Portfolio Holder At Cabinet
Chief Executive At CMT
Executive Director (S151 Officer) At CMT
Executive Director — Leisure, Cultural, At CMT

Environmental and Community Services

Executive Director — Planning & Regeneration, | At CMT
Regulatory and Housing Services

Director of Policy, Performance and At CMT
Partnerships

Page 77



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Performance Management Board 19" JULY 2010
Head of Service At CMT
Head of Resources At CMT
Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic At CMT
Services
Corporate Procurement Team No

21. WARDS AFFECTED

All Wards.

22. APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Draft Improvement Plan 2010-11.

23. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.
24. KEY

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name: Rebecca Dunne
E Mail: r.dunne@bromsgrove.gov.uk
Tel: (01527) 881616

Page 78



Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

Improvement Plan Guidance

Grey = Programmed dates
This is the planned timescale for the action- THESE ARE FIXED AND SHOULD NOT BE ALTERED / DELETED

Green = On target
The action is on target.

Amber = One month behind
The action is one month behind schedule.

Red = Over one month behind
The action is over one month behind schedule.

6. obed

Q Hashing = Reprogrammed / extended / revised
This is to be used to show any new dates for an action, whether that is because it has been reprogrammed to a later date in
N the year or extended by a set period. This requires approval.

Blue = Suspended
This is where an action has been suspended completely for the period covered by the Improvement Plan. This requires
approval.

o Inthe ‘Status / Corrective Action’ column, you should include any relevant information that will aid the reader.

o However, for all actions that are either amber or red, you should include a comment as to why the action has fallen behind
timescale and a brief plan of what you intend to do to address the situation.

o Also in the ‘Status / Corrective Action’ column, please clearly state (in capital letters) at the start of any comment if the action
has been SUSPENDED, REPROGRAMMED, EXTENDED or is COMPLETE.

o Please ensure that if an action is dependent on a previous action that has been delayed, that this is reflected in the status
update.




Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

Priority CP1: Economic Development

1 Expected Outcome A thriving & more diverse economy
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
1.1 Economic Development Implementation of the 31% March 2011 JS Economic Development
Strategy Bromsgrove Economic & Town Centre Manager

Development Plan

Set up establishment structure October 2010
for the North Worcestershire
Economic Development

08 abed

Strategy
1.2 Employment Bromsgrove Business Start-up March 2011 JS Economic Development
Programme & Town Centre Manager
Bromsgrove Business Booster March 2011
Programme
Ref. Action Lead Status / Corrective Action
s | 2| 2> o0|la|s|3|0|c|a|=
Q| ® c |3} ©
</ 2|3 3|3 |a|0o|2|8|S|2|=
1.1. Economic Development Strategy
1.1.1 Implement actions in JS

Bromsgrove Economic
Development Plan

1.1.2 Creation of single North JS
Worcestershire Economic
Development Unit

1.2 Employment

1.21 Support 30 businesses JS
through the Business
Start-up Programme

1.2.2 Support 5 businesses JS




|8 8bed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

Ref.

Action

Lead

Apr
May
June
July
Aug
Sep

Oct.
Nov
Dec.
Jan

Feb.

Mar.

Status / Corrective Action

through the Business
Booster Programme

Priority CP2: Town Centre

2 Expected Outcome A revitalised, vibrant and attractive town centre
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
21 Enhancement of the public | Improvements to the High April 2010 to April JS Town Centre Team
realm Street & The Strand 2011 (subject to funding)
SMT
Enhancement of High RS
Street buildings Interest required from property May 2010 to March Town Centre Team
owners for Shopfronts Grant 2011 Conservation officer
Housing officer
2.2 Redevelopment of retail Secure planning permission for June/July 2010 JS Planning Team
park, Birmingham Road redevelopment of the site Town Centre Team
Hanover Street car park Secure change of use planning July 2010 MA Town Centre Team
extension application
Open extension (due to rise in
visitors)
Developing existing Interest required from property May 2010 to March RS Town Centre Team
housing stock owners re 'empty space' 2011 Conservation officer
conversion Housing officer
23 Relocation of Police and Secure planning permission for 1 Dec 2011 RS Town Centre Team

Fire Services to free-up

new site

Planning Team




28 ebed

Improvement Plan: Template

2010/11 Draft Version

Priority CP2: Town Centre

2 Expected Outcome A revitalised, vibrant and attractive town centre
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
town centre sites for Agree disposal of fire station on
development Windsor Street
Completion of the Health Opening of the new Health March 2011 RS Town Centre Team
Centre Centre (will service half of the
town's residents)
24 New train station Design and funding agreed for December 2011 JS Network Rail & WCC
a new Bromsgrove train station (subject to necessary
funding)
Improvements to bus Funding and installation of September 2010 RS Town Centre Team / WCC
station replacement shelter agreed
Recommended option to April-June 2011 RS BDC and WCC
expand the bus station
2.5 Production of Town Plan Completion of Property Assets October 2010 RS Town Centre Team
Review to show location of new
Council House / Leisure Centre
/ development sites
Ref. |Action Lead | > |2 |> ol |z |2 o |e la |x Status / Corrective Action
. |® s |3 |0 (R |0 |2 | |0 |8
< = 3 5 | | O |2z O 5 [ (=
21 Enhancement of public realm & High Street buildings
2.1.1 Undertake performance JS
clinic




Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

Ref. |Action Lead

Apr
May

June

July

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Status / Corrective Action

2.1.2 Complete Town Centre JS
Marketing Strategy

2.1.3 Architect's brief RS Dependent on sale of Parkside car park;
funding will dictate palette and timescales
21.4 Consultation RS As above
21.5 Confirm funding for pilot RS On target
scheme
21.6 Gauge interest RS Extra funding may widen the scheme to
include entire High Street
21.7 Undertake building RS
enhancements

£g afied

2.2 Redevelopment of retail park

2.21 Planning application JS
considered by Planning
Committee

Hanover Street car park extension

2.2.2 Demolition of Market Hall MA

Completed

223 'Change of use' Planning MA
application considered by
Planning Committee

224 Extension completed and [MA
opened

Dependent on 'change of use' Planning
Application approval

Developing existing housing stock

2.2.5 Conduct pilot scheme to RS
gauge interest

Completed

2.2.6 Survey entire High Street RS

227 Building conversions RS
undertaken

Dependent on interest and available

funding




Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

Ref. |Action Lead ° Status / Corrective Action
- > > (o)) Q - (54 c e} =
Q © c 3 = Q [$] P} © ) ©
2.3 Relocation of Police and Fire Services to free-up town centre sites for development
2.3.1 Artrix approval gained JS
2.3.2 Disposal of Fire Station JS
agreed
2.3.3 Planning Consent granted S Dependent on Artrix approval
2.3.4 Construction commenced |JS Dependent on Planning Consent
Completion of the Health Centre
;DU 2.3.5  [Construction RS
«Q
@®| 23.6 [Opening RS
N
24 New train station
2.4.1 Funding secured JS Attend project board meetings (as called
by Network Rail)
2.4.2 Design agreed JS Dependent on funding
Improvements to bus station
243 Funding for new shelter RS BDC and WCC funding
confirmed
244 New shelter produced RS
245 Investigations to expand bus|RS Dependent on funding and transport
station surveys / reports
2.5 Production of Town Plan
2.51 Leisure survey RS 800 returns as of 11/06/10
252 Develop Town Plan options RS




Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

Ref. |Action Lead ° Status / Corrective Action
s 3 23908 8381l5 18 &
< £ |3 |3 | | O |2 o |5 |u [=
253 Soft Market Testing RS
254 Property Assets Review RS Dependent on Town Centre Steering
recommendation Group approval
255 Area Action Plan produced |RS

Priority CP3: Value for Money

Gg abed

3. Expected Outcome Realisation of cash savings with recognised improvements in Value
for Money Assessment within Use of Resources
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
3.1 Shared Services Transformation Programme May 2010 DP Transformation Team
Plan
Transformation Team in place September 2010
3.2 Efficiencies Transformation Board Ongoing JP Project Board
Transformation Board
Transformation Team
3.3 Marketing/ Marketing garden waste TBC GR Service Managers
Income Generation service JG
TBC
Annual review of Artrix SLA /
marketing campaign
TBC




9g abed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

Priority CP3: Value for Money

3. Expected Outcome Realisation of cash savings with recognised improvements in Value
for Money Assessment within Use of Resources
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
Annual review of Dolphin
Centre SLA / marketing
campaign April 2010
Review Pay on foot scheme TBC
Ref. Action Lead Status / Corrective Action
s (2|2 | >|o|a|8|3|0|c|alx=
Q| ® c |3} ©
<|=|3 3|3 |4|0|2|8|8|8|=
3.1. Shared Services
3.1.1 Develop programme KD/DP
3.1.2 Draft job descriptions for DP
team
3.1.3 Recruit team DP
3.2 Efficiencies
3.2.1 Report progress of KD
delivery of efficiencies to
shared service Board
3.2.2 Develop system for JP
identifying and monitoring
of efficiencies
3.2.3 Develop Use Of JP
Resources action plan for
2011/12
3.3 Marketing/Income Generation
3.3.1 Review the HM

Place/Resident
Satisfaction Survey and




/8 obed

Improvement Plan: Template

2010/11 Draft Version

Ref.

Action

Lead

Apr.

May

June

July

Aug.

Sep.

Oct.

Nov.

Dec.

Jan.

Feb.

Mar.

Status / Corrective Action

User Survey results for the
site and agree key service
improvements required.

3.3.2

Review KPI's with in the
SLA and agree remedial
actions as required.

HM

3.3.3

Based on 3.1 & 3.2 agreed
the revised KPI targets,
key areas of service
improvement and BDC
support for 2011/12.

JG/HM

Review the
Place/Resident
Satisfaction Survey and
User Survey results for the
site and agree key service
improvements required.

JG

Review KPI's with in the
SLA and agree remedial
actions as required.

JG

Review the maintenance
requirements for the site
and agree areas of
responsibility for 2011/12.

JG

3.1.7

Based on 3.1 & 3.2 agreed
the revised KPI targets,
key areas of service
improvement and BDC
support for 2011/12.

JG




8g abed

Improvement Plan: Template

2010/11 Draft Version

CP4: One Community

4 Expected Outcome A sense of community for all
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
4.1 Children & Young People | Review events package to June 2010 JG Arts Development
increase engagement / Manager & Team
involvement / participation of HB
children & young people across Senior Corporate Policy &
the district Performance Officers
‘U Decide’ participatory March 2011 WCC Youth Support
budgeting event
FLOSS funding
Children & Young People’s December 2011
Partnership (LSP)- shadow LSP
board
4.2 Older People Development physical activity May 2010 JG Sports Development
programme Team
HB
Promote Ageing Well Scheme August 2010 Communications Team
Roll out to outlying areas £13k (promote)
April 2011
Create links with Health £7k (roll out)
Improvement funding bid December 2010
New post?
Older People’s Directory October 2010
£8,000
4.3 Crime & the Fear of Crime | Develop West Mercia minimum March 2011 AH Safer Community Board
standards Area based grant
Develop ASB Strategy for March 2011 Community Safety Team

10




Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

CP4: One Community

4 Expected Outcome A sense of community for all
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
Redditch & Bromsgrove
CSP

Develop Communications March 2011
Strategy & associated Action
Plan

4.4 The Trunk Completion of the thematic high May 2010 SH Section 10 agreement

level action plans
Senior Corporate Policy &

68 abed

Finalise Section 10 Agreement August 2010 Performance Officer
Set up performance reporting July 2010
system via the LSP

Ref. Action Lead Status / Corrective Action

>
®
=

Apr.
Nov
Dec
Jan.
Feb
Mar

June
July
Aug.
Sep

Oct.

4.1 Children & Young People

411 Agree suitable and JHIG
sufficient consultation
process to engage with all
residents and target CYP
to ascertain their views on
future events.

4.1.2 Undertake the consultation | JG/AH
exercise and review
results with key partners
and officers.

4.1.3 Develop the 20011/12 JG/AH
outline programme and

11




06 9bed

Improvement Plan: Template

2010/11 Draft Version

Ref.

Action

Lead

Apr.

May

June

July

Aug.

Sep.

Oct.

Nov.

Dec.

Jan.

Feb.

Mar.

Status / Corrective Action

budget requirements in
order to increase
engagement opportunities.
Including funding bids as
required.

Develop the full
programme based on
available budget and BDC
priorities.

JG/AH

415

Review 09/10 U Decide,
build lessons learnt into
10/11 and hold third U
Decide.

HB

4.1.6

Continue to actively
support the Children and
Young People’s Theme
Group, including bi-
monthly meetings.

JG

4.2

Older People

4.2.1

Through the H&WB
Theme Group, agree the
key principles,
interventions and locations
for the age well scheme
physical activity
programme.

JG/LK

4.2.2

Develop the programme in
partnership with NHS
Worcestershire to
complement existing
provision and to provide
suitable exit routes via
sustainable community
sessions. To include set

LK

12




16 8bed

Improvement Plan: Template

2010/11 Draft Version

Ref.

Action

Lead

Apr.

May

June

July

Aug.

Sep.

Oct.

Nov.

Dec.

Jan.

Feb.

Mar.

Status / Corrective Action

of KPI's for this work to
ensure objectives are
achieved.

4.2.3

Commence marketing
campaign and roll out of
activity sessions.

LK

424

Build the partnership
approach to this subject
through the HIF work
around Health Lifestyles
and integrate the work
streams.

JG/LK

4.2.5

Develop the year 2 activity
programme and
commence roll out to
outlying areas of the
District.

LK

4.2.6

Promote launch of Ageing
Well Scheme

HB

4.2.7

Older Person’s Directory
to be launched to coincide
with Older Person’s Day
(01 October).

HB

4.3

Crime & the Fear of Crime

4.3.1

Develop West Mercia
minimum standards-
publish on website

AH

4.3.2

Develop Customer Charter

AH

433

West Mercia presentation
and sign up

AH

434

Develop ASB Strategy for
Bromsgrove & Redditch

AH

435

Develop Communications

BH

13




26 obed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

Ref. Action Lead Status / Corrective Action
s 2|2 | >2|o|a|L |30 |la|x
£/ £/3/3/3 &8|6/2|8/8 2=
Strategy & associated
action plan
4.4 The Trunk
441 Develop localised AH/HB
measures across the six
SCS objectives for
Charford and Sidemoor
442 Finalise the Section 10 SH
Agreement
443 Set up an LSP Stronger AH/HB
Communities Theme
Group & new Successful
Neighbourhoods Working
Group with partners &
report performance to
Board.
CP5: Housing
i Expected Outcome Delivery of Housing Strategy
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
5.1 Balanced Housing Mix Consult community and 31% December 2010 SH/JS/ Strategic Planning Team
and delivery of affordable | stakeholders upon revised AG/MD/ AC
housing. Draft Core Strategy with
Housing Allocations.
Support and enable 31% March 2011 AC . .
applications for affordable Strategic Housing Team
housing on approved site in Supporting people
accordance with Core
Strategy and RSS allocation. BDHT

14




c6 abed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

CP5: Housing
i Expected Outcome Delivery of Housing Strategy
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
RSL Partners
Utilise results from Housing 31% March 2011 AC CC R&I Team
Market Assessment and
Older Persons Housing and
Support Needs Survey to
identify housing needs and
guide affordable housing
development.
5.2 Implemented Agreed SLA for Countywide 1 June 2010 AC Strategic Housing Team
Worcestershire Home HIA.
Improvement Agency
Commencement of the 30™ September 2010 AC
availability of Kick Start
Equity Release loans for
home improvement.
5.3 Homelessness prevention | Continue to monitor & 31% March 2011 AC Strategic Housing Team
& continued low level use | support the development of
of temporary effective partnership CAB
accommodation homelessness prevention
services. BDHT
31 March 2011 AC

Continue to support the
availability of mortgage
rescue scheme as
appropriate.

Supporting People

Homelessness Strategy
Steering Group

15




6 obed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

CP5: Housing

5

Expected Outcome

Delivery of Housing Strategy

Ref.

Measures of Success

Actions Required

Timescales

Lead

Resources

5.4

Effective Strategic
Housing Service that
works with its partners and
other stakeholders to
address the housing needs
and challenges within its
area.

Review of new Audit
Commission Key Lines of
Enquiry for Strategic
Housing.

15! November 2010

AC

Strategic Housing Team

BDHT

Ref.

Action

Lead

Apr

May
June
July
Aug.

Sep.

Oct.

Nov
Dec.
Jan

Feb.

Mar.

Status / Corrective Action

5.1

Balanced Housing Mix

5.1.1

Prepare revised draft Core | MD
Strategy for community
and stakeholder

consultation

Identify public and AC
privately owned sites
suitable for affordable
housing, liaise with
preferred partner RSLs
and support bids for
funding to the Homes &

Communities Agency.

5.1.3

Set up, attend and support | AC
quarterly meetings of new
NW Delivery Group to
monitor viability and
projected delivery of
pipeline schemes and

update of progress against

16




G6 obed

Improvement Plan: Template

2010/11 Draft Version

Ref.

Action

Lead

Apr.

May
June
July

Aug.
Sep
Oct.

Nov.

Dec
Jan.
Feb

Mar.

Status / Corrective Action

the LAA target.

Implementation of SP
funded Support Worker for
Private Sector Housing
Step up Scheme tenants.

AC

5.2

Home Improvement Agency

5.2.1

Completion of agreed SLA
and Transfer documents
for Countywide HIA.

AC

5.2.2

Completed transfer of
North Worcestershire HIA
into and commencement
of Countywide Scheme.

AC

5.2.3

Commencement of
quarterly meetings of the
Countywide HIA
Performance Management
Board.

AC

524

Review and update
Private Sector Housing
Strategy to reflect updated
condition data.

AC

5.3

Homelessness prevention & reduc

tion in the use

of temporary

acco

mmodation

5.3.1

Review outcomes of
support and preventative
schemes, consult with
Homelessness Strategy
Steering Group and
formulate
recommendations for use
of CLG Grant if available
in 2011/12.

AC

17




96 obed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

Ref. Action Lead Status / Corrective Action
= > 2 > o o | > 1) c o o
© = |3} ©
/=333 /802|885 |2 =
5.3.2 Report to Executive AC
Cabinet upon availability
of CLG Homelessness
Grant and seek approval
of allocation to
recommended schemes
5.4 Audit Commission Strategic Housing Key Lines of Enquiry
5.4.1 Carry out a review of 2010 | AC
Audit Commission Key
Lines of Enquiry for
Strategic Housing.
CP6: Climate Change
6 Expected Outcome Reduced Co2 Emissions
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
6.1 CO2 Emissions Climate Change Strategy & November 2010 HB Climate Change Manager
Action Plan
Future budget bids to
Review Sustainable March 2011 MTFP
Community Strategy Action
Plan
6.2 Adaption Climate Change Strategy & November 2011 HB Climate Change Manager
Action Plan
Future budget bids to
Review Sustainable March 2011 MTFP

Community Strategy Action
Plan

18




/6 8bed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

Ref. Action Lead Status / Corrective Action
s | 2|2 > o|a|w|3|o|lc|o]| =
© = ) ©
/=333 /802|885 |2 =
6.1 CO2 Emissions
6.1.1 Complete first full draft of cJ
Climate Change Strategy
6.1.2 Undertake consultation cJ
and seek approval from
Cabinet.
6.1.3 Review and update Better | CJ
Environment Sustainable
Community Strategy
action plan.
6.2 Adaption
6.21 | See6.1 e ] |

FP1: Managing Finances (including Value for Money)

7 Expected Outcomes Improved Financial Management recognised within UoR Assessment
Improved financial awareness & discussion by Members & public
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
71 Integrated financial and Integrated financial and Quarter 3 JLP Service accountants and
performance information performance management budget holders
timetable
Meetings with budget Ongoing
holders
7.2 Deliver Medium Term Financial Plan timetable September 2010 JLP Service accountants and
Financial Plan and budget holders
statutory accounts Use of Resources Action January 2010

Plan

19




86 obed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

FP1: Managing Finances (including Value for Money)

7 Expected Outcomes Improved Financial Management recognised within UoR Assessment
Improved financial awareness & discussion by Members & public
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
7.3 Budget Consultation Budget Jury January 2011 JLP Executive Director-
Finance & Resources
Online consultation January 2011 HB
Director of Policy,
Schools project January 2011 Performance &
Partnerships
Senior Corporate Policy &
Performance Officer
Ref. Action Lead Status / Corrective Action
s | 22 I >lo|a|ls |30 |8 =
o | ®© = o ©
<|=|3 /3 3 8|o|2|8|3|¢ =
71 Integrated financial and performance information
711 Develop monitoring HB
timetable for financial and
performance information
7.1.2 Report integrated HB/JP
information to Members
7.2 Deliver Medium Term Financial Plan & statutory accounts
7.21 Meet with Cabinet re JP
development of priorities
7.2.2 Develop Council Plan JP
budgets and discuss with
CMT
7.2.3 Present options to all JP

Members to include

20




66 abed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

Ref.

Action

Lead

Apr
May
June
July
Aug

Sep.

Oct.

Nov
Dec.
Jan

Feb.

Mar.

Status / Corrective Action

scrutiny

7.3

Budget consultation

7.31

Identify members BD

7.3.2

Carry out budget panel
sessions to link with
member considerations

HB/JP

7.3.3

Carry out further
community engagement to
link with Member
considerations

HB/JP

7.3.4

Present budget jury and
consultation data to
members for consideration
as part of budget setting

HB/JP

FP2: Governing the Business(including Value for Money)

8 Expected Outcomes Cash savings realised from improved procurement
Improvements to UoR assessment relating to procurement
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
8.1 Procurement Procurement Actions August 2010 JP Procurement Advisor
Procurement Forward Plan August 2010 CMT
8.2 Risk Management Risk Strategy & reports March 2011 JP Internal Audit

(WETT- Worcester City)

21




001} 8bed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

Action Lead Status / Corrective Action
Ref. s | 2| 2> o|la|s|3|0|c|a|=
Q| ® c |3} ©
<|=|3|3|3|4|0|2|8|8|8|=
8.1 Procurement
8.1.1 Identify areas of major JP
spend
8.1.2 Develop action plan with JP
procurement manager for
savings to be realised
8.1.3 Undertake revised JP
procurement to achieve
savings identified
8.1.3 Monitor cash savings JP
realised
8.2 Risk Management
8.2.1 Develop corporate and TK
departmental risk registers
8.2.2 Monitor registers via to TK
members
8.2.3 Identify improvements to TK
address UoR assessment
FP3: Managing Resources (including Value for Money)
9 Expected Outcome Recognised improvements in UoR judgement and improved asset,
workforce and natural resource management
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
9.1 Manage assets effectively | Update Asset Management November 2010 JLP Property Services
Plan (WETT- Worcestershire
County Council)
Dispose of/ retain assets as Ongoing

per Council priorities

22




10| ebed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

FP3: Managing Resources (including Value for Money)

9 Expected Outcome Recognised improvements in UoR judgement and improved asset,
workforce and natural resource management
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
9.2 Workforce Planning Service-level data, analysis December 2010 DP Learning &
& plans Organisational
Development Manager
9.3 Natural Resources Green fleet review & action 315 March 2011 GR Waste minimisation
plan
Climate Change Strategy & November 2010 Sup_port from the Energy
: Savings Trust
Action Plan HB
Sustainable Community March 2011
Strategy Action Plan HB
Ref. Action Lead Status / Corrective Action
- 2| 2 | >|o|a|=w |30l c|o|=
© = ) ©
/=332 8|0|2/8|S|¢2]|=2
9.1 Manage assets effectively
9.1.1 Agree SLA with TK
Worcestershire County to
include updates to asset
management plan
9.1.2 Map the areas / assets TK
owned by Council and
review at asset
management group
9.1.3 Identify assets for disposal | TK

and discuss plan wit WCC
for action

23




20| ebed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

Ref. Action Lead Status / Corrective Action
s (2|2 | >|o|a|E8|3|0|c|alx=
o | ®© = ) ©
<|=|3|3|3|4|0|2|8|8|8|=
9.2 Workforce Planning
9.21 Produce shared workforce | HP
plan
9.2.2 Produce service-level data | HP/BB
packs
9.3 Natural Resources
9.3.1 To work with other local Anna
authorities and the Wardell
voluntary sector to
increase re use from bulky
household collections and
explore future options for
service delivery
9.3.2 To work with the Energy Kevin
Savings Trust to carry out | Hirons
a ‘green fleet’ review
FP4: Managing Performance (including Value for Money)
10 | Expected Outcome Appropriate Performance Management Arrangements
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
10.1 | Data Quality Data Quality Strategy August 2010 (and 6 HB CCPP
updates to PMB /CMT monthly thereafter)
10.2 | Performance & Project Delivery of the Performance February 2011 (and HB CCPP
Management Management Strategy annually thereafter)
Action Plan
10.3 | VFM Measures Vfm transactional measures June 2010 JP Finance Team

spreadsheet

Policy & Performance




€01 obed

Improvement Plan: Template

2010/11 Draft Version

HB Team
Action Lead Status / Corrective Action
Ref. s 2| 8|29 |d|lg |3 |8|c|38]|=5
© c
/5|33 /286|285 |&|2
10.1 Data Quality
10.1.1 Ensure closedown of HB
National Indicators as per
DCLG definitions.
10.1.2 Carry out review of HB
lessons learnt
10.2 Performance & Project Management
10.2.1 Report annual review of HB
Performance Management
Strategy to PMB.
10.2.2 Review corporate project HB
management methodology
10.2.3 Monthly community HB
programme board.
10.3 VFM measures
10.3.1 Complete pilot and report HB
results to CMT.
10.3.2 Agree roll out with CMT. HB
10.3.3 Roll out approach across HB
all departments.
10.3.4 Develop VFM dashboard HB
for focus on high spend /
low satisfaction services
10.3.5 Update VFM Strategy for HB
members consideration
10.3.6 Undertake VFM training HB

for members and officers

25




v0| obed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

PR1: Customer Processes

11 Expected Outcome Improved Customer Processes
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
111 Customer Service New HOS to review CF Pt 3 September 2010 New HOS | To be reviewed by HOS
Excellence Accreditation action plans with teams
(Customer First Part 4)
Set up working group to TBC
undertake self assessment
Customer First Pt 4 training December 2010
11.2 Community Engagement | Community Engagement October 2010 HB Senior Corporate Policy &
Strategy agreed at Cabinet Performance Officer
Community Engagement October 2010 Equalities Officer
toolkit produced
11.3 CSC/Website ‘Have a Play’ December 2010 DP ICT Team
Promotion & marketing TBC New HOS | Communications Team
Agreement of programme March 2011 Customer Service Centre
Manager
Ref. Action Lead Status / Corrective Action
e [ > 2 | > o = | > ole|lal =
© c 3] ©
<|/=/3/3|23 coc|2|8[S|&|=
11.1 Customer Service Excellence Accreditation (Customer First Part 4)

11.1.1

Actions to be updated when new HOS
takes post

11.1.2

11.1.3

26




Go| obed

Improvement Plan: Template

2010/11 Draft Version

Ref. Action Lead Status / Corrective Action
= S| 2 > ool > o c | o =
Q| ® c |3} ©
</ =23 3|3 |a|0o|2|8|S|2|=
11.2 Community Engagement
11.2.1 Community Engagement HB
Strategy agreed by
Cabinet.
11.2.2 Toolkit developed. HB
11.2.3 Engagement results built HB
into annual strategic
review of Council Plan
11.3 CSC/Website
11.3.1 Web developer to NP
establish what CSC want
on the website
11.3.2 Develop site NP
PR2: Political Governance
12 Expected Outcome Improved Governance
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
121 Overview & Scrutiny Overview & Scrutiny Work March 2011 CF Head of Legal,
Programme Democratic & Equalities
Annual Overview & Scrutiny March 2011 Scrutiny Officers
report
Senior Solicitor
12.2 Elections Democratic Task Group May 2010 CF Head of Legal,
May 2011 Democratic & Equalities
Democracy Year
Elections Manager
12.3 Modern Councillor Member Development Action September 2011 CF Head of Legal,

27




90| obed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

PR2: Political Governance

12 Expected Outcome Improved Governance
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
Programme Plan Democratic & Equalities
Learning &
Organisational
Development Manager
12.4 Member Standards Governance with March 2011 CF Head of Legal,
partnerships confidence Democratic & Equalities
protocol
Senior Solicitors
Officer/Member Code of
Conduct with training Standards Committee
Ref. Action Lead Status / Corrective Action
s | > 2 1 >lo|a|ls |30 |8 =
o | ® = 1) ©
<|=|3 |3 |3 |a|0|2|8|85|8|=
12.1 Overview & Scrutiny
12.1.1 Determine the 2010/11 CF
work programme
12.1.2 Deliver specific CF
Chairmanship training for
Overview and Scrutiny
Board Chairman
12.1.3 Agree and publish a policy | CF

for managing petitions,
councillor calls for action,
crime and disorder and
public participation in
overview and scrutiny
topics

28




/0| obed

Improvement Plan: Template

2010/11 Draft Version

Ref.

Action

Lead

Apr.

May

June

July

Aug.

Sep.

Oct.

Nov.

Dec.

Jan.

Feb.

Mar.

Status / Corrective Action

12.2

Elections

12.21

Deliver the actions within
the year three Electoral
Services Improvement
Plan (replaced Charter
mark)

CF

12.2.2

Deliver ‘Would Be
Councillor Days’

CF

12.2.3

Deliver recommendations
from the Democracy Task
Group

CF

12.3

Modern Councillor Programm

12.31

Identify all compulsory
training elements for
Boards and Committees

CF

12.3.2

Deliver the pilot exercise
for PDPs and roll out
programme to volunteer
members in advance of
the District Elections in
May 2011 when the
programme will be rolled
out to all members

CF

12.4

Member Standards

12.41

Review the Member
complaint process and the
Standards Committee

CF

12.4.2

Deliver Member training
on outside bodies and
specific external
responsibilities

CF

12.4.3

Deliver Ombudsman
training

CF

29




80| obed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

PR3: Shared Services

13. Expected Outcome Improved services to the public
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
131 Transformation Team Recruitment of team September 2010 DP Head of Transformation
Input of RIEP KD Chief Executive
RIEP
13.2 Programme Plan CMT/SMT & Stakeholders September 2010 DP Transformation Team
Working Group Programme
of Work CMT/SMT
Ref. Action Lead o Status / Corrective Action
= | > S |lo|la|s |3 |0o|c|a|=
Q| ® c ) ©
<|=|3|3|2|H|o|2/8|8|8|=
13.1 Transformation Team
13.1.1 Draft job descriptions DP
13.1.2 Recruit team DP
13.2 Programme Plan
13.2.1 Hold CMT workshops on KD
Transformational thinking
13.2.2 | Meet with RIEP to KD
determine external support
available
13.2.3 Finalise programme KD
13.2.4 Implement programme KD

30




60| obed

Improvement Plan: Template

2010/11 Draft Version

PR4: WETT

14

Expected Outcome

Successful provision of the Regulatory Service across the County.
Improved property and Internal Audit service provision through
management of service level agreements with provider Authorities

Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
141 Property Services Project Plan June 2010 JP Transformation Team
14.2 Regulatory Services Project Plan June 2010 JP Transformation Team
14.3 Internal Audit Project Plan June 2010 JP Transformation Team
Ref. Action Lead Status / Corrective Action

sl e 2|o|d|g|2|¢|<|a|58
s |8 S| 5|3 |0o|R|0o|o o | S
< =3 |3|g|w|0|z|a|lS|L =
14.1 Regulatory Services
14.1.1 Mapping of posts to KD
structure
14.1.2 Deliver ICT improvements | KD
and access as detailed in
project plan
14.1.3 Manage governance KD
arrangements
14.1.4 Agree new structure with KD
staff and implement
14.1.5 Monitor financial KD
arrangements
14.1.6 Deliver actions as KD
identified within project
plan
14.2 Property Services
14.2.1 | Agree SLA with | TK | | | | | | | | |

31




0L obed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

Ref. Action Lead Status / Corrective Action
sl e 2|o|d|g|2|¢|<|a|s8
Q| ® c |5 5 o |3} o o ©
<|=|3|3|g|w|O0|z|a|S |2 =
Worcestershire CC
14.2.2 Monitor SLA to ensure TK
service provision met as
agreed
14.2.3 Review other property TK
service provision across
the Council for potential
transfer to County
14.3 Internal Audit
14.3.1 Agree SLA with Worcester | TK
City Council
14.3.2 Monitor SLA to ensure TK
service provision met as
agreed
14.3.3 Review Use Of Resources | TK
judgement to ensure
improvements delivered
as agreed
PRS5: Strategic Planning
15. Expected Outcome Improved Planning Service and Balanced Development of District
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
15.1 Core Strategy Evidence collection and November 2010 JS Strategic Planning
Strategy development Manager

Strategic Planning Team

32




| 1} obed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

PR5: Strategic Planning

15. Expected Outcome Improved Planning Service and Balanced Development of District
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
15.2 AAP Town Centre Town Centre Project Plan 31% March 2011 JS Senior Project Manager
(Bromsgrove Town
Centre Regeneration)
Strategic Planning Team
Additional resource
15.3 IDeA Peer Review Peer review action plan June 2010 JS Strategic Planning Team
Additional resource
15.4 Longbridge Resolution of infrastructure October 2010 JS Strategic Planning Team
tariff for East Works and
determine planning External legal support
application.
Birmingham City Council
Ref. Action Lead Status / Corrective Action
s | 2|2 > 0o|da|lsw |30 |8 |
o | ® = [T) ©
<=3 /3|2 H|o|28|8 |2 =
15.1 Core Strategy
15.1.1 Prepare Evidence Bases | MD
to support Core Strategy
15.1.2 Engage with ATLAS to MD
support strategic
allocations
15.1.3 Prepared revised draft MD
Core Strategy
15.1.4 Consult on revised Draft | MD

33




21| ebed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

Ref. Action Lead

Apr
May

June

July

Aug.

Sep.

Oct.

Nov.

Dec.

Jan.

Feb.

Mar.

Status / Corrective Action

Core strategy

15.1.5 Consider Consultation MD
responses

15.2 AAP Town Centre

15.2.1 Prepare evidence base MD
to support the Town
Centre AAP

15.2.2 Prepared Draft Town MD
Centre AAP

15.2.3 Consult on Draft Town MD
Centre AAP

15.2.4 Consider Consultation MD
responses

15.3 IDeA Peer Review

15.3.1 Receive final report RB

15.3.2 Final report presented to | RB
scrutiny

15.3.3 Produce & implement RB
action plan

15.4 Longbridge

15.4.1 Cabinet approval for MD

Memorandum of
understanding and
project plan

15.4.2 Engagement with St MD
Modwen over East works
planning application

15.4.3 Determine planning MD
application

HR & OD1: Learning and Development




Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

€11 obed

16 Expected Outcome Improved Employee Skills and Capacity
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
16.1 Improved Employee skills | Service-level data, analysis & November 2010 DP Learning &
& capacity plans Organisational
Development Manager
16.2 Effective & consistent Review & deliver IIP action April 2011 DP Learning &
people management & plan Organisational
development processes December 2010 Development Manager
Create new joint appraisals
scheme
Ref Action Lead Status / Corrective Action
s | 2|2 > o|a|=E|3|0|c |8
g/2|3|3/2|8|c|2 8|5|& =2
16.1 Investors in People
16.1.1 Carryout BDC spot check | HP
16.1.2 Implement recovery HP
actions at BDC
16.1.3 Prepare for BDC HP
accreditation inspection
16.1.4 Prepare for RBC spot HP
check
16.2 Effective & consistent people management & development processes
16.2.1 Prepare shared appraisal HP
scheme
16.2.2 | Draft to CMT HP
16.2.3 Consultation HP
16.2.4 Launch new scheme HP

HR&OD2: Modernisation




1| abed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

17 Expected Outcome RBC and BDC staff to be employed under harmonised terms and
conditions where appropriate within an improved payroll service
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
171 Harmonisation Project Production of policy proposal | September 2010 TK HR Teams (Bromsgrove
(Policies / Terms & package for consultation & Redditch)
Conditions) December 2010(subject
Consultation exercise to Union agreement) Unions
Ref. Action Lead Status / Corrective Action
s (2|2 > |o|a|E8|3|0|c|alx=
Q| ® c |3} ©
</ 2|3 3|3 |a|0o|2|8|S|2|=
171 Harmonisation Project (Policies / Terms & Conditions
17.1.1 Identify terms and
conditions to be reviewed
17.1.2 Undertake mapping of
T&C across the Councils
17.1.3 Discuss proposals with
unions for consideration
and negotiation
17.1.4 Implement changes in
consultation with staff
HR& OD 3: Positive Employee Climate
18 Expected Outcome Positive employee climate
Ref. Measures of Success Actions Required Timescales Lead Resources
18.1 Improved Employee Creation of employee March 2011 DP Learning &

Engagement

engagement programme

Organisational
Development Manager

Communication &

Customer First Manager

36




GL| obed

Improvement Plan: Template
2010/11 Draft Version

Ref. Action Lead Status / Corrective Action
s 2| 2|20 |d|lg |3 |6|c|8]x
© c 7]
/= /3|3 28|02 8|S8|e|=
18.1 Improved Employee Engagement
18.1.1 BDC employee survey HP
18.1.2 Submit quick wins HP
proposals to CMT in
response to the survey
18.1.3 Implement quick wins HP
18.1.4 Develop proposals for HP/AMD
shared and separate
engagement programme
18.1.5 Submit proposals for HP/AMD

shared and separate
engagement activities to
CMT

37




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 116



Agenda Iltem 8

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD

19TH JULY 2010

SHARED SERVICES

Responsible Portfolio Holder Roger Hollingworth, Leader of the
Council
Responsible Head of Service Kevin Dicks, Chief Executive

Non-Key Decision

1.

1.1

2.

21

3.1

3.2

3.3

SUMMARY
To update the Board on the Shared Services project.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board:

i. Considers the attached Shared Service Progress Report and Shared
Service and Transformation Programme and makes any
recommendations to Cabinet it thinks appropriate.

BACKGROUND

The UK’s financial position has changed dramatically in the last twelve
months. Every public sector organisation is going to need to make
significant savings over the next Parliament, in order to cope with the
expected reductions in Central Government Grant whilst at the same time
retain and improve services.

The District Council is comparatively well placed to respond to this agenda,
through its shared services project with Redditch Borough Council and the
Worcestershire Enhanced Two Tier (WETT) project.

Shared Services

Shared Services will see Bromsgrove District Council and Redditch Borough
Council share services, both front office and back office, whilst remaining
separate organisations. The project has proceeded as planned with a
single Chief Executive and a number of “quick wins” like Elections and
Community Safety. A single management team for both Councils has now
been appointed. A project highlight report, supported by a risk register and
issues log, is produced each month for the Shared Services Board, made of
Members from both Councils. Item 3 the Shared Services Progress Report

Page 117




3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

6.1

7.1

7.2

together with Item 4 Shared Service and Transformation Programme (and
appendices 1 and 2) are attached.

WETT Programme

Regulatory Services should be operational by 01 June 2010 and hosted by
Bromsgrove and Redditch Councils. Property Services by 01 April 2010,
hosted by Worcestershire County Council and Internal Audit by 01 April
2010, hosted by Worcester City Council.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The single management team will deliver a saving of £246,000 in
2010/2011. In addition savings from the joint arrangements with Redditch
for CCTV, Lifeline and ICT will generate £120k from 2010/11.

The anticipated savings from the WETT programme are £150,000 in
2011/12.

It is anticipated that once the single management team is in place further
reviews of joint working arrangements will be undertaken to generate
additional savings and capacity to support the Council over the financial
plan period.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Every shared service will have legal implications, particularly, if we are not
the host authority. Each shared service whether with Redditch or with one
of the other councils in Worcestershire will be supported by a detailed
service level agreement (a form of contract).

COUNCIL OBJECTIVES

Shared Services and WETT contribute to the Council Objective:
Improvement and the priority: Value for Money.

RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY
CONSIDERATIONS

The main risks associated with the details included in this report are:

¢ Non delivery of savings.
e Non delivery of service improvements.

These risks are being managed as follows:
Risk Register: Shared Services.

Key Objective Ref No: Separate Risk Register
Key Objective: Separate Risk Register

Page 118



8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS

8.1 |t is important to remember that while there is bound to be an emphasis on
making savings our expectation is that each shared service will also seek to
improve services to the customer. This will be achieved using techniques
like lean systems, customer first training, customer services accreditation
and the use of technology.

9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 None.

10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

10.1 The whole report is concerned with value for money.

11. CLIMATE CHANGE AND CARBON IMPLICATIONS

11.1 The report is not directly concerned with climate change, but each new
shared service will be expected to consider how to contribute to reducing
CO2 emissions. The expectation is that each merged service will have one
service business plan that includes a section on climate change.

12. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Please include the following table and spell out any particular implications in
the relevant box. If there are no implications under a particular heading,
please state 'None’:-

Procurement Issues: See point about SLAs for each service.

Personnel: The single management team and shared services in
general will have significant HR issues and we will need to ensure
sufficient capacity for respond to this.

Governance/Performance Management: See previous point about
SLAs.

Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act
1998: The Community Safety service is one of the shared services.
Policy: None.

Biodiversity: None.

13. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT

| Portfolio Holder | No.

Page 119



Chief Executive Yes.

Executive Director — Regeneration, Planning No.
and Housing

Executive Director — Finance and Resources No.

Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive | No.
Director of Policy, Performance and No.
Partnerships

Head of Service No.
Head of Financial Services No.
Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic No.
Services

Head of Organisational Development & HR No.
Corporate Procurement Team No.

14. WARDS AFFECTED

All.

15. APPENDICES

Item 3 - Shared Service Progress Report
Iltem 4 - Shared Service and Transformation Programme (including
appendices 1 and 2)

16. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Not applicable.

CONTACT OFFICER

Name: Kevin Dicks

E Mail: k.dicks@bromsgrove.gov.uk
Tel: (01527) 881484

Page 120



AGENDA ITEM 3

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL AND REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

SHARED SERVICES BOARD

24" June 2010

PROGRESS REPORT

1.

1.1

2.1

3.1

3.11

3.1.2

SUMMARY

This report seeks to provide an update with regard to all elements of the Shared Services
work involving Bromsgrove and Redditch Councils (including the Worcestershire Enhanced
Two Tier (WETT) Programme.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that Members note the progress to date.

PROGRESS UPDATE - EXISTING / APPROVED SHARED SERVICES BETWEEN
BROMSGROVE AND REDDITCH COUNCILS

Progress on the existing Shared Services between Bromsgrove and Redditch is as follows:
Single Management Team

a. Recruitment to the vacant posts has now been completed — Ruth Bamford has already
taken up the post of Head of Planning and Regeneration and Amanda De Warr will
take up the post of Head of Customer Services on 5" July.

b. Top team development sessions have been held in order for the team to get to know
one another better and to start to bond as a team. These went very well and the
continued signs are that the team are gelling quickly and will become a very strong
team.

Elections

a. The electoral team is now fully established and all vacant posts have been filled.

b. The team has now had the opportunity to test the process during a live election and it
has proved to be very successful. During the recent Parliamentary and Borough
Council combined elections a member of the election team worked out of Redditch
Borough Council with the support of the administrative and IT services from
Bromsgrove District Council.

c. The process has of course identified areas where performance can be improved. This
is expected to continue as an exercise of continuous improvement with the Returning
Officers from both Councils meeting regularly with the Head of Service and the
Elections manager to manage the lessons learned.

Page 121



The campaign to promote the elections across the entire county proved to be a
success and both Councils boasted high voter turn out and a huge increase in the
numbers of people registering to vote.

The administration and call management was all provided through the shared services
team situated at Bromsgrove District Council and the officers situated at Redditch were
very complimentary of the improvement that this made to the overall delivery of the
election.

During the elections period there were a number of issues with regard to the Strand
electoral services software system that administers the election for both authorities.
This system is currently under review to see whether the system can be improved.
The officers within the IT departments at both Councils provided first rate IT support to
both authorities throughout the delivery of the election and this is to be congratulated
under the new shared services arrangements.

Both authorities will now look to learn from the delivery of a live election under the new
arrangements and to the continuous improvements that can be made in the delivery of
this service along with any potential procurement savings that might be achievable.

A recent Overview and Scrutiny Task Group at Bromsgrove has been looking into
improvements that can be made to democratic participation. Any recommendations
that are made as a result of this exercise will be shared with both Councils.

3.1.3 Community Safety

a.

oo

The Community Safety Shared Service commenced on 15th June 2009, with local

delivery teams based within both the Redditch and Bromsgrove locations.

The Head of Community Services and the Redditch and Bromsgrove Manager

regularly attends each of the Community Safety Partnerships and represents both

authorities at a corporate level, county-wide and at regional community safety events.

The Executive Director chairs the Worcestershire Safer Communities Board.

There have been a number of positive developments as a result of the shared service:

i. The Redditch Anti Harassment Partnership and the Bromsgrove Hate Incident
Partnership now form a joint partnership with a single Chairperson agreed.

ii. Joint training has been undertaken to address the work of the “Hate Incident
Partnership”.

iii. An Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy has been developed jointly between Redditch
and Bromsgrove including new statutory responsibility for minimum service
standards.

iv. Redditch and Bromsgrove successfully received a joint bid for a Home Office grant
of £15,000 to carry out a “problem profile” of Inter-personal violence across both
districts.

v. Officers are currently supporting both Council’s, Overview and Scrutiny committees
with their duty to scrutinise the Community Safety Partnerships.

vi. Ongoing support is being given to the ‘Community Call for Action’ in relation to
Swans Length, Alvechurch MUGA (Multi Use Games Area).

vii. Redditch Community Safety Partnership and Bromsgrove Community Safety

Partnership have collaborated and pooled their Area Based Grant to commission a
joint communication and marketing strategy and action plan.

viii. Redditch and Bromsgrove Community Safety Partnerships have developed their

minimum ASB standards and these are now published on both Council websites.
ix. Redditch has supported Bromsgrove in the removal of recent hate graffiti. It is
planned that a joint Graffiti Strategy be developed by March 2011.

Page 122



3.14 ICT

a.

The ICT shared service project has now entered the delivery phase against the items
outlined in the approved business case. RBC staff have been successfully TUPE'd
across to BDC. Consultation relating to the new ICT Team structure has been
completed with the new team structure scheduled to start on 1% August 2010.
Recruitment to the ICT Transformation Manager’s post has taken place but was
unsuccessful so this post will now go to external recruitment and the ICT unsuccessful
candidates have chosen to take redundancy as there were no redeployment
opportunities. The majority of other ICT staff will be slotted in but there are a few
vacant posts which will need to be recruited to.

Sub projects to align some of the ICT support and systems are now underway. The

key sub projects that have gone live include the first phase of the new Service Desk

system and the email & web filtering devices. The Service Desk is now configured to
enable improved management of calls logged at BDC and is being configured for

Redditch to migrate across before the existing system expires in September 2010. The

configuration feasibility work for the virtualisation of servers has been completed and

orders placed for the hardware to start the implementation of this sub project.

A single domain name (bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk) has been secured to facilitate

a single email service across both locations. Work is ongoing to develop a single

standardised active directory structure. The active directory structure is used to set

permissions and access controls for users.

Technical resources from both IT teams are involved in the delivery of the projects

outlined in the business case. The teams are working closely to deliver the necessary

technical changes required to develop a single ICT service whilst still supporting the
day to day operations at each location.

In addition to the items outlined in the ICT shared service business case other work

between the two councils is progressing as follows:

i. Disaster Recovery — Configuration and testing of data migration and recovery is
ongoing and will continue alongside the other infrastructure changes outlined
above.

ii. Web development — The shared Intranet (The Orb) went live at both Councils in
May 2010 as planned. Phase two of this project which focuses on content and data
structures is now being scoped. The content and data structures will be aligned
around information management standards for indexing, version control and meta
data creation. (Meta data — data about data eg: author, subject, creation date etc).

3.1.5 CCTV/ Lifeline

Bromsgrove staff TUPE transferred into Redditch Borough Councils employment on 4"
January 2010.

Full consultation was undertaken with the staff and the Trades Unions. The
consultation period was extended to allow all team members to respond to the
proposed structure and revised shift and rota patterns.

There was competition for the Lifeline and CCTV Manager post (two existing
Managers). However one Manager was redeployed to an existing vacant post so
there was no redundancy required. Both team leaders have been appointed.

Page 123



o.

p.

Eight of the control/supervisor staff submitted requests for Voluntary Compulsory
redundancy. All eight requests were agreed by the VCR panel whose composition
was an Executive Director, HR Manager and Trade Union representative.

The anticipated cost of redundancy built into the Business Case was £80,000. the
actual cost of the agreement to all eight VCR requests (including pension costs) was
£110K. Should the requests have not been agreed there would have been the
necessity to undertake recruitment to all the operator posts within the structure with the
requirement to make compulsory redundancies.

The impact of the additional VCR costs is that the prospected savings of £262K for
2010/11 will be reduced by £30K. Savings for the full financial year are therefore
anticipated to be £232K between both Authorities.

Garden leave requests from all the staff for whom VCR has been agreed have been
received. Managers are currently ensuring full cover can be maintained prior to final
agreement of individual dates.

All remaining operator staff have been offered positions within the new structure, and
all have accepted. Five Members of staff have had a reduction of 3 hours per week
however will be salary protected within the provision of Redditch Borough Councils
salary protection policy.

There are 19 hours (3 shift covers) ultimately vacant. This post(s) will be recruited to
as soon as possible.

Bromsgrove’s Control Centre closed on the 9™ June 2010 ahead of the anticipated
timescale, and all Lifeline and CCTV services were rerouted to the Redditch Control
Centre. From this date all Bromsgrove staff have been relocated to Redditch other
than two Telecare staff who currently operate from Bromsgrove.

Lifeline services have been continually operational and the control centre has full
control of CCTV cameras for Bromsgrove, Redditch and Wyre Forest.

New software has been installed with two days comprehensive training undertaken. A
full recording facility is operational in addition to download facility from the cameras.
It is a significant achievement for all involved in the shared service project to have
achieved delivery of both a major capital project alongside a staffing restructure and
revised rota and shift arrangements.

There were no technical issues experienced with the Lifeline Service and although
some minor technical issues with CCTV, these have been overcome.

The Manager and Team Leaders are currently reviewing and combining all policies
and procedures alongside an ongoing training programme.

The Manager and Team Leaders are now operating a full cover ‘on call rota’.

3.1.6 Payroll

a.

b.

Redditch continues to operate a joint payroll service for both Redditch and Bromsgrove
and this has now been running as a shared service for the last 18 months.

It is recognised that Payroll is a business critical service and resilience is essential. As
part of the revised Management arrangements payroll now falls within the remit of the
Executive Director (Finance and Corporate Resources) and has been transferred from
HR to Finance. The section is now managed by the Accountancy Services Manager at
Redditch to ensure that integrated financial controls and checks within the service area
support and enhance the arrangements for payroll.

Page 124



During May the payroll service completed the set up of all new staff relating to the
WETT Regulatory Services transfer. An additional 160 staff are now part of the
establishment for Bromsgrove District Council and payroll have undertaken a
significant analysis of all data for individual employees to ensure accurate and timely
payments are made from June 2010. An additional payroll officer is currently being
recruited as approved in the hosting costs associated with the new service provision.
Initial discussions are to be held with Wyre Forest District Council to explore the
possibility of Redditch taking on the provision of a payroll service for them.

3.1.7 Procurement

a.

The procurement agenda continues to be progressed across both Authorities with

some additional dedicated support. The network and shared service opportunities

within the County continue to be explored and a final business case has been

produced by the procurement officers which is due to be considered by the WETT

Project Management Group in June to decide on the timeline for implementation. The

joint Bromsgrove and Redditch officer has been the lead in the development of this

project. The business case appears as a separate item on this evenings agenda.

Developments within our respective Council’s include the following:

o Full review, staff consultation and purchase of a new Vending Machine contracted

service (BDC)

Support to an improved and standard contract for hygiene services (BDC)

Support to the tendering of sporting facilities at Barnsley Hall (BDC)

Corporate Contracts established for stationery and print services (BDC and RBC)

Office furniture contract agreed with Solihull MBC (RBC and BDC)

Plumbing supplies, utilities, fencing and landscape materials (RBC)

Suite of new printers installed to improve performance and reduce cost (RBC)

Advice on the Regulatory Services procurement implications (RBC and BDC)

Consultancy advice and support is provided to services from the corporate unit

including major projects ongoing in both authorities. This alongside major contract re-

negotiations is achieving significant savings supporting both reinvestment in services

and cashable savings.

Successful collaboration procurement actions with Members of the Worcestershire and

Warwickshire Procurement Group and the RIEP include:

¢ Insurance - significant savings for all councils across Worcestershire — Redditch
£70K per annum and Bromsgrove £78K per annum.

e Data analysis — detailed data analysis and management information for all
Worcestershire districts on what we purchase, from whom and total values.

Successful supplier seminars have been delivered for both Councils on:

e “How to do Business with the Council”

e “Understanding the Documents”

The intranet has been re organised in order to provide guidance for officers on aspects

of all procurement. Advice available includes: Supplier Listings, External compliant

contracts, Contractual Risk , Framework Agreements, Simple procurement guide,

National Procurement Strategy, Social Issues in Procurement, Framework Agreement

Letter of Appointment, Model Framework Conditions and Standard terms and

conditions.

The harmonisation of policies and procedures is complete and is being considered by

both legal services teams to ensure compliance with current practices. It is assumed

that these new policies will be reported to Councils in the Summer.

Page 125



A joint programme of procurement will be commenced to ensure maximum
opportunities at both councils in the future. Ongoing developments and programme of
work will include:
e Extension of corporate contracts.
e Continuation of consultancy advice and support.
e The Collaborative programme largely driven by opportunities derived from the
Spikes Cavell results.
o Staff and Member training.
Supplier seminars.
Extended work on policies and procedures including supplier risk and EU remedies
Directives implications.

3.1.8 Climate Change

a.

The Climate Change shared service is progressing fairly well. There are some issues
in terms of the Councils being at different stages of development in terms of Climate
Change performance which means that joint-working is not as efficient as it could/will
be in the future. However having said this, for a service which is not yet a year old, the
service is progressing positively.

There are five national indicators that relate to climate change. NI185 — emissions

from the two councils operations, NI186 — emissions from the community (domestic

housing, transport and business), NI187 — fuel poverty, NI188 — adapting to climate
change (the Council being in a position to respond to more extreme weather
conditions) and NI189 — flood plans. Looking at these in turn:

¢ NI185 — The two councils are in contrasting positions. Bromsgrove is better at data
quality i.e. using accurate data, from which we can manage our emissions, but
Bromsgrove has no action plan in place to reduce emissions. Redditch has
problems with its data quality (we are going to have to re-calculate the 2008/2009
baseline for a second time and report the change to Central Government), but is
much more advanced in terms of programmes to reduce emissions e.g. grant
programmes for improvements to assets, testing out electric vehicles etc. The initial
focus of the Director of Policy, Performance and Partnerships is twofold:

o ensuring the data quality is accurate in both councils; and
o developing a joint climate change strategy.

e NI186 — Community, Business Transport Carbon Emissions is going relatively well
at both Councils although more could be done. The Climate Change Manager, with
the support of the Policy Unit, is in the process of coordinating progress across
different departments which influence this indicator via a new Trace tool developed
by the Energy Savings Trust.

¢ NI187 — we are achieving our targets on this indicator.

e NI188 — The Climate Change Manager has requested to join the corporate risk
steering group at Bromsgrove as a way to provide oversight on whether this risk is
being managed. This needs to be mirrored at Redditch.

e NI189 — This involves the development of flood plans for each parish. This is less
of an issue that in the south of the County, but does need to be delivered. The
Director of Policy, Performance and Partnerships needs to discuss this target
further with the two Executive Directors.

Page 126



C.

Other items of interest are:

The Energy Savings Trust One-to-One programme is going to be a project led by
the new CMT.

RBC has signed up to the national campaign 10:10, aiming to achieve a 10%
reduction in its own CO2 emissions in 2010/11. BDC have referred this item to
Overview and Scrutiny.

BDC have an established process in place to deliver on LSP Better Environment
Targets and both indicators for 2010-13 relate to improving performance on
Climate Change.

Finally at RBC there is a Climate Change Advisory Panel — it has been suggested
by members on that Panel that this be extended to cover both Bromsgrove and
Redditch — members views on this are sought. The Director of Policy,
Performance and Partnerships and the Climate Change Manager have considered
this further and feel that at this stage we should continue with separate
arrangements and focus on development of the Joint Climate Change Strategy.
The Strategy has now been put on the Forward Plan at both councils.

4. PROGRESS UPDATE - OTHER SHARED SERVICES BETWEEN BROMSGROVE AND

REDDITCH COUNCILS

41 Economic Development

a.

On 20th April, the Shared Services Board (SSB) agreed the four principal
recommendations set out in the report produced by Inspira Consulting Ltd regarding the
way forward for the development of an Economic Regeneration and Development
Strategy for North Worcestershire. These recommendations were:

shared Economic Regeneration & Development Strategy.

teams of all three District Councils be merged to form a single service for North
Worcestershire.

in time, a fully integrated Housing, Transport, Regeneration and Economic
Development Strategy for North Worcestershire.

a full, collective role in County structures that shape economic strategy; Members
equipped and willing to represent the interests of North Worcestershire, not just
their own District.

The SSB also recommended to the respective Executive Committee and Cabinet, the
delivery of a North Worcestershire Economic & Regeneration service by a single team
hosted by Wyre Forest District Council and that an Implementation Plan be agreed
between the three Councils with effect from 1st October 2010 or such other date as may
be agreed by the three Councils.

The recommendations have subsequently been agreed by Executive/Cabinet of the
three Councils and are due to be considered by Full Council.

In the meantime, discussions have continued regarding various aspects of the
Implementation Plan, which includes such matters as the financial business case, risk
analysis, governance, performance management and communications. Chief
Executives and Directors are scheduled to meet on 8th July 2010 to review progress.

Page 127



4.2 Independent Remuneration Panel

a. Atpresent BDC and RBC each have a separate Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP)
which consider and make recommendations on Members’ Allowances. Wyre Forest
District Council also has its own separate arrangements, whilst a joint IRP covers
Malvern Hills District Council, Wychavon District Council and Wychavon City Council.

b. As part of WETT discussions in relation to Legal and Democratic Services, officers have
given consideration to the way forward with regard to IRPs and have expressed support
for extending the current joint IRP to include the three District Councils in northern
Worcestershire. An officer from Wychavon District Council has been tasked to write a
report for submission to District Councils on the proposed way forward. This report will
now go forward to each Council for consideration.

5. WORCESTERSHIRE ENHANCED TWO TIER WORK (WETT) PROGRAMME

5.1 Requlatory

a. All seven Councils have approved the business case proposals for their respective
councils.

b. The Head of Regulatory Services has been appointed and in post from 1 June 2010.

Staff were TUPE transferred to BDC employ on 1% June 2010.

The Joint Committee for Regulatory Services met for the first time on 11th June 2010

and comprises two Councillors from each Council.

e. Regulatory Service requirements for all councils have been documented with Member
Roadshows held to answer any questions members had.

f. The legal agreements were signed in advance of the launch of the new service. This
involved a lot of work and was led extremely well by Claire Felton.

g. Achieving the first Regulatory Shared Service, the first in the Country, has been
achieved through a lot of hard work and there are a number of people who it is felt
deserve special mention: Jayne Pickering (from a financial standpoint and generally
ensuring all issues were resolved), Claire Felton (with regard to the legal agreement)
and Becky Barr (supported by Mark Stanley from a HR perspective).

oo

5.2 Audit

a. Staff were TUPE transferred to Worcester City Council employ on 1 June 2010.
b. Appointment to the Internal Audit Manager post internally was unsuccessful so external
recruitment is underway.

5.3 Property
a. Staff were TUPE transferred to Worcester County Council employ on 1% June 2010.

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 Following the successful recruitment to the single management team the financial position
on the payment of severance costs is complete with all associated payments being made to
staff who have left the organisations. The total cost of £896k has been accounted as part of
the financial position 2009/10 and is less than the originally anticipated cost of £927k. This is
excluded from the schedule at Appendix B.

Page 128



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

7.

71

The ongoing saving delivered through the single management team is £330k in 2010/11
arising to £450k in 2011/12 following the initial support for implementation that will be
required in the Councils.

A detailed review has been undertaken by officers of both Councils to identify a more robust
allocation method for the cost sharing of the shared services already implemented.
Following discussions and consideration of best practice in cost sharing the revised position
is as follows:

Elections — based on electorate

Payroll — based on payslips produced

Community Safety — 50% share agreed as no other cost sharing basis relevant
Lifeline — no of units

CCTV —no of cameras

ICT — 50% share agreed on initial split — to be revised when infrastructure
requirements realised through future developments.

The schedule attached at Appendix C shows the revised allocation of savings sharing for
each Council and reflects the estimated position of savings for 2010/11. This position will be
reported on a quarterly basis to the Board for consideration.

The services shared for Community Safety and Elections do not realise cash efficiencies but
have provided increased resilience and improvement across both Councils.

Total savings of £85k were realised as a result of the shared working across the 2 Councils
in 2008/09 mainly from sharing a Chief Executive and joint procurement arrangements..
The savings for 2009/10 were £432k. These figures will form part of the Statement of
Accounts to be Audited in July 2010. These are a combination of cash savings and those
resulting from the services being delivered in a more efficient way by supporting officers and
members across the 2 Councils. The schedule at Appendix B details the savings made.
The set up costs relating to the implementation of the new systems and shared service for
elections were £75k. It is worth noting that Redditch Borough Council were anticipating
investing in a new system to provide resilience and improvements to the elections service.
This was utilised to offset an element of the initial set up costs which have been shared on
an equal basis across the Councils. These set up costs are not included in Appendix B.

The following table shows the summary position:

SUMMARY SHARED SERVICE FINANCIAL POSITION
2008/09 2009/10 2010/11
£'000 £'000 £'000
SAVINGS 85 432 1,016
SET UP COSTS 18 75 896
NET SAVINGS 67 357 120

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report — these will be addressed as each proposal is brought
forward for consideration however work is going on with regard to the progressing shared
services agenda between the two councils as follows:

Page 129



8.1

9.1

9.2

9.3

10.

10.1

11.

12.

12.1

13.

13.1

13.2

Members are advised that the Shared Services Framework Agreement has now been
amended in accordance with the instructions received at the Shared Services Board
Meeting on 20" April 2010. Both Councils will consider this revised document at their
meetings in June whereupon they will be signed and adopted.

The governance arrangements in respect of the WETT programme have been addressed
by both authorities in relation to each service.

COUNCIL OBJECTIVES

Each Council will need to ensure any proposals support its own Council Objectives.

RISK MANAGEMENT

None arising directly from this report however it is envisaged that the approach to Risk

Management will operate at 2 levels:

a. Risk mitigation/controls for respective proposals/services

b. Ongoing assessment of the short/long term risks contained within the original
feasibility report.

Risk registers at both Councils include the corporate risks associated with the delivery of the

transformation programme. These will continue to be monitored as part of the wider risk

management considerations at the relevant Audit Board and Committees.

In terms of the ongoing assessment of the short/long term risks contained within the original

business case an update is provided at Appendix A. Members are asked to consider the risk

register in order to ensure it includes all risks and that members are comfortable with

mitigation.

CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS

No direct impact on the Customer arising from this report, although indirectly the intention of
each area is to deliver efficiencies/savings or improve service quality to the ultimate benefit
of the customer.

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report — these will be addressed as each proposal is brought
forward for consideration.

VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

Value for Money and delivery of efficiencies is the driving force behind Shared Services.

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS

The final recruitment to the remaining Heads of Service posts has now been completed.
The successful internal applicant has taken up the Head of Planning and Regeneration post
with the externally appointed Head of Customer Services starting on 5" July.

There will be ongoing human resource issues in the forthcoming transformation programme
and any interim arrangements which need to be made prior to further service reviews will be
considered.

10

Page 130



13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

14.

Members, staff and the Trade Unions will be kept fully appraised of proposals including
formal consultation where there are impacts on terms, conditions and any employment
matters. This has been the case in all shared services currently implemented and the
arrangements have been well received by unions and staff.

Staff affected by the Council’s decisions to proceed with the WETT shared services have
been involved in full consultation prior to the implementation of 1% June. The staff have
TUPE’d across to the host authority and will continue to be consulted on any future service
reviews and restructures. Trade Unions have been involved in the implementation group
meetings during the period.

Officers recruited to the Single Management Team have been issued with Contracts of
Employment advising that any impact as a result of the harmonisation of terms and
conditions of employment will be subject to formal consultation prior to implementation.

Work is proceeding in respect of mapping and proposals for the harmonisation of terms and
conditions for both Bromsgrove and Redditch.

The harmonisation team of HR officers across both Councils have started the initial
mapping of the terms and conditions across the Councils and this will be discussed with
Trade Union representatives in July. The aim is to agree a revised set of harmonised
polices which will in turn result in a revised set of terms and conditions.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Procurement Issues

None in relation to this report.

Personnel Implications

Staff and trade union consultation would need to be undertaken with any proposals that have an
impact on staff.

Governance/Performance Management

None

Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 1998

None

Policy

None

Environmental

None

Page 131

11



15.

16.

WARDS AFFECTED

All
APPENDICES
Appendix A Risks

Appendix B Financial Statement 2010.11
Appendix C  Financial Statement 2009.10

Page 132

12



17. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Shared Services Papers

Kevin Dicks
Chief Executive
Bromsgrove District and Redditch Borough Councils

Page 133

13



ye| obed

Appendix A

In developing the risk analysis the following matrix has been used:

Likelihood: Impact:
High 4 Critical 4
Significant 3 Major 3
Medium 2 Marginal 2
Low 1 Low 1
Ref | Risk L | I | Score | Mitigation
1. Impact of changes in 3|12|6 The programme and the proposed governance model have been designed to
political leadership accommodate changes in political leadership.
Regular meetings with Leaders of all Political Groups (at RBC) to ensure that it is
clear that the management team serves all members not just controlling group.
2. Lack of staff capacity to 2148 The proposed Transformation Team and the fact that it is embedded within the
implement the organisational structure will provide expertise and resource to plan and lead the
recommendations. implementation programme. In addition an increased number of management
posts (as against that proposed by Serco) have increased the capacity of the
management team to deliver the change required. Furthermore, the financial
plan for the first year of shared services includes funding to provide additional
legal, financial and Human Resources support during the period of transition. In
addition to this the Shared Services / Transformation Programme has been
developed to try to ensure that there is the capacity to deliver this.
3. Loss of key senior staff 1133 The new management team have effectively taken up new roles now — this risk
following recruitment has therefore been reduced in terms of level.




Ge| obed

Lack of buy-in from staff

The staff interviewed by Serco understood the need for sharing and the
recommendations within the business case have minimal impact on the majority
of staff. A regular programme of staff engagement, communication and
consultation is underway to ensure staff are fully involved with the process. The
new management team are providing support to staff by being located at both
Councils during the course of the week to provide visible leadership and support.
In addition a number of staff forums have been held to introduce and network
with the new management team.

Lack of support from unions

Ongoing and regular dialogue with Unions throughout the whole process to
ensure they are involved in the process. It has felt that this has gone well with
regard to the Bromsgrove and Redditch Shared Services agenda but needs to
be improved with regard to WETT projects.

Downturn in performance
during implementation.

The transformation programme will be spread over three years to allow a gradual
approach, including up to a year to design the new structure, develop the new
business plan and prepare for implementation for each service. This, together
with careful monitoring of performance, will reduce this risk. Regular
performance monitoring is continuing at the joint Corporate Management Team
to identify any concerns early.

Cultural differences
between the two Councils

These will be addressed as part of the engagement and communication strategy
for the overall programme and as part of the Transformation Programme. This
will be supplemented by investment in and commitment to a meaningful
organisational development programme that promotes the development of a new
culture for the partnership organisation (which is not subordinate to the pre-
existing cultural norms). Linking Organisational Development with the
Transformation agenda will also help to address this. Top team development
days have been held (including systems thinking) with further sessions planned
to ensure that the cultural differences are addressed.

Differences in terms and
conditions

Work is already underway to identify and address these differences and this will
be accelerated to ensure a common set of terms and conditions are in place as
soon as possible. See earlier in the report.

Differences in IT systems

While differences in IT systems in some services will reduce the initial scope for
savings, this issue will be addressed as part of the implementation planning for
individual services and will be removed over time as contracts come up for
review. This will be supported by the move to a Shared ICT service.

10.

Potential conflict with WETT
work

The Management Structure take full account of current and planned WETT work.
The Shared Services programme will take account of any future WETT
programme.




9¢| ebed

11. Meeting member The overall governance model will be reviewed to find the most effective way of
expectations in relation to enabling one service manager to engage with members and service two
access and engagement committees.

12. Delivering the projected The savings in the revised financial model will be achieved — severance costs
savings and non-financial are lower than budgeted.
benefits

13. | Confusion for customers This risk can be mitigated by a programme of regular communication, which

stresses the benefits of the changes, both financially to the two Councils and in
terms of improved delivery of services to customers.

14. Emergence of issues The structure proposes a Lead Officer for Redditch and a Lead Officer from

presenting a ‘conflict of
interest for the CEO / other
management team
members in relation to
policy advice to both
Councils during lifetime of
longer term partnership
(e.g. wicked issues such as
future LGR)

Bromsgrove when issues such as this arise. In addition a conflicts resolution
policy has been agreed as part of the overarching agreement.




Agenda ltem 4

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL AND REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

SHARED SERVICES BOARD

24" June 2010

SHARED SERVICES /| TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME

1.

1.1

2,

21

SUMMARY

This report presents for consideration by the Shared Services Board a draft
proposal for the future programme of shared service and transformation
between Bromsgrove District and Redditch Borough Councils. It also
outlines the change methodology to be used by Bromsgrove and Redditch
Council’s to deliver the programme of transformation.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Shared Services Board:

2.1.1 approve the use of the WMIEP systems thinking change methodology for

the transformation of service areas; and

2.1.2 discuss and agree the proposed programme of service areas to be

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

considered for Shared Services / Transformation between the two
councils.

BACKGROUND

In June 2008, both RBC and BDC agreed to the appointment of a Shared
Chief Executive with effect from 1 August 2008. As part of the agreement
to share a Chief Executive a number of opportunities for developing other
shared services were identified and have been progressed eg: the single
management team.

In order to continue to progress the shared service and transformation
agenda SERCO were engaged, in 2009, to deliver a report outlining the
case for joint and shared working between Bromsgrove and Redditch
Councils. The findings from the Serco report have been included in the
proposed three year programme for shared services/transformation. This is
attached at Appendix 1.

In addition to the SERCO document a further analysis of services has been
undertaken to assess the potential benefits of systems thinking /
transformational activity. The analysis plotted the potential savings and
service improvements (as a result of systems thinking) against the ease of
implementation. The output from this analysis has also been used to inform
the draft programme plan.

In order to further influence the development of the programme plan, visits
were made to Warwick District Council and to Staffordshire Moorlands /

Page 137



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

High Peak Borough Council. Warwick District Council has done a lot of
work on transformational / systems thinking and has achieved some
significant improvements to performance in both Benefits (Housing and
Council Tax) and Housing Repairs. Staffordshire Moorlands and High Peak
Councils also have a single Chief Executive and a single management
team and share a number of services. It is clear from the reference site
visits and from discussions with other Shared Chief Executives that no
council has yet combined the two approaches of transformational thinking
and shared services as BDC and RBC are proposing to do.

The West Midlands Improvement and Efficiency Partnership have also
been extremely helpful and supportive in the development of the proposed
programme and have provided four days of ‘systems thinking’ support and
training to the Single Management Team. The training has enabled CMT to
have a better understanding of the systems thinking approach and how it
can be used to maximise the potential benefits of shared services and
transformation.

Following completion of the analysis and site visits it is felt that there are six
service areas that would benefit from transformational system thinking
(before the implementation of any shared service). These areas are as
follows:

Year 1

Revenues and Benefits (although these will be undertaken jointly due to the
cross over of the issues / working practices it is worth recognising that they
are distinct areas)

WETT Regulatory Services

Year 2

Planning

Depot Services (Refuse Collection, Recycling, Street Cleansing and
Grounds Maintenance)

Year 3
Housing
Community Services/Community Cohesion

It is worth noting that the whole council will be affected by transformational /
systems thinking however with regard to the service areas outlined above it
is felt that it is crucial that these service areas are “transformed” before a
shared service is considered.

The shared service aspect of the programme plan (Appendix 2) is based on
the same three year timeline and would see a number of services being
shared whilst the above transformation activity was carried out.

In considering the proposed shared services / transformation programme
the Board are asked to note the following:

e The programme is flexible and may change to take account of
opportunities as and when they arise e.g., when posts become vacant

Page 138



4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

e The programme will need to be reviewed to take account of any future
developments in the WETT (Worcestershire Enhanced Two Tier)
programme. The WETT Programme Board will have an away day on
25" June to develop proposals for the next phase of the programme —
the Board may wish to consider areas that they would like put forward.

e Members will note that it is suggested that the Programme start from
September 2010 although initial work may be undertaken before then.
This is to enable the views of staff to be taken into account — staff
briefings will be held week commencing 28" June to outline the
proposed programme. It will also enable us to recruit to the Shared
Service / Transformation team which will support areas going through
reviews.

o Whilst Appendix 1 includes the potential savings identified by Serco in
the initial business case members should note that these are not
necessarily the savings that will be delivered by the area in question.

e There may also be the need for interim management structures in some
service areas to ensure that services operate effectively on a day today
basis and that there is capacity to carry out the transformation work.
However, these changes will be minimised to reduce the impact on staff.

KEY ISSUES

What is Systems Thinking?

Systems thinking is an approach to changing the way we deliver our
services. The approach adopts a whole system, or, end to end, view of how
we deliver our services and includes the analysis and impact of: external
pressures eg: from central government, what our customers want, how we
currently deliver our services, the difference between work demand and
failure demand, how we could change/improve the way we deliver our
services and how we can measure the improvements.

This approach is currently being used by a number of other local authorities
to deliver significant service improvements and efficiencies. These include:
Warwick District Council, Stoke on Trent City Council, Dudley MBC and
Stafford County.

Transformation Team

Another key issue to be considered is the management of the programme
to ensure that it is delivered on time and to plan. This will need to be
addressed through the additional transformation / shared service resource
that was outlined in the original single management team proposals.
Further work to establish this team will be required prior to the delivery of
the programme plan.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report, although indirectly the intention of the
programme plan is for each service area to deliver efficiencies/savings and
improvements in service quality.

Page 139



6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

1.

11.1

12.

12.1

13.

13.1

14.

14.1

15.

15.1

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

None

COUNCIL OBJECTIVES

Each Council will need to ensure any proposals support its own Council
Objectives.

RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY
CONSIDERATIONS

None arising directly from this report. However, it is envisaged that risks
will be mitigated and controlled as part of the programme and project
governance.

CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS

No direct impact on the Customer arising from this report, although indirectly
the intention of each area is to deliver efficiencies/savings or improve
service quality to the ultimate benefit of the customer.

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report. These will be addressed as each
proposed service area is considered for sharing or transformation.

VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET
MANAGEMENT

Value for Money and delivery of efficiencies is the main driving force behind
the shared service/transformation programme.

CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY

None

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report. However, it is envisaged that any HR
implications will be included as part of the programme and project
governance.

GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report. However, it is envisaged that there
may be short term performance implications in some service areas while the
programme is being delivered.

Page 140



16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF
CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998

16.1 None

17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

17.1 None

18. LESSONS LEARNT

18.1 The analysis method of plotting savings/service improvements against ease
of implementation was discussed at an Action Learning Set with other
Shared Chief Executives who endorsed the approach. However, it was also
felt that two other factors should be considered: Take advantage as and
when opportunities arise e.g. through vacant posts and be aware of the
impacts of more than one shared service / transformational activity within
one service area.

19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

19.1 None

20. WARDS AFFECTED

All Wards

21. APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Shared Services / Transformation Timeline — supporting information
Appendix 2 Proposed Shared Services / Transformation Timeline

22. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name: K.Dicks

E Mail: k.dicks@bromsgrove.gov.uk or
Kevin.dicks@redditchbc.gov.uk

Tel: (01527) 881400

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 142



paleys Apeally V/N V/N Abisu3) |z epusby / 8bueyd sjew|d
‘M3IABJ BANjeIsIUILIpE Aue Jo Jed se
pajelodiooul 8g pjnoys mainal Aue jeyy 3a) st il
pue pajeledsas aq AjIses 1,uUBd YoIym SjusWwa|e
J9Y}0 ajelod.iooul S[1ounod Yloq e sajoy S 9|qib11BaN (Dag) woddng 21A1D
pamalnal usaq aAeY
seale Jayjo uaym awwelboid ayj jo pus ayj je
P81ONPUOD MBIAS. ||BJIOAO PUB MBIASI SBIIAISS
paJeys yoes jo [9oJed pue ued se pamalnal
aq pue BuuIy) swa)sAs / [euoljewlojsuel) paynuenb Buiuedo
Aq papoddns aq 0} paau pjnopp 8 10N 1S0d |eljua) Juonedisiuiwpy aelodion
(018 WYyD) suonoadsu -
s109lo.d |eloadg -
yBisu| Jawoysny -
(yusoo (ap]
gem jJo ybisiano Buipnjour) uoiowold M
pue BunexyJiel ‘suoiesuNwWwo?) - )
&
Jauoog uswabebug Ajlunwwo) g uoieynsuoy) - o
(ABoyens
Jauoog oly0ads aa1nIas Buipnjoxa) Aoljod -
aonpal
pue sassa20.4d auljWweal}s pjNoOM’S|IouNod
Z 91 ssoloe ylomawel) Juswabeuew uswaAosdw|
aouewuopad a|buls jo uonejuswaldu| Jauoog 9 Juswabeue)) souewlIONad -
(dsT
juiof Joy) Jaje] dsi-
aleys 0} Asea Ajonne|al sdiysiauped
SIY} @YeW pjnom Yoiym Hgy 1e SjJuspuooss 3083 - X093 pue souewJlopad
/ sisod juedea Jo Jaquinu e aJe aJay | z usamiag :Bunelodioour Ao1j04 ‘Aoljod Jo Joyoauiq
sjuswWwo9 IdY10 9SB) ERYINETS BAlY 921AI9G JO pEAH
(jaom ssauisng
S,pue||oH uelg (3no1p 092.49g Jad
Jad se) yaje] | =) ‘Asea =) | se Buiaeg
| Jauoog | MoN |Bulieysg jo aseg| |enuajod

| Xipuaddy - $ wa)| epuaby

1 Xipuaddy

uonew.ojul buioddns - swwelboid uoljewlojsuel] / 92IAI8S paleys pasodold




"S9|0J 8] JO
alnjeu Bbuiddejiano ayy 0y anp |eba] apisbuoje
paJapISU0d 8 pINoys siy} yeys o4 (dST

0} PapuU02as) SRO Ul DY e }sod jueoep MON S NOOL3 Hoddng Jaquiay @ S82IAI8S dljeloowa(
MBIASY |el0109[]
paleys Apealy MON V/N V/N olpoliad ‘S82IAISS |BI0)09|T @ UOIOd|]
‘epuabe
S80IAIBS paleys ay) Jo 1sal 8y} 0y Indul
8y} uanlb swwelbolid Aue Jo pus ay} spJemo}
8Q p|noys saoIAIag [eloueul{ pue [efa 1ey) S80IAISS 2NeIoOWa(]
S| S9AINDaXT JolyD paleys Jayjo Wwolj aoIApY MON ¥ N3 S92IAIBS ® 92IApY |ebBa| % seienb3] ‘jebeT jo peaH
"S[IDUN0D OM] 81 JoA0 JI|ds aq [Im YoIym
wea) Juswabeuew s)buls Jo uonejuswaduwi swalsAg uea pue buussuibua
uIyIm palnuapl eainosal aieledsg V/N V/N -9y $S900l1d ssauisng ‘uoneuwliojsuel |
3149°L
"90IAI8S paleys Se YH ulyum <
YH O uoielapIsuo9 / Sy} Jo Wed se passalppe papnjoul <t
a( 0} paau pjnom Buluiel; jo Alaaleqg Ajejesedas (Buluueld Mu
"921n0sal siy} aleys o) Anunuoddo ajeipawiwil payiuenb uoISS820Ng pue Buluue|d 82100 o
ue sapirold yoiym Dgy 18 JUBDEA S| 1S0d MON L 10N Buipnjoul) Juswdojaaa |euonesiueblQ Dnm
uswabeuey
SpJo2ay ‘uoioslold ejeq ‘uolewlou]
80IAI8S paleys 19| Jo Ued sy V/N V/N 10 Wopaal4 quawabeue)) uonew.ou|
BuaqwinN pue bBuiweN
80IAISG paleys 10| Jo ped sy V/N V/N 198113 / SI9 / 19spezes Auadold pue pue
(1o1€] BJOM
a.lemyos se yons
sjoadse uiepso uoljewJojsuel |
paleys buieq Apeally| 1ng) Jouoog V/N V/N 101 saulisng JO pesH
"Ul peq 0} Wesa| suolediunwwo)
paJeys Aue snid passalboid aq o) swweliboud
10| paJeys ayj Joy Japio ul swwelbo.id
8y Ul Ja1g| [nun SIY) 8ABS| 0] 1S9 8q p|nom
118U J|9 "S92IAI8S 8Y) Bulieys wod) paasiyoe (10s3
aq 0} sbuiaes aie a1ayj 8} SI }l Ing N0 aAalyoe
1|ds 8q 1,ued Yyons Se pue 8sed SSauIsSNg 02183 p|noo
8y} Jo ped se | 9| UlyIm papnjoul sem siy | MON 84 Inq) |IN solydesboiday 3 bunuld

1 Xipuaddy




"90IAI8S paleys lipny |eulau]
Aq dn payoid aq 0} - paiinbai saoinosal
@onpaJ 0] JapJo ul paublje ag 0] S8sS820.d

VIN

VIN

Jswabeuey ysiy

paJleys buiaq Apeal)y

MON

V/N

VIN

Hpny

‘PamaIA8l 8g UBD 8injonis pue
umouy ale wajsAs o) sebueyo aouo sseoold
uonjewlojsuel) sy jo Wed se pajebiisaaul aq

0] 80IAJ8S paleys - swwelboid uonewlojsuel)

Jo ued Buleg wouy J1jauaqg PjNOM 82IAI8S

Jsre

/83

s)jeuag B senuanay

‘1Isoy 0gd / Odd

1eyl |esodold "aliysyoimie p\ ssoloe Ajgissod
uay] pue AJUnoy ayj SSOIOe |[9A8] 101ISIP 1B 1IN0
pajjoJ 8q 0} siy} Jo} swwesboud | | AN Jo Led
se padojarsp ased ssauisng - paleys Apealy

MON

VIN

VIN

jusawialndold

Juswabeuey [eloueuld jo Wed se papnjou|

Jauoog

V/N

VIN

Juswabeuey 1geq g awoou| ajelodio)

‘we)sAg |eloueul

paJieys e Jo adueApe ul uasAlb aq 0} pesu

Aew uoneISPISUOD UOI}OUN) 8oURUIH Paieys

e JO sjyauaq [enusjod 8y} aSIWIXew 0} JapJo U]

"‘swwelbold ay} Jo pus By} SpJemoy}

1e paYoo| SI sIy} 1ey) 1sebBns pjnom saAnoexg
JIyD paleys Jayjo wouly sousiiadxy

"s|1ouUN09 g 8y} usamjaq Ajgjenbape

Joj pajunoooe ale s}sod Bulnsusa o} [e1oni)

38013

92IAPY ¥ Juswabeuey [el1ouUBUI{ @ SJUNOJDY

Page 145

$80Jn0Say 10 pesH

"M3IABJ aAlessiulwpe Aue Jo ued se
pajeiodiooul 8q pjnoys maiaal Aue jey y|a; si )l
pue pajeledas aqg Ajises 1,ued Yolym sjuswa|
Jay}o ajeJtodiooul S|IoUN0D Yloq Je sajoy

8|qibiBaN

(0gy) poddng 21A1D

0ayd

pue Dag je slapjoyisod ayj Aq usyeuspun
Ajualing ale jey) syoadse Juswebebus
Ajlunwwod ayy uaalb Aoljod episbuole
pamalral 8q pInoys siyl jeyl 3|84 'siy}
ayepapun 0} DY e 82inosal Jusuewlad ON

MON

I'N

Aysiong g senifenb3

(spounoo g

ay) usamjaq ajeudoidde aleym) saniunuoddo
swdojoaap / Buluiel Jo S}s00 8y aleys

0} uaye) aq |Im sanunuoddo jng poddng
Jaquia ¥ S82IAI9S dljelooWwaq Ul papn|ou|

V/N

VIN

JuswdojaAaa( Jaquis|y

1 Xipuaddy




JljeIoneaINnd SSa| pue JaIses )l eyew

0} JopJo ul sassaoo.d ubije 0} Y00| pjnopA aA0Qe U| syuieldwo)
aA0Qe U] S90IAI9S uondaoay
Juswabebu]
aA0Qe U] Jawo)sn) pue ssa02y Jawolsn)
aA0Qe U| 18414 Jawoisn)
aA0Qe U] sJaiysen
aAoge U| sdoyg dois auQ
"90IAISG paJeys e
Se pamalnal si SIUY} 810j8q papnjouod aq pjnoys
suonuaAiayul desp g ay) jeyl pue swwelbold
uoneuwJojsuel] ay} jo Led se [ejuswepuny aq
pinom sdoys dojs auQ / DSH uo 1oedwi ay)
Jeus yo4 (0gy Je Apenoied) gnH ayy ybnoayy
s92IAJ9S aJow Bunpind uo snooy pasealoul
aq 0} spasN "diysisuped gnH a11ysia1sadlop
ay} Aq pa1eoljdwod si pue 92IAI8S JO peaH ¥ Jeak
MaU 8y} Aq palapIsuod aq 0} pasu pjnom siy | Jauoog 8 Wou Y9l 13 811U 92IAIBS JaWoISN)| s821A8S Jawoisn) JO pedH
ETEEY -
Se JH ulyum o
papnjoul (@)]
Aj@jesedas Dnm
payuenb
YH 0 Jed se Japisuo) MON 3 10N Ayejeg 3 yjesH
3146971
Se JH ulyim
papnjoul
"90IAIBS paJeysS e se 0 Aj@jesedas
pue YH Jo uonelspisuod jo Jed se passalppe payiuenb
8q 0} paau pjnom Buluiedy jo Alsaldq MON L 10N (Aep 01 Aeq) uswdojanaq % Buluies |
"PapN|ou0d SI SIY}
JB)pe |1un Jlem pjnoys HH J0} 82IAI8S paleys
E JO uoljeJapisuod jeyy a4 sl sOR 1 uo
yiom Buiobuo ay) usalg) -swwelbold saoInIes
paJeys aininj ay} 0} [eIONJO SI ]I SE S|IoUN0D
Z @y} usamiaq Bulieys 1o} palapiSuod aq 0}
1sJi} 8Y} JO BUO 89 p|NOYS SIy} 1ey} )18} |le Asuy
SOAIN0BXT JBIYyD paJeys Jayjo o} bueads uQ Jauoosg ¥ NGF alej|a\ @ $92IN0SaY UBWNH
paJeys Apealy MON V/N V/N Juswabeue|y sanjioe] ¥ s}essy ‘Aledold
paJeys Apeally VIN VIN lloJAed

1 Xipuaddy




‘awwelbo.d

113 8y Jo saseyd 1xau ay) ojul pajelodiooul
Apuanbasqns si siy} Ji pamainal aq

0] poau Aej\ "pamairel 8q UBD 84NJoNJ)s pue
umouy ale wajsAs 0} sabueyo aouo ssaoo.d
uoljewlojsuel) ay Jo Led se paiebisaul aq

0} 92IAI8S paleys - swwelboid uonew.ojsuel
10 ued Bulieq wouj 11jauag pjNOM 89IAI8S

J9yeT

A863

(yuawebeuepy
‘uonowold ‘Aoljod ‘yuswabeuely
a)se ) "oul) Bulphoay ¥ asnjey

S90INIBG
[BIUSWIUOJIAUT JO pESH

swyedap Jo

MBINBI SBDIAIBS paleys Jo Jed se dn sy yoid
pue Aes diysiosuods aaaiyoe 0} Buiyoo| wody
Jl§ouaq pinod Inq payiusapl Ajjesyioads JoN

VIN

diyslosuodg

Ajuo 0gy

VIN

aljua) apisAiuno)

Juswiedop JO MaIAS] SBIAISS
paJeys ay) Jo ped se seale ssoloe sayoeoidde
paklys awWos 1o} Yoo| ued - Ajuo gy

™

VIN

aneay|

Ajuo 0gy

VIN

sajjue) Auunwiwo)

juswpedsp

10 M3IAaJ SBDIAIBS paJeys Jo Led se dn siy)
3oi1d pue sjuans Jo uonesiuebio / Juswabeuew
8y} ul 918 swi} Juswabeuew aleys 0} 00| ue)

0l

VIN

SUEI=!

jusweda( J0} MBIASI SBDIAISS paleys ||eJano
Jo ued se dn payoid aq ued jng saniunoddo
Bueys psjwi| - wnasnw Jajsuel) 0} DAg

0l

VIN

wnasnp|

eale
9oIAI8S Japim Jo ued se Buleys Alues wouy
Jl§ouaq p|nod Inq payiuapl Ajjeslyioads JoN

VIN

SJUBWIO||Y

eale
90IAI8S JopIm Jo Jed se Buleys Ales wouy
Jjouaq pjnod jnqg paluapl Ajjeoyoads JoN

VIN

sooedg uadQ pue syied

SIy} Ssaippe 0} se0Inosal o110ads ON

VIN

VIN

SUOlJUSAIB)U|/UOHEINPT Y)eaH

SIU}) SSaJppe 0} Se0IN0sal d1108ds ON

V/N

VIN

Ae|d ‘@|doad Buno, 9 ualpjiyd

‘bulieys Ajes wouy
JJouaq pinod Jnq payiuapl Ajjeslyioads JoN

MON

VIN

Juswdojaraq suy

‘bulieys Ajes wouy
JJouaqg pinod Jnq payiuapl Ajjeslyioads JoN

MON

VIN

wawdojaaa uonesloay pue suodg

"Jo]e| pamalAal 8q ued Jnq
pajiwi| aJe Buleys Joy senliqissod a1ojaisy}
- wnipe)s Asqqy Buipiing Ogy "Judy Is|. wouj
1SNJ| B 0] aJjua) ainsieT] paliajsues Dag

Jsre

Avv3

sanioe 4 asn [enq/senua) suodg/ainsia

Page 147

S92IAISS
[e4n)nND pue ainsia Jo pesH

1 Xipuaddy




"2lI1YS18)SadI0 A\ ULON
$S0Joe 1n0 sy} Buluapim 0} abejs 1ey) 1e uaalb
(g ueo uolelalpsuod - buissalbolud si 8oInI8S

paleys Moy 99s 0} UWniNy Ul PaMSIASI

aq |m Adjes Allunwwo) ‘paleys Apeauy V/N V/N Aejes Alunwwo)
¢dwwelbold uonewliojsuel |
ay} jo Jed Buleq wouy Jyauaq osje pjnod "ul
peppaq aAeY S82IAISS paleys Joylo usym eale
90IAIBS JO M3IABI JB)e| JO Jed se passalppe uoisnjou| [e1oos / (sjdoad S90INIBS
9Q 0] ‘SIy} Ssaippe 0] S8aInosal olj10ads oN V/N V/N BunoA pue Jap|Q) uoisayon Ajlunwiwo) Alunwwo? Jo pesH
"J181es[0 awo0o9(q
M3IASY NId 8y} Jo suoneoldwi ay se AjJuno) fo0)
8] SS0JIOB paJIspISU0D 84 ||IM INg 99IAISS M
palteys Alojeinbay Aq uayeuspun aq ||Im SIy} O
0gd / Ddgd 404 's[iounod Yioq je ssusijisal jo o)
3oe| 8y} 0} anp uoiuajne juabin spasu - yjeaH Dnm
[BlJUSWIUOIIAUT JO Led se 0018S UIyliM papn|ou| V/N V/N abeulelq pue
seale g JO Juawabeuew aAjoayd
2J0W WoJ} sjuswaroldwi 891AI8S |ellUS)Od Jauoog Z NEEF wnuojews.l) / salslaWwan
‘swwesboud sy jo ued
Se paJlapISuod 8 0] SJoLISIq 8JIYSIa)Sa2Io AN
JBYJ0 Y)IM 82IAISS paleys JapIAA ‘dI D Jepisuod
01 DAy ‘syJed Jeo pajwi| ajesado Ajuo Hgy e V/N Buiyled juswaolojug JIAID/sYled Jed
aAoge Uu| (jeuonesado) buusquinN pue buiweN 19845
aA0QE U] ubisaq bulesuibu]
aAoge U| S8J0IYa/\ pauopueqy
aAoge U| bulsod |i1g ‘buiddi Al4
aAoge U| S90UBIUBAUOD 21|gqNd
anoge U| slomag/sjoodssan
aA0(e U| sAemybiH
anoge U| puideospue] /eoueusiulel\ SpUNoI9
‘BuljoAday pue asnjay
10 MaIABJ O)UI pajelodiooul 8q 0] “Hodal 0218
0] Buipioooe) woddns jeuoneiado sapnjou| J91eT v 39S 1 Buisues|) 19a41S / BUBIS 19241S

1 Xipuaddy




‘awwelboid uoieuliojsuel] ayy
10 Led aqg pue Jaje| [3un ya| SI sy} 1ey) 3sabbns
pinom SSY 8y} yum yiom Buiobuo ay) usaig)

Js1e

(Jomewel Juswdojaraq
[e207 g Buluue|q) Buluueld oi681ens

uonessuabay
pue Buiuueld jo pesH

Aluo D89y

VIN

VIN

VIN

saqua) s, ualipliyd

"Ul peppaq aABY S80IAISS paleys Jay)o

UBsym eale 82IAI8S JO MBIABI J8Je| Jo Led se
pessalppe 8q 0] ‘Bulieys wolj sjjeusq swos
8q 0} 1|8} - LodsueJ) AJIUNWWOoD UIYIM papnjou]

Jauoog

VIN

Ayjigowdoys

v
pappaq aAeY S80IAISS paleys Jaylo Usym eale

92IAISS JO MBIASI J3JE| JO Jed Se passalppe
aq 0] - [eAlS8 0] Jajsuel) y|H Ag pareoldwo)

Jauoog

I'N

(syuelo sapijioe
pajqesig pue BuisnoH 10)09g 8jeAlld
Buipnjour) Buiigeu3 pue Absjeng BuisnoH

1102 |MdVY }S| wouy
198148 Yum [10uno) AJUno) o] patisjsuel) aq o

MON

V/N

VIN

sale AIeUoISSEOUOY) / S8ssed shg

"ul psppaq

aABY S9IAJISS paleys Jayjo Uusym eale 92IAI9S
JO MalAal Jgje| Jo Jed se passalppe aq 0]
"sjuswianoldwi 92IAIBS / SIUDIBIOIS Jajealb
10} Jayiebo) seale aoialas ayj ulol Ajjenusiod
pInoo - HAg 1e pswswsajdwi usaq isnl Auo

MON

V/N

VIN

aply V [elq / wodsuel | Allunwwo)

v
pappaq aAeY S8OIAISS paleys Jaylo Usym eale
92IAISS JO MBIASI J3JE] JO Jed Se passalppe

8¢ 0] ‘SIYy]l SSaippe 0} S80In0sal d1j19ads ON

V/N

VIN

uodsue.u ] oibsjenS

ul

peppaq aAeY S82IAISS paleys Jaylo Usym eale
80IAJSS JO MBIABY Ja)e| Jo Led se passalppe

8q 0] ‘seale Z 8] SsoJoe Buijiom wo.y
1suaq piNoo - Dgy 1e Jaolyo Juelb Joj 18bpng

VIN

VIN

Py juei
‘SyI0OMIBN AUNwiwo) B J0j08g Alejunjopn

paJeys buiaq Apealy

J91e

V/N

VIN

juswdo|ana( g uonesadQ aulldj] @ ALDD

(VYH wouy) Buipuny wes) gSy
JO SBNsSs| SsaJippe / JapISU0I 0) paau PINOAA Ul

pappaq aAeY S82IAISS paleys Jayjo usym eale
90IAI9S JO MBIABI JJe| JO Led se passalppe

8Qq 0] ¢Seale g 8y} SS0JOe JNOo pa||ol

pue ainjn} ul Ayojes Ajunwiwod yym pajelbaul
8q p|noo juasaud e Hgy 01 sajidde AjuQ

V/N

VIN

wes] InoiAeyag [EI00S Uy

1 Xipuaddy

Page 149




1 Xipuaddy

Aluo 0gy VIN VIN Ang 0} Jybry
buisnoH ui papnjou| V/N V/N 8ShOoH s pireq 1S
BuisnoH ur papnjou| V/N V/N asegele pue adsuew.ouad buisnoH
BuisnoH ul papnou| V/N V/N suondo BuisnoH
BuisnoH ur papnjou| V/N V/N sjuawanoldwi jeyden
BuisnoH ul papnou| V/N V/N SSOUSSO|oWOoH
‘yoeo.idde Buquiyl swa)sAg / [euonew.ojsuel | BuisnoH Jo1 01
wioJ} Jduaq pinom ng Ajuo gy V/N V/N Buipnjoul salIAI}oe JUNOJ2Y BnuaAay BuisnoH BuisnoH jo peaH
9.11UsI9]1S90I0 N\ (s1ex4e\ pue sanua) ssauisng Buipnjour)
YMON SsoJoe pajuawajdwi 8q o Jauoog V/N V/N swdojaAs WSLINO | pue dlWwouoo] o
bujuue|d ui papnjou| Jsuoog V/N V/N (S.0d 1) S49010 8811 R1u
buiuueld ur papnjou| MON V/N V/N uoneAIasu0) o
(@)}
BalJe SIY} Ul 9ABY [I0UNOD Dnm
yoea eyl saoinosal pajiwl| ay) usAlb sbulnes
AllJesS@0au Jou Ing d2ual|Isal alow 0} pes|
[lIm Jey) uonuane Jusbin sasinbai siy) )81 INq
9SBeO sauIsng 02493 Jo Jed se paJapisuod JON V/N V/N Ajnunuo) ssauisng / Buiuuelq Aouabiawg
‘awwelbo.id ayy ul Ajlues palapisuod ag pjnoys
siy} sebiey) pue 1noge anssi 8y} UBAIS) Z NOL3 safieyn pue
"uolouNy [0J3U0D bulpjing
al1ysIa)saalopp yinos Bunsixa ayy Buluiof
0} uaAIb 8q 0} paau OS|e p|NOM UOIBIaPISUOD
‘swwelbo.d ay) ul AjJes a11ysia1SeIo M)
YMON SSoJoe siy} je Bujoo| ul sjiyeuag Jauoog z Nlelek joluo) Buipjing
‘POMaINBI BQ UBD 84NJoNJ}S pue
umouy aJe wajsAs 0] sebueyo aouo ssaooud
uolnjewlojsuel; ay) jo Led se pajebisaaul aq
0] 82IAJ8S paleys - swwelboid uonew.lojsuel (yuswsolojug
Jo ued Buiaq wou} Jjeusq pjnom adIAIeS Jauoosg v NL63F Buluue|q Buipnjoul) j0u0) Juswdojaaag




sall|ioe 8sn |eng/sajue) suodg/ainsien

S80IAI8S
[eJn)inD pue ainsiaT Jo pesH

sjuiejdwo)

seoIAleg uondsoey

Juswebebu] Jewo)sn) pue $Seody JaWoIsny

1Sl Jswoisn)

slalysen

sdoyg dois auQ

2Jjua) 9JIAI8S Jawolsn)

S90IAIBS Jawolsn) JO peaH

f5eS 8 UiesH

(Aep 0y Aeq) Juswdojaraq R buiuiel |

2JeJIo A\ @ S821n0say uewnH

JusWwebeue Ysiy

syjausg

SONUBADY

Juswebeuey 108 %@ swodu| ajelodio)

90IApY g Juswabeue\ [elouBUl] R S)UNODDY

$80In0S8Y JO pesH

(0gy) woddng oiA1D

Aysisng g saijenb3

1uswdojare Jaquis|y

Woddng Jaquis|y g S8dIAIeS oneloowaq

S82IAI8S % B0IAPY |eba

~—

Lo
$80IAIeg oleIgERlUS(

%8 saljjenb3 ‘lefe JogeaH

(Buluue|d uoIss820NS pue buluue|d 824010\
Buipnjour) Juswdojana |euonesiuebliQ

uonew.oEe) |

sauisng ﬁ%@mm:

solydelboiday g bunuud

(0ag) yoddng oiA1D

BuiuadQ 1s0d [BljUa) JuoheASIuIWpPY 81eiodio)

suonoadsu| -
sjo8loid |e1oads -
wbisu| Jswoisny -

(yusyuoo gam jo ybisiano Buipnjour)
uonowold pue Bunayiel ‘suonedsiunwiwo) -
juswabebu3 Ajunwwo) pue uoneynsuo) -
(ABajeuys oyoads Buipnjoxs) Aoljod -
Juawanoidw| % Juswabeuey aouewlopad -

sdiysiauyed

dsi- pue aouewIopad

. N :Buneisodiooul Aoljog ‘Aa110d Jo Joyoaug

Sl 2 2 o o ol &l 2 2 & &I E[ 5| 2 2 | a| a| 8| 2| 2| &| | E|S| 2D © ERTNEYS Baly 90IAISS JO pEsH
= © |l 2| 2| © =) 3 S| = Q| = © |l 2| 2| o =) 3 S| = Q| = © ©| o
s| 3| 3| €l €| e| E| & =| 3 <| &| 3| 2| €|l €| e| E| & °| 3 <| 8| 3| 3| €
=| 5| €| o| ol B 8| 2 =| 5| S| o| ol B 8| 2 =S| 5| |l @

© < © < ©
| = Q > 0 Q. o 5 Q > 0 Q. o 5 3]
' ol O [ s | O [ L []
oz n Q| z n a
14 {114 (44114 102

Z Xipuaddy - y wa}| epuaby

awuwelBold uolnewlojsuel] [ 99IAI9G paleys pasodo.d



(s.0d.L) s8I0 8811

uoljeAlssuo)d

Ajinunuo) ssauisng / buluue|d Aousbiawg

sabiey) puen

[o4juoD buip|ing

buiuueld buipnjoul) [oiuo0) juswdoasg

juswdojaAa olWoU0d]

(M1omawel yuswdorag
|1e007 % Buiuueld) Buiuue|d oibsjens

uonelauabay
pue Buiuue|d jo peaH

Ayjigowdoys

Buipnjoul) buiiqeu3 pue Abajess buisnoH

aply V el / Hodsues] Ajunwwo)

Hodsuel] oibsjens

el ‘SyJomiaN Ajunwiwo) R 1009S AJejun|on

wea| JnolAeyag |elo0s juy

uoisnjou| |e1oos / (sjdoad
BunoA pue Jap|Q) uoisayo) Ajunwwo)

S90INIBS
Ajlunwwo) Jo pesH

wnuojewsal) / selis}swa)d

Bupjied juswadlojud [IAID/syied Jed

(jeuonelsado) buusquinN pue bulwen 19843

ubisaq buueauibu]

S8|01ys\ pauopueqy

bunsod |iig ‘buiddil A4

SeoUsIUBAUO) 2ljgNd

siamag/s|joodssa)

sAemybiy

Buidedspue /eoueus)ulel\ SPUNoIS

Buisues|) 198.1G / 8UOS 198.1G

(yuswebeuel ‘uonowold ‘Adljod
‘Juawabeuepy a)sep) -oul) Bulphoay g asnjey

Page 152

S80IAI8S
[BlUBWIUOIIAUT JO pesH

diysiosuodg

SjusAg

Sjusuio|lvy

saoedg uadQ pue syied

suoljuaAIaIUl/uoleoNPg YijeeH

Ae|d ‘@jdoad BunoA % uaip|iyd

yswdojersq SUY

1uawdojeAa uonealoay pue suodg

Sl 2 5l sl 5l 2l Bl 2> 2] =1 < 2 2 51 51 51 21 6l 2> 2 2= <[ 2 2 sl 5] @ 92IAID ealy 3JIAI9G JO ped
maammm.muummm.maammm.muummm.maammm.m 1ies V 99IMSS 0 PESH
s| 2| 2| €| Ele| §l2°|3|=|<| 8| 2|2|€|E|elEl2>|3|=|<| &8 2|2|E|E|lel§
= 2ol 5| g ¢| °| | = ol 5| g ¢| o | =| ao| G| @] ¢| ©f &
eJCVOD. eJCVOD. eJCVOD.
s ol O [ s ol O [ s ol O [
Q| z (2] ol z (2] ol z n
€102 (41114 Loe 0Loe

Z Xipuaddy - y wa}| epuaby

awuwelBold uolnewlojsuel] [ 99IAI9G paleys pasodo.d



SO0IAI8S paleys = %

uonewlojsuel| = l

Page 153

8o1n8S Auojeinbay

s991M8S Alojenbay Jo pesH

Ang 01 ybry

5SNOH S pIAEQ 1S

aseqeje( pue esuewload buisnoH

suondQ buisnoH

sjuswanosdw) |eyde)

SSOUSS8|aWOoH

Buipn|oul SaNIAIIOE JUNODDY BNUBASY BuISnoH

BuisnoH jo pesH

HHEEBEHERERBREEBEBEBEEHEHEREREBREBE CETINETS ealy 92IAI9G JO pedH
UUMpraabbmeUUMpraabbbm
S| 3= <| 8| 2| 2| E|E| 8 o3| 3| = <| 8| 2| 2| E| E| ®©
s c =| ol S S| 5| € - 0
HEEEERE HEEIEETR
£l 2l 8|9l 8 L2 8| 3|9 e
[a R4 (2] [a R -4 (2]
€10C 4414 1102 0102

Z Xipuaddy - y wa}| epuaby

awuwelBold uolnewlojsuel] [ 99IAI9G paleys pasodo.d



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 154



Agenda ltem 9

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD
19th July 2010

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD PROPOSED WORK PROGRAMME

Responsible Member Councillor — Kit Taylor, Performance
Management Board Chairman

Relevant Head of Service Hugh Bennett - Director of Policy,
Performance and Partnerships

Non-Key Decision

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

1.1 This report sets out the agreed work programme for 2010/11.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Itis recommended that:
i.  The Board considers the programme.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 The Board now has an established programme for work, which links to the
integrated financial/performance management cycle operated by the
Council. This cycle will produce the usual run of reports, but the Board has
an opportunity to consider including additional reports on areas it wishes to
focus on.

4. KEY ISSUES

4.1 Comprehensive Area Assessment, the regulatory framework for local
government has just been abolished. The Board may wish to reconsider the
programme the light of this recent change.

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The proposed new timetable links to the financial planning cycle.

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 No legal implications to the report.

Page 155



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD

19th July 2010

7.1

8.1

5.1

10.

10.1

1.

11.1

12.

12.1

13.

13.1

14.

141

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

Comprehensive Area Assessment, the regulatory framework for local
government has just been abolished. The Board may wish to reconsider the
programme the light of this recent change.

COUNCIL OBJECTIVES

The Board’s programme applies to all the Council’s objectives.

RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY
CONSIDERATIONS

The Board has previously expressed an interest in risk management. This
falls under the remit of the Audit Board; however, PMB can make
recommendations to this Board or Cabinet on issues around risk
management identified through its work.

CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report, but the work programme should have
due regard to performance on customer service.

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report, but the work programme should have
due regard to performance on equalities and diversity.

VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET
MANAGEMENT

The Board will receive customer complaints data during 2010/11 as part of
the quarterly integrated financial and performance reports.

CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY

None for the purpose of this report.

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS

None for the purpose of this report.

Page 156



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD

19th July 2010

15.

15.1

16.

16.1

17.

171

18.

18.1

19.

19.1

20.

GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

The work programme forms part of the Council’s governance/performance
management framework.

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF
CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998

The performance indicator report includes crime indicators.

HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

None directly from this report.

LESSONS LEARNT

The Board have requested a lessons learnt report on the new waste
recycling arrangements, which will come to the Board in July.

COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

None arising directly from this report, however, the performance indicators
are based on the Council’s priorities, which in turn are based on community
engagement feedback.

OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT

Portfolio Holder Via e-mail and at
PMB

Chief Executive Via e-mail

Executive Director (S151 Officer) Via e-mail

Executive Director — Leisure, Cultural, Via e-mail

Environmental and Community Services

Executive Director — Planning & Regeneration, | Via e-mail
Regulatory and Housing Services

Director of Policy, Performance and Yes
Partnerships
Head of Service Via e-mail

Page 157



PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

19th July 2010

21.

22.

23.

24,

Head of Resources Via e-mail
Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic Via e-mail
Services

Corporate Procurement Team No

WARDS AFFECTED

All wards

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - PMB Proposed Work Programme 2010/11

BACKGROUND PAPERS

PMB Work Programme 2009/10
KEY

None

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name: Hugh Bennett
E Mail: h.bennett@bromsgrove.gov.uk
Tel: 01527 881430

Page 158



Appendix 1

Performance Management Board Proposed Work Programme 2010/11

Date Agenda Item

Apr 10 Period 11 09/10 Performance Report (distributed only, no
meeting)

Period 11 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report.

DFG lean systems report (rolled forward to April to make
room for training).

Shared Services Highlight Report (rolled forward to April to
make room for training).

Staff Survey Results (if undertaken — now to be undertaken in
2010/11).

Housing Strategy Action Plan Update and Housing Inspection
Action Plan. (rolled forward to April to make room for training).

Council Plan 2010-2013 (rolled forward to April to make room
for training).

PMB Work Programme 20010/2011 (rolled forward to April to
make room for training).

May 10 Period 12 09/10 Performance Report
Period 12 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress Report
Shared Services Highlight Report

PMB Work Programme.

Jun 10 Period 1 10/11 Performance Report
Period 1 Improvement Plan 2009/2010 Mark 5
Shared Services Highlight Report

PMB Work Programme

Jul 10 Period 2 10/11 Performance Report

Period 2 10/11 Improvement Plan Mark 5

Page 159



Shared Services Highlight Report
Lessons Learnt Report — Waste Recycling
Dolphin Centre Service Level Agreement

PMB Work Programme

Aug 10

No meeting.

Sep 10

Period 4 10/11 performance report

Quarterly Recommendation Tracker (?)

Period 4 10/11 Improvement Plan Mark 5 progress report
Shared Services Highlight Report

Council Plan 2010/2013 Part 1

Place Survey

PMB Work Programme

Oct 10

Period 5 10/11 Performance Report.

Period 5 10/11 Improvement Plan Mark 5 progress report.
Annual Financial and Performance Report 2009/2010.
Shared Services Highlight Report

Work Programme.

Nov 10

Quarter 2 10/11 Integrated Finance & Performance Report.
Period 6 10/11 Improvement Plan Mark Sprogress Report.
Shared Services Highlight Report

Community Strategy Annual Report

Quarterly Recommendation Tracker

PMB Work Programme.

Page 160




Dec 10

Period 7 10/11 Performance Report.
Period 7 10/11 Improvement Plan Mark 5 progress report.
Shared Services Highlight Report

PMB Work Programme.

Jan 11

Period 8 10/11 Performance Report
Period 8 10/11 Improvement Plan Mark 5 progress report.
Shared Services Highlight Report.

PMB Work Programme.

Feb 11

Quarter 3 10/11 Integrated Finance & Performance report.
Period 9 10/11 Improvement Plan Mark 5 progress report.
Annual Artrix Performance Report.

CAA Report.

Quarterly Recommendation Tracker.

Shared Services Highlight Report.

Performance Management Strategy Annual Update.

PMB Work Programme.

Mar 11

Period 10 10/11 Performance Report.
Period 10 10/11 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report.

Shared Services Highlight Report (rolled forward to April to
make room for training).

Housing Strategy Action Plan Update and Housing Inspection
Action Plan.

Council Plan 2011-2014

PMB Work Programme 20011/2012.

Unallocated Reports:-

Page 161




Customer Access Strategy.
Data Quality Strategy 6 Month Update
Place Survey

Staff Survey

Page 162



	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Performance Management Board held on 17th May 2010
	4 Recycling and Garden Waste Service - Lessons Learned Report
	Lessons Learned recycling  garden service PMB Final (2)

	5 Dolphin Centre Service Level Agreement
	Grant Funding Agreement 31 03 10 v1
	Appendix 2 Dolphin Usage figures

	6 Performance Report (May 2010)
	May 10 performance appendix 1
	May 10 performance appendix 2
	May 10 performance appendix 3

	7 Improvement Plan - new template
	2010-11 Improvement Plan template DRAFT June Appendix 1

	8 Shared Services Report
	SSB Agenda Item 3 - Progress Report 24th June 2010
	SSB Agenda Item 4 - Transformation Prog Plan report
	SSB Agenda Item 4 - Appendix 1 - Shared Services Draft Programme
	SSB Agenda Item 4 - Appendix 2 - SS Programme Timeline for SSB

	9 Work Programme

